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PART I — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements
RDA Holding Co., and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)
(in millions)
(unaudited)
Successor Company
Three months ended March 31,
2012
2011

Revenue

$

241.8

Product, distribution and editorial expenses
Promotion, marketing and administrative expenses
Other operating items, net
Operating loss
Interest expense
Other (income) expense, net
Loss before income taxes and discontinued operations
Income tax benefit
Loss from continuing operations before discontinued operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes
Net loss

$

117.6
180.2
0.8
(56.8)
17.4
(2.4)
(71.8)
(16.2)
(55.6)
47.8
(7.8)

Comprehensive income (loss)

$
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
2

7.9

$

283.8

$

137.6
195.7
4.6
(54.1)
13.8
1.5
(69.4)
(13.9)
(55.5)
(26.2)
(81.7)

$

(48.8)
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RDA Holding Co., and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in millions, except share and per share amounts)
(unaudited)
Successor Company
March 31, 2012
December 31, 2011

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Prepaid and deferred promotion costs
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Assets held for sale
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Restricted cash
Goodwill
Other intangible assets, net
Prepaid pension assets
Other noncurrent assets
Total assets
Liabilities and stockholders' equity
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Income taxes payable
Unearned revenue
Other current liabilities
Liabilities held for sale
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Unearned revenue
Accrued pension
Postretirement and postemployment benefits other than pensions
Other noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Common stock (Series A (voting) $0.001 par value: authorized - 39,000,000 shares; issued 25,436,467 shares; outstanding - 24,378,151 shares)
Common stock (Series B (non-voting) $0.001 par value: authorized - 3,000,000 shares; issued
and outstanding - 2,063,533 shares)
Treasury stock, at cost: 1,058,316 shares
Paid-in capital, including warrants
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

$

$
$

0.5
125.5
132.4
11.0
244.6
21.8
15.9
551.7
570.2
95.8
4.7
8.7
163.6
1,394.7

$

$
$

—

$

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
3

153.9
76.4
138.6
69.4
26.9
115.4
24.0
604.6
52.1
7.2
396.5
301.9
139.6
44.6
1,546.5

—
(30.7)
595.6
(430.6)
17.5
151.8
1,546.5

112.3
5.4
183.8
63.8
28.8
103.1
132.7
629.9
52.0
6.7
390.7
307.4
135.5
41.9
1,564.1
—
137.6
133.8
8.8
235.3
22.0
22.9
560.4
603.8
89.6
4.4
9.2
154.1
1,421.5
—

$

—
(30.7)
594.3
(422.8)
1.8
142.6
1,564.1
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RDA Holding Co., and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in millions)
(unaudited)
Successor Company
Three months ended March 31,
2012
2011

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to operating cash flows:
(Income) loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes
Depreciation and amortization
Benefit for deferred income taxes
Amortization of debt discounts
Amortization of debt issuance costs
Loss on derivatives and warrants
Stock-based compensation expense
Net gain on sale or disposal of certain assets
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of dispositions:
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Prepaid and deferred promotion costs
Other assets
Unearned revenue
Income taxes
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Other liabilities
Net change in cash due to continuing operating activities
Net change in cash due to discontinued operating activities
Net change in cash due to operating activities

$

$
$

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
4

(7.8)

$

(81.7)

(47.8)
15.4
(5.8)
0.8
2.3
0.5
4.6
(1.0)

26.2
16.4
(17.8)
0.4
0.7
—
1.6
(1.1)

(0.1)
47.9
(3.5)
2.9
(13.1)
21.6
(20.4)
(28.0)
4.8
(26.7)
(1.9)
(28.6)

(0.4)
36.7
(7.8)
1.3
(28.4)
39.5
(1.2)
(14.5)
(2.2)
(32.3)
(2.6)
(34.9)

$
$
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RDA Holding Co., and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in millions)
(unaudited)
Successor Company
Three months ended March 31,
2012
2011

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from sale of a business
Proceeds from sale of assets
Investing restricted cash
Net change in cash due to continuing investing activities
Net change in cash due to discontinued investing activities
Net change in cash due to investing activities

$

$
$

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of long-term revolving credit facility
Debt payments to related parties
Cash paid for financing fees
Repurchase of Successor Company common stock
Tax effect of stock compensation
Financing restricted cash
Payment of prepayment penalty to related parties
Net change in cash due to continuing financing activities
Net change in cash due to discontinued financing activities
Net change in cash due to financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
Supplemental information
Cash paid for interest
Cash paid for income taxes

$

50.0
(35.0)
(45.0)
(2.4)
—
1.1
(11.9)
(5.0)
(48.2)
(0.2)
(48.4)
2.0
41.6
112.3
153.9

$
$

15.0
0.1

$
$

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
5

(2.6)
175.0
1.2
(59.1)
114.5
2.1
116.6

$

$
$

(4.9)
—
8.4
—
3.5
(0.3)
3.2

$

—
—
—
(0.2)
(43.3)
—
—
—
(43.5)
—
(43.5)
4.4
(70.8)
169.4
98.6

$
$

12.7
4.0

$
$

Table of Contents
RDA Holding Co., and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(in millions, except share and per share amounts)
(unaudited)
Note 1

Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and Business
RDA Holding Co. is principally a holding company. We conduct our operations primarily through our wholly-owned subsidiary, The
Reader's Digest Association, Inc. ("RDA"), and subsidiaries of RDA. RDA Holding Co.'s primary asset is its sole ownership of all
issued and outstanding shares of common stock of RDA. References in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements to "we," "us,"
"our," "HoldCo" and the "Company" are to RDA Holding Co., and its subsidiaries.
We are a global, multi-brand and multi-platform media and direct marketing company that educates, entertains and connects audiences
around the world. We are dedicated to providing our customers with the inspiration, ideas and tools to simplify and enrich their lives.
We produce and sell print and digital magazines, books, music and videos through multiple channels, such as direct mail (including
catalogs), the Internet and retail. Through trusted partners and sourcing experts, we co-brand, market and sell other consumer goods
and financial services.
On March 30, 2012, the Company entered into a credit and guarantee agreement, providing the Company with a $50.0 secured term
loan and an $11.0 letter of credit facility. See Note 7, Debt, for further information.
On March 21, 2012, the Company repaid and terminated its Senior Credit Facility (as defined in Note 7, Debt), using $35.0 of net
proceeds from our Allrecipes.com sale. In addition, we cash-collateralized our letters of credit, $11.4 as of March 21, 2012, which
had been issued under the Senior Credit Facility and which we intend to reissue under our $11.0 letter of credit facility. See Note 7,
Debt, for further information.
On March 24, 2012, we amended the 2011 Unsecured Term Loan to increase the senior secured leverage ratio for the quarter ended
March 31, 2012 and thereafter. See Note 7, Debt, for further information.
On March 6, 2012, the Company executed repayment of the 2011 Secured Term Loan (as defined in Note 7, Debt), using net proceeds
from our Allrecipes.com sale. Our repayment included $45.0 to satisfy the principal debt, along with $5.0 due under the early
repayment provisions. See Note 7, Debt, for further information.
On February 29, 2012, the Company sold Allrecipes.com, for $175.0 in cash, subject to adjustment in accordance with the terms and
provisions of the Stock Purchase Agreement. Allrecipes.com was considered to be a business held for sale and classified within
discontinued operations as of December 31, 2011. The sale of Allrecipes.com resulted in a gain of $51.1, net of taxes. See Note 4,
Discontinued Operations and Assets Held for Sale, for further information.
On February 8, 2012, the Company sold Weekly Reader. Weekly Reader was considered to be a business held for sale and classified
within discontinued operations as of December 31, 2011. The impact of this sale was not material. See Note 4, Discontinued
Operations and Assets Held for Sale, for further information.
6
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RDA Holding Co., and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(in millions, except share and per share amounts)
(unaudited)
Basis of Presentation
Our unaudited interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States ("U.S. GAAP") for interim financial information. These unaudited interim consolidated financial
statements should be read in conjunction with the audited December 31, 2011 consolidated financial statements and accompanying
notes, contained in our annual report filed on Form 10-K on March 29, 2012.
We typically generate our strongest revenue in the fourth calendar quarter due to consumer purchases during the holiday season.
Within our North America segment, our revenue and profitability is strongest in the fourth quarter, followed by the second quarter,
due to the increased number of magazine issues within each of those quarters, coupled with the timing of year end annual publications
and consumer holiday purchases in the fourth quarter. Our international segments are also seasonal, with fluctuations in profits as a
result of the timing of customer acquisition mailings (generally made in the first and third quarters, depressing profits in those quarters
as a result), and revenue tends to be strongest in the fourth quarter due to holiday consumer purchases.
Our businesses are structured into the following three reportable segments: North America, Europe and Asia Pacific & Latin America
("APLA"). See Note 13, Segments, for further information.
As discussed in Note 2, Reorganization and Emergence from Chapter 11, in our audited December 31, 2011 consolidated financial
statements, the Company emerged from chapter 11 bankruptcy protection on February 19, 2010 ("Effective Date"), and adopted fresh
start accounting in accordance with ASC Topic 852, Reorganizations ("ASC 852"). The adoption of fresh start accounting resulted in
our becoming a new entity for financial reporting purposes.
The Company, when used in reference to the period including and subsequent to February 20, 2010 ("Post Emergence"), refers to the
"Successor Company", and when used in reference to the period prior to February 20, 2010 ("Pre Emergence"), refers to the
"Predecessor Company".
Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the consolidated accounts of RDA Holding Co., and its subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
Use of Estimates
These statements, in the opinion of management, have been prepared following the requirements of U.S. GAAP for interim reporting,
applying certain assumptions and estimates, including all normal, recurring adjustments considered necessary to present such
information fairly. Operating results for any interim period are not necessarily indicative of the results for an entire year due to,
among other things, the seasonality of our business. In preparing the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S.
GAAP, we must make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and related
disclosures at the date of the financial statements and during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
As discussed in Note 3, Fresh Start Accounting and Reorganization Items, in our audited December 31, 2011 consolidated financial
statements, the basis to determine enterprise value and the values of various tangible and intangible assets were determined using a
number of factors, including the use of certain valuation methodologies and certain operational assumptions and estimates. Due to the
many variables inherent in the estimation of fair value, differences in assumptions and estimates may have a material effect on the
result of our future goodwill and intangible asset impairment tests.
7
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RDA Holding Co., and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(in millions, except share and per share amounts)
(unaudited)
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In September 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2011-08,
Testing Goodwill for Impairment ("ASU 2011-08"), which represents an update to ASC 350, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other. ASU
2011-08 simplifies how entities test goodwill for impairment. ASU 2011-08 permits entities to first assess qualitative factors to
determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as a basis for
determining whether to perform a two-step goodwill impairment test. ASU 2011-08 is effective for the Company in the first quarter
of its fiscal year ending December 31, 2012. The Company adopted this guidance effective January 1, 2012, and it did not have a
material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, Presentation of Comprehensive Income ("ASU 2011-05"), which represents an
update to ASC 220, Comprehensive Income ("ASC 220"). ASU 2011-05 provides new disclosure guidance for comprehensive
income, requiring presentation of each component of net income along with total net income, each component of other comprehensive
income along with a total for other comprehensive income and a total amount for comprehensive income. An entity will have the
option to present these items in one continuous statement or two separate but consecutive statements. An entity will no longer be
permitted to present components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders' equity. In
December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-12, Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the Presentation of
Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05 ("ASU
2011-12"), which represents an update to ASC 220. ASU 2011-12 defers only those changes in ASU 2011-05 that relate to the
presentation of reclassification adjustments. These updates are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011 and for
interim periods within those years. The Company adopted this guidance effective January 1, 2012, and it did not have a material
impact on our consolidated financial statements.
Note 2

Other Operating Items, Net

Items included in other operating items, net consist of the following: (i) restructuring charges, representing the streamlining of our
organizational structure; (ii) professional, contractual charges and other periodic costs related to the strategic repositioning of our
businesses; (iii) gain or loss on the sale or disposal of assets; and (iv) pension curtailments. The table below reflects our other
operating items, net:
Successor Company
Three months ended March 31,
2012
2011

Restructuring charges
Professional fees and contractual charges related to reorganization and restructuring
Sale or disposal of certain assets
Pension curtailments
Total
8

$

$

1.2
0.7
(1.0)
(0.1)
0.8

$

$

3.7
2.0
(1.1)
—
4.6
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RDA Holding Co., and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(in millions, except share and per share amounts)
(unaudited)
Restructuring Activities
Restructuring charges are recorded in accordance with ASC Topic 712, Compensation - Nonretirement Postemployment Benefits
("ASC 712") or ASC Topic 420, Exit or Disposal Cost Obligations ("ASC 420"). Employees terminated as a result of our
restructuring activities were terminated under our pre-existing severance policy; therefore, we recognized severance amounts pursuant
to ASC 712. Severance charges represent the cost to separate employees from our operations to streamline the organization. As such,
severance amounts are recorded when approved, including the identification of positions to be separated, and when payment is
probable and estimable. Other amounts related to restructuring actions, including charges to terminate contractual obligations in
connection with streamlining activities, are recorded in accordance with ASC 420.
Effective April 2, 2009, our Reader's Digest Association, Inc. Retirement Plan ("U.S. Qualified Pension Plan" or "Retirement Plan")
was temporarily amended to provide additional benefits to employees involuntarily terminated. As a result, a portion of our severance
obligation is being satisfied by payments from the U.S. Qualified Pension Plan. See Note 11, Benefit Plans, for further information.
For the three months ended March 31, 2012, we recorded new restructuring activities of $3.2, primarily related to severance,
principally related to continued headcount reductions in North America; with an adjustment to sublease assumptions associated with
the abandonment of one floor of our White Plains, New York facility. The associated employee severance payments are expected to be
substantially completed by the end of 2012. During the quarter, we also reversed $2.0 in accrued severance, primarily related to 2011
Successor Company initiatives, mainly due to several employee resignations.
For the three months ended March 31, 2011, we recorded new restructuring activities of $3.7. This was primarily related to $2.2 in
severance, principally due to continued headcount reductions in our Europe and APLA regions. Additionally, we recorded $0.9 in
contractual charges related to the abandonment of one floor of our White Plains, New York facility, due to additional charges to ready
the space for sublease and adjustments to our expected sublease income; along with $0.6 in contractual charges related to
abandonment of leases in APLA and North America.
The table below reflects changes in our restructuring accruals, by type of initiative, for the Successor Company, for the three months
ended March 31, 2012:
Successor Company

Balance at December 31, 2011
Accruals, net
Spending
Balance at March 31, 2012
Cumulative Accounts
Predecessor Company's liabilities
assumed in fresh start accounting
Accruals, net
Spending
Balance at March 31, 2012

Severance
2011
2010
Successor
Successor
Predecessor
Company
Company
Company
Initiatives
Initiatives
Initiatives
$
25.7 $
1.0 $
0.6
0.4
(0.3)
—
(5.7)
(0.4)
—
$
20.4 $
0.3 $
0.6

$
$

— $
34.3
(13.9)
20.4 $

— $
22.3
(22.0)
0.3 $

2011
Successor
Total
Company
Severance
Initiatives
$
27.3 $
0.9
0.1
—
(6.1)
—
$
21.3 $
0.9

14.3 $
(5.8)
(7.9)
0.6 $

9

14.3 $
50.8
(43.8)
21.3 $

Contracts
2010
Successor
Predecessor
Company
Company
Initiatives
Initiatives
$
5.3 $
—
1.1
—
(0.4)
—
$
6.0 $
—

— $
1.4
(0.5)
0.9 $

— $
7.8
(1.8)
6.0 $

Total
Grand
Contracts
Total
6.2 $
33.5
1.1
1.2
(0.4)
(6.5)
$
6.9 $
28.2
$

0.3 $
(0.2)
(0.1)
— $

0.3 $
9.0
(2.4)
6.9 $

14.6
59.8
(46.2)
28.2
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RDA Holding Co., and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(in millions, except share and per share amounts)
(unaudited)
The table below reflects changes in our restructuring accruals, by reportable segment, for the Successor Company, for the three
months ended March 31, 2012:
Successor Company
Severance
Balance at December 31, 2011
Accruals, net
Spending
Balance at March 31, 2012
Cumulative Accounts
Predecessor Company's liabilities
assumed in fresh start
accounting
Accruals, net
Spending
Balance at March 31, 2012

Note 3

Contracts

North America
Europe
APLA
$
4.6 $
19.4 $
3.3
1.7
(1.2)
(0.4)
(1.6)
(2.8)
(1.7)
$
4.7 $
15.4 $
1.2

$
$

1.7 $
17.8
(14.8)
4.7 $

11.3 $
25.1
(21.0)
15.4 $

Total
North
Severance
America
$
27.3 $
5.3 $
0.1
1.1
(6.1)
(0.4)
$
21.3 $
6.0 $

1.3 $
7.9
(8.0)
1.2 $

14.3 $
50.8
(43.8)
21.3 $

— $
7.9
(1.9)
6.0 $

Europe

APLA
0.9 $
—
—
0.9 $

— $
1.0
(0.1)
0.9 $

—
—
—
—

Total
Grand
Contracts
Total
$
6.2 $
33.5
1.1
1.2
(0.4)
(6.5)
$
6.9 $
28.2

0.3 $
0.1
(0.4)
— $

0.3 $
9.0
(2.4)
6.9 $

14.6
59.8
(46.2)
28.2

Income Tax

For the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded income tax benefits of $16.2 and $13.9, respectively,
which were primarily driven by the Company's jurisdictional earnings mix of foreign earnings at a low taxed rate and domestic losses
at a higher taxed rate. The reported benefit for the three months ended March 31, 2012 reflects a $10.6 tax benefit related to our
domestic continuing operations, which is supported by taxable income generated by the sale of Allrecipes.com, which is included as a
component of discontinued operations; as well as a discrete tax benefit of $4.7 related to the reversal of reserves for uncertain tax
positions, as discussed below. The income tax benefit recorded in the three months ended March 31, 2012 also reflects the limitation
under GAAP that the tax benefit for the year-to-date loss cannot be greater than the anticipated full year benefit.
We consider many factors when evaluating and estimating our uncertain tax positions and tax benefits, which may require periodic
adjustments and may not accurately anticipate actual outcomes. During the three months ended March 31, 2012, we settled foreign
tax litigation related to the years 2007 and 2008, resulting in a $4.7 decrease in the amount of unrecognized tax benefits related to this
item. The amount of unrecognized tax benefits, including interest from uncertain tax positions at March 31, 2012 and December 31,
2011, are $22.8 and $26.9, respectively.
Note 4

Discontinued Operations and Assets Held for Sale

During the three months ended March 31, 2012, we closed our Worldwide Country Tours and Reader's Digest Bulgaria businesses.
These businesses met the criteria under ASC 205, Presentation of Financial Statements, for discontinued operations classification.
There is no expectation of continuing cash flows or operations after the closure.
On February 29, 2012, the Company sold Allrecipes.com, for $175.0 in cash, subject to adjustment in accordance with the terms and
provisions of the Stock Purchase Agreement. The sale of Allrecipes.com resulted in a gain of $51.1, net of taxes.
On February 8, 2012, the Company sold Weekly Reader for $3.6; $2.6 was received at closing, with an additional payment of $1.0 due
in May 2012. The sale of Weekly Reader resulted in a loss of $1.5, net of taxes.
10
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(in millions, except share and per share amounts)
(unaudited)
During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company committed to a plan to sell Allrecipes.com, Lifestyle and Entertainment
Direct ("LED") and Weekly Reader. We met the criteria under ASC 360, Property, Plant, and Equipment ("ASC 360") to classify
these businesses as held for sale. There is no expectation of continuing cash flows or involvement in the operations after they are
sold. The LED business is classified as held for sale at March 31, 2012.
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes, was as follows:
Successor Company
Three months ended March 31,
2012
2011

$

Revenue
Loss from discontinued operations before income taxes and gain on sales
Income tax (benefit) expense on discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes, before gain on sales
Gain on sales of divested businesses, net of taxes
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes

$

35.6
(4.7)
(2.9)
(1.8)
49.6
47.8

Gain on the sales of divested businesses, net of taxes was as follows:
Successor Company
Three months ended
March 31, 2012

Sales price
Less: cash on hand
Net sales price
Net tangible assets
Associated intangible assets
Transaction costs
Gain on sales of divested businesses, before taxes
Income tax expense
Gain on sales of divested businesses, net of taxes
11

$

$

178.6
—
178.6
2.6
88.6
5.8
81.6
32.0
49.6

$

$

42.2
(7.7)
18.5
(26.2)
—
(26.2)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(in millions, except share and per share amounts)
(unaudited)
The carrying amounts of major classes of assets and liabilities included in assets held for sale and liabilities held for sale, respectively,
in the consolidated balance sheets were as follows:
Successor Company
March 31, 2012
December 31, 2011

Assets held for sale
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Other current assets
Other non-current assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets, net
Total assets held for sale
Liabilities held for sale
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Other current liabilities
Other non-current liabilities
Total liabilities held for sale
Note 5

$

$
$

$

8.6
4.8
7.1
1.8
1.7
24.0

$

8.2
5.4
0.7
1.6
—
15.9

$

$

$

24.5
5.6
7.3
3.6
91.7
132.7
9.1
6.9
3.4
2.0
1.5
22.9

Accounts Receivable, Net

The components of accounts receivable, net were as follows:
Successor Company
March 31, 2012
December 31, 2011

Gross trade accounts receivable
Reserve for returns
Reserve for bad debts and allowances
Total accounts receivable, net
Note 6

$
$

266.9
(49.0)
(79.3)
138.6

$
$

328.8
(63.0)
(82.0)
183.8

Inventories

The components of inventories were as follows:
Successor Company
March 31, 2012
December 31, 2011

Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Total inventories

$
$
12

1.9
2.5
65.0
69.4

$
$

2.0
2.9
58.9
63.8
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Note 7

Debt

The components of debt were as follows:
Successor Company
Interest
Rate

Senior Credit Facility
2011 Secured Term Loan
2011 Unsecured Term Loan
2012 Secured Term Loan
Senior Secured Notes
Discount on 2011 Secured Term Loan
Discount on 2011 Unsecured Term Loan
Discount on Senior Secured Notes
Fair Value of Embedded Derivative
Total Debt
Less: Current portion of 2012 Secured Term Loan
Long-term debt

Maturity

6.0%
7.0%
11.0%
8.0%
9.5%

February 2013
November 2013
May 2014
March 2015
February 2017

March 31, 2012

$

$

—
—
10.0
50.0
525.0
—
(2.3)
(12.0)
—
570.7
0.5
570.2

December 31, 2011

$

$

35.0
45.0
10.0
—
525.0
(1.5)
(2.6)
(12.5)
5.4
603.8
—
603.8

Interest Expense
Interest expense primarily attributable to our outstanding debt was $17.4 and $13.8 for the three months ended March 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively, including the amortization of deferred financing fees and bond discount of $3.1 and $1.1, respectively. The
weighted average interest rates on our borrowings for the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 were 9.1% and 9.5%,
respectively.
2012 Secured Credit Facility
On March 30, 2012, the Company entered into a credit and guarantee agreement (the "Credit Agreement") with Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as administrative agent; the Guarantors (defined therein), Wells Fargo Principal Lending, LLC as issuing lender,
and the lenders thereunder, providing the Company with a $50.0 million secured term loan ("2012 Secured Term Loan") and an $11.0
million letter of credit facility ("Letter of Credit Facility" and together with the 2012 Secured Term Loan, the "2012 Secured Credit
Facility"). The 2012 Secured Credit Facility matures on March 30, 2015. The 2012 Secured Term Loan has a short-term repayment of
$0.125 due quarterly, which is recorded in current portion of long-term debt in our consolidated balance sheets. The term loans under
the 2012 Secured Term Loan bear interest at a variable rate per annum, based upon the Company's election of a prime rate or LIBOR
(subject to a floor of 4.0% and 3.0%, respectively) plus 4.0% in the case of prime rate borrowings and 5.0% in the case of LIBOR
borrowings. The drawn letters of credit under the Letter of Credit Facility bear an interest rate of 6.0% per annum and the Letter of
Credit Facility includes a utilization fee of 1.0% per annum, which will accrue on the total undrawn amount of the Letter of Credit
Facility.
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The 2012 Secured Credit Facility is fully and unconditionally guaranteed on a first priority secured basis, jointly and severally by
ourselves and by substantially all of our existing and future wholly-owned direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries. The obligations
and guaranty under the 2012 Secured Credit Facility are secured by a first priority security interest in the same collateral that secures
our Senior Secured Notes. The 2012 Secured Credit Facility and the Senior Secured Notes are secured by the same collateral and rank
pari passu with each other under the documentation governing such collateral; however, the 2012 Secured Credit Facility constitutes
"Priority Payment Lien Obligations" under such documentation and enjoys priority ("first out") treatment with respect to post-default
dispositions and realizations of collateral thereunder.
The 2012 Secured Credit Facility contains mandatory prepayment provisions in the event of certain events, including certain asset
sales (excluding the sale of the LED business). Subject to an exception for prepayments made from the Company's Excess Cash Flow
(as defined in the Credit Agreement), the Company will be required to pay a prepayment premium of 1.00% of the principal amount
prepaid for any optional and mandatory prepayments prior to March 30, 2013.
2011 Credit Facilities
On August 12, 2011, the Company entered into a term loan and guarantee agreement with Luxor Capital Group, as administrative
agent; the Guarantors (defined therein); and the lenders thereunder, consisting of funds affiliated with Luxor Capital Group and Point
Lobos Capital, who are shareholders of the Company's common stock, providing the Company with a $45.0 secured term loan ("2011
Secured Term Loan"). The 2011 Secured Term Loan would have matured in November 2013 and bore interest at the rate of 7.0% per
annum.
On March 6, 2012, the Company executed repayment of the 2011 Secured Term Loan, using net proceeds from our Allrecipes.com
sale. Our repayment included $45.0 to satisfy the principal debt, along with $5.0 due under the early repayment provisions.
Also on August 12, 2011, the Company entered into an unsecured term loan and guarantee agreement with Luxor Capital Group, as
administrative agent; the Guarantors (defined therein) and the lenders thereunder, consisting of funds affiliated with Luxor Capital
Group and Point Lobos Capital, who are shareholders of the Company's common stock, providing the Company with a $10.0
unsecured term loan ("2011 Unsecured Term Loan" and, together with the 2011 Secured Term Loan, "2011 Credit Facilities"). The
2011 Unsecured Term Loan matures in May 2014 and bears interest at the rate of 11.0% per annum.
In connection with the 2011 Unsecured Term Loan, the Company issued two tranches of warrants. See Note 10, Common Stock
Warrants for further information.
Luxor Capital Group and Point Lobos Capital and their affiliated funds are considered related parties due to their equity interest in the
Company. See Note 12, Related Party Transactions, for further information.
Senior Secured Notes
On February 11, 2010, RD Escrow Corporation, a subsidiary of RDA, entered into an Indenture ("Indenture") with RDA, RDA
Holding Co., and substantially all of our existing wholly-owned direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the "Guarantors"), Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as Trustee, and Wilmington Trust FSB, as Collateral Agent, pursuant to which we issued
the Floating Rate Senior Secured Notes due 2017 ("Senior Secured Notes") in a private offering under the Securities Act of 1933. We
issued the Senior Secured Notes at 97% of their face value. Financing fees of $16.0 related to the Senior Secured Notes were deferred
and are amortized under the effective interest rate method over the life of the Senior Secured Notes.
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In October 2010, RDA Holding Co. and its subsidiaries filed a Registration Statement on Form S-4 with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, in connection with our offer to exchange up to $525.0 of our Senior Secured Notes for a like principal amount of
Floating Rate Senior Secured Notes due 2017. Our Form S-4 filing became effective in February 2011.
The Senior Secured Notes mature on February 15, 2017. The Senior Secured Notes bear interest at a rate per annum equal to LIBOR
(as defined, subject to a three month LIBOR floor of 3.0%) plus 6.5%. The LIBOR component of the interest rate will be reset
quarterly and commenced on May 15, 2010.
Senior Credit Facility
On February 19, 2010, the Company entered into a credit agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent; the
Guarantors (which include us and are defined therein); J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., Banc of America Securities LLC, Credit Suisse
Securities (U.S.A.) LLC and Goldman Sachs Credit Partners L.P., as joint lead arrangers and joint bookrunners; and JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A., Bank of America, N.A., Credit Suisse AG and Goldman Sachs Credit Partners L.P., as lenders, providing for a three year
revolving credit facility ("Senior Credit Facility") of up to $50.0 with a $25.0 letter of credit sub-facility. On March 21, 2012, the
Company repaid and terminated its Senior Credit Facility, using $35.0 of net proceeds from our Allrecipes.com sale and we cashcollateralized our letters of credit, $11.4 as of March 21, 2012, which had been issued under the Senior Credit Facility and which we
intend to reissue under our Letter of Credit Facility.
Letters of Credit
As discussed above, as of March 31, 2012, there was $11.4 in cash-collateralized letters of credit. There was $11.5 in standby letters
of credit as of December 31, 2011, against the $25.0 letter of credit sub-facility of the Senior Credit Facility. The letters of credit
served as security, primarily related to real estate leases entered into by RDA, Direct Holdings, and Allrecipes.com, Inc.; and as
security for surety bonds related to sweepstakes promotions and customs duties.
Fair Values
Our fair value measurements based on Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy included the Senior Secured Notes. Based on quoted prices
in markets that are not active, we estimated that the fair value of our $525.0 Senior Secured Notes was approximately $463.3 and
$388.5, as of March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.
Our fair value measurements based on Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy included the 2012 Secured Term Loan, Senior Credit
Facility, 2011 Secured Term Loan and 2011 Unsecured Term Loan.
We estimated that the fair value of our 2012 Secured Term Loan was $50.0 at March 31, 2012, based on the March 30, 2012
origination date.
We estimated that the fair value of our Senior Credit Facility was approximately $33.0 at December 31, 2011. There was very limited
trading activity on our Senior Credit Facility.
We estimated that the fair value of our 2011 Unsecured Term Loan was $9.0 and $8.8, as of March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011,
respectively. We estimated that the fair value of our 2011 Secured Term Loan was $40.7 at December 31, 2011. There has been no
trading activity on the 2011 Credit Facilities.
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Note 8

Commitments and Contingencies

General Litigation
From time to time, we are involved in a variety of claims, lawsuits, investigations and proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of
business.
As previously disclosed, on April 19, 2010, the Federal Trade Commission ("FTC") issued a Civil Investigative Demand requesting
the production of documents and information, regarding the marketing of the Ab Circle Pro fitness product, to Direct Entertainment
Media Group, Inc. ("DEMG"), a subsidiary of The Reader's Digest Association, Inc., as well as certain third parties involved in the
manufacture and promotion of the product. DEMG provided its initial responses by August 23, 2010 and had not heard from the FTC
until June 2011, at which time the FTC indicated it would seek authority to enter into consent negotiations with DEMG regarding the
terms of a Consent Order. On October 5, 2011, the FTC indicated that it had received authority from the Bureau of Consumer
Protection to enter into consent negotiations. The FTC also indicated that its proposed Consent Order would include The Readers
Digest Association, Inc. and Direct Holdings Americas, Inc. as parties to the settlement and injunctive relief regulating certain
marketing activities in the future, and that it would seek restitution. We are currently in consent negotiations with the FTC and both
parties are working toward reaching a mutually agreeable settlement. However, if we are unsuccessful in reaching a mutually
agreeable settlement with the FTC, the matter will result in litigation. If litigation results, we intend to vigorously defend our position;
however, we cannot predict the outcome or the timing of litigation. If a settlement is reached, we expect it to occur in the second or
third quarter of 2012. Although the Company believes that the amounts reserved are adequate based on currently available
information, the estimation process involves a considerable amount of judgment by management and ultimate amounts could vary
materially. Either a settlement with the FTC or litigation over the matter could have a material impact on our financial condition and
liquidity.
On December 30, 2011, the Polish Office for the Protection of Consumers and Competition ("UOKiK") issued a decision in its
consumer protection proceeding against Reader's Digest Przeglad Sp. z o.o. (Reader's Digest Poland, "RDP"). UOKiK's takes the
position that RDP's sweepstakes-based direct mail marketing model makes use of practices which may mislead consumers and/or fail
to provide clear and complete information on the details of the distance-selling contracts executed between RDP and the consumers.
The decision requires RDP to (i) pay a fine of approximately $1.3, (ii) announce the decision on its website and in two national papers
and (iii) change certain of its promotional materials. RDP filed an appeal on January 16, 2012, with the consumer protection/
competition court, and UOKiK's decision is not binding prior to the consumer protection/competition court's ruling on appeal. A
ruling by the appellate court is expected in six to twelve months. Although we cannot predict the final outcome of this matter, based
on the information presently available to us, management does not believe that the ultimate resolution of this investigation will have a
material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.
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In August 2011, an adverse decision against the Company was rendered in the Brazilian Federal Court of Appeals that overturned a
favorable decision in the lower court that was rendered in 2007, in which the Company challenged the constitutionality of a 2004 law
change in the method of determining the tax base and the applicable tax rate used to assess local operating taxes related to certain
federal social contribution programs. The Court of Appeals ruled unfavorably on the issue of constitutionality of the tax rate, but did
not address the tax base, and specifically the Company's ability to claim certain offsets in the form of credits against the tax. The
Company asked the Court of Appeals to clarify its ruling in respect of the tax base and in February 2012, the Court of Appeals issued
an adverse ruling that prevents the Company from claiming the aforementioned tax credits. The Company is in the process of
appealing the decision to the Superior Court of Brazil, and together with local tax counsel, believes it is possible that it will ultimately
prevail in this litigation. However, based on the facts and circumstances, the Company has elected to pay the tax under protest while it
appeals the decision, and therefore has paid approximately $4.5 related to taxes in dispute in April 2012, as accrued at March 31, 2012
and December 31, 2011.
Note 9

Equity-Based Compensation

For the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, we recognized stock-based compensation expense of $4.6 and $1.6,
respectively.
During the three months ended March 31, 2012, there were 794,000 RSUs granted to certain directors and employees of our
Company. RSUs awarded to employee participants are accounted for as liability instruments and recorded in accrued expenses in our
consolidated balance sheets. RSUs awarded to non-employee directors are accounted for as equity instruments.
There were no stock options granted in the three months ended March 31, 2012. Stock options awarded to employees or nonemployee directors are accounted for as equity instruments.
In connection with the Successor Company grant of stock-based compensation awards, we perform a valuation of our common stock
equity. Our valuation analysis consists of a combination of the income and market comparable approach, discounted for lack of
marketability based on an options pricing method proposed by John Finnerty ("Finnerty Model") under Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy. We also consider, but have not used, the market transaction approach due to the lack of relevant transactions. The income
approach utilizes cash flows based on our long-term outlook through the valuation date. Terminal value was calculated using a
modified Gordon growth formula. Market multiples of peer companies were calculated and utilized in application of a market
comparable approach. We applied multiple ranges for revenue and EBITDA.
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The table below sets forth the key assumptions utilized in the valuation of our common stock equity:
Successor Company
Valuation Date
March 31, 2012

Income approach
Discount rate
Perpetual growth rate
Market comparable approach
EBITDA market multiples
Revenue market multiples
Finnerty model
Discount for lack of marketability
Volatility (a)
Risk-free rate (b)
Dividend yield (c)
Estimated fair value of our common stock

16.0%
2.0%
5.50 to 6.00
0.50 to 0.55
20.0%
50.0%
0.3%
0.0%
12.27

$

(a) Volatility is calculated based on comparable public company volatilities.
(b) Risk-free rate is calculated based on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon security yields.
(c) Dividend yield is based on our historical and expected dividends.
A summary of RSUs activity under the 2010 Plan was as follows:
Successor Company
RSUs
Shares
Weighted Average
(000's)
Grant Date Fair Value

54
794
(350)
498

Nonvested at December 31, 2011
Granted, total
Granted, vested
Nonvested at March 31, 2012
Note 10

$
$

22.80
11.97
11.91
13.19

Common Stock Warrants

As discussed in Note 7, Debt, on August 12, 2011, the Company entered into the 2011 Credit Facilities. In connection with the 2011
Unsecured Term Loan, the Company issued two tranches of warrants to the lenders under the 2011 Unsecured Term Loan. The
Company accounted for these warrants as derivative liabilities in accordance with ASC 815.
The Company estimated the fair value of these warrants using a simulation approach, under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The
fair value is recorded in other noncurrent liabilities on the balance sheet, with adjustments recorded as other income or expense, net.
The estimated fair value at March 31, 2012 and at the issuance date was $4.0 and $2.9, respectively.
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Separately, in connection with the Plan of Reorganization ("Plan") executed upon our emergence from chapter 11 proceedings, holders
of the Predecessor Company's Senior Subordinated Notes who voted in favor of the Plan received warrants, each eligible to purchase
1.04 shares, as adjusted, of Class A common stock of the Successor Company. The Company has accounted for these warrants as
equity instruments in accordance with ASC 815, and as such, are classified in stockholders' equity.
Note 11

Benefit Plans

We sponsor various pension and postretirement benefit plans, including those for certain employees in the United States and
internationally.
Components of net periodic pension benefit were as follows:
Successor Company
Three months ended March 31,
2012
2011

Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Curtailments (a)
Cost for special termination benefits (b)
Net periodic pension benefit

$

$

1.1
5.5
(10.7)
(0.1)
0.7
(3.5)

$

$

1.1
6.1
(10.3)
—
0.5
(2.6)

(a) For the three months ended March 31, 2012, a curtailment occurred in France. This amount was recorded as other operating
items, net as it is considered a restructuring item.
(b) Cost for special termination benefits is included in other operating items, net. Our U.S. Qualified Pension Plan was
temporarily amended to provide additional benefits to employees involuntarily terminated.
For the three months ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, we contributed less than $0.1 and $0.9 to our international pension plans,
respectively.
Our Retirement Plan in the United States is over funded; therefore, we did not make any contributions for the three months ended
March 31, 2012 and 2011.
We also sponsor certain postretirement benefit plans in the United States and Canada. The expense for these plans is not material.
Note 12

Related Party Transactions

Luxor Capital Group and Point Lobos Capital and their affiliated funds are considered related parties due to their equity interest in the
Company. The 2011 Credit Facilities between the Company and Luxor Capital Group, Point Lobos Capital and their affiliated funds
are described in Note 7, Debt. On March 6, 2012, we executed repayment of the 2011 Secured Term Loan, using net proceeds from
our Allrecipes.com sale. Our repayment included $45.0 to satisfy principal debt, along with $5.0 due under early repayment
provisions.
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Note 13

Segments

Our reportable segments reflect the manner in which our chief operating decision maker reviews the business. Our Chief Executive
Officer acts as our chief operating decision maker. Revenue and expense attributable to intercompany transaction are eliminated to
reconcile our reportable segment amounts to consolidated amounts, as reported in our consolidated statements of comprehensive
income. In addition to the reportable segments, we separately report corporate unallocated expenses, which are expenses not directly
attributable to business unit performance. Similarly, we separately report the effects of goodwill and intangible asset impairment
charges, certain purchase accounting related fair value adjustments and other operating items, net because our chief operating decision
maker does not factor these items when assessing business unit performance.
Reportable Segment Financial Information:
Successor Company
Three months ended March 31,
2012
2011

Revenue
North America
Europe
Asia Pacific & Latin America
Intercompany eliminations
Fair value adjustments (a)
Total revenue

$

$

Operating (loss) income
North America
Europe
Asia Pacific & Latin America
Corporate unallocated
Fair value adjustments (a)
Other operating items, net (b)
Operating loss

$

$

103.4
95.8
51.0
(1.3)
(7.1)
241.8

$

(6.4)
(18.1)
(2.9)
(24.9)
(3.7)
(0.8)
(56.8)

$

$

$

130.9
121.5
57.8
(1.8)
(24.6)
283.8
0.6
(11.4)
1.8
(23.4)
(17.1)
(4.6)
(54.1)

(a)

Fair value adjustments include the amortization of the fair value reduction to unearned revenue and related deferred cost
accounts, which resulted from the application of fresh start accounting upon our emergence from bankruptcy.

(b)

Items included in other operating items, net consist of the following: (i) restructuring charges, representing the
streamlining of our organizational structure; (ii) professional, contractual charges and other periodic costs related to the
strategic repositioning of our businesses; (iii) gain or loss on the sale or disposal of assets; and (iv) pension curtailments.
20

Table of Contents
RDA Holding Co., and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(in millions, except share and per share amounts)
(unaudited)
Note 14

Guarantor and Non-Guarantor Financial Information

RDA Holding Co., and our domestic subsidiaries guarantee the Senior Secured Notes issued by RDA (collectively, the "Guarantor
Subsidiaries") jointly and severally, irrevocably and unconditionally. The Guarantor Subsidiaries do not include foreign subsidiaries,
domestic subsidiaries whose assets substantially consist of voting stock of one or more foreign subsidiaries or non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries (subject to certain limited exceptions such as in the event that such non-wholly-owned subsidiary guarantees debt issued
in a capital markets transaction). Our subsidiaries that are not Guarantor Subsidiaries (collectively, the "Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries")
are not guarantors of the Senior Secured Notes.
The following tables present RDA Holding Co. (the parent) and RDA (the issuer), both of which are presented on a stand-alone basis,
Guarantor Subsidiaries on a combined basis and Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries on a combined basis.
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the three months ended March 31, 2012 (Successor Company):
Guarantor
Parent HoldCo

Revenue
Product, distribution and
editorial expenses
Promotion, marketing and
administrative expenses
Other operating items, net
Operating loss

$

Interest expense
Loss (income) from
investment in subsidiaries
Other expense (income), net
(Loss) income before
income taxes
Income tax (benefit) expense
(Loss) income from
continuing operations
before discontinued
operations

—

Issuer
Parent-RDA

$

16.1

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$

63.2

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$

Eliminations

164.1

$

Consolidated

(1.6) $

241.8

—

11.0

32.5

75.7

(1.6)

117.6

—
—
—

28.4
1.0
(24.3)

37.3
1.5
(8.1)

114.5
(1.7)
(24.4)

—
—
—

180.2
0.8
(56.8)

—

17.4

—

—

17.4

7.8
—

(92.2)
101.1

6.9
(95.7)

—
(7.8)

77.5
—

—
(2.4)

(7.8)

(50.6)

80.7

(16.6)

(77.5)

(71.8)

—

(42.8)

30.0

(3.4)

(7.8)

(7.8)

50.7

(13.2)

(77.5)

—
(7.8) $

48.1
98.8

$

(0.3)
(13.5) $

—
(77.5) $

47.8
(7.8)

98.7

$

(13.9) $

(77.7) $

7.9

Income (loss) from
discontinued operations,
net of taxes
Net (loss) profit

$

—
(7.8) $

Comprehensive income
(loss)

$

(7.8) $

8.6

$
22
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Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2012 (Successor Company):
Guarantor
Parent HoldCo

Assets
Current assets
Property and equipment, net
Restricted cash
Goodwill
Other intangible assets, net
Prepaid pension assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Intercompany noncurrent
receivables
Other noncurrent assets
Total assets
Liabilities and
stockholders' equity
Current liabilities
Long-term debt
Unearned revenue
Accrued pension
Postretirement and
postemployment benefits
other than pensions
Intercompany noncurrent
payables
Other noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and
stockholders' equity

$

$

$

$

—
—
—
—
—
—
151.8
—
—
151.8

—
—
—
—

Issuer
Parent-RDA

$

$

$

167.1
32.7
1.6
—
—
117.3
506.1
79.0
21.1
924.9

90.3
570.2
—
—

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$

122.4
7.7
—
243.5
134.6
—
343.0
—
20.9
872.1

$

$

242.3
—
94.4
—

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$

$

$

Eliminations

329.4
11.7
5.6
153.0
167.3
22.3
—
8.9
2.6
700.8

233.4
—
1.4
4.7

—

7.4

—

1.3

—
—
—
151.8

8.9
96.3
773.1
151.8

8.0
10.8
355.5
516.6

71.0
56.5
368.3
332.5

151.8

$

924.9

$

872.1
23

$

700.8

$

$

$

Consolidated

(14.3) $
—
—
—
—
—
(1,000.9)

604.6
52.1
7.2
396.5
301.9
139.6
—

(87.9)
—
(1,103.1) $

—
44.6
1,546.5

(14.3) $
—
—
—

551.7
570.2
95.8
4.7

—

$

8.7

(87.9)
—
(102.2)
(1,000.9)

—
163.6
1,394.7
151.8

(1,103.1) $

1,546.5
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Consolidated Condensed Statement of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2012 (Successor Company):
Guarantor
Parent HoldCo

Net change in cash due to
continuing operating
activities
Net change in cash due to
discontinued operating
activities
Net change in cash due to
operating activities
Net change in cash due to
continuing investing
activities
Net change in cash due to
discontinued investing
activities
Net change in cash due to
investing activities
Net change in cash due to
continuing financing
activities
Net change in cash due to
discontinued financing
activities
Net change in cash due to
financing activities
Effect of exchange rate
changes on cash and cash
equivalents
Net change in cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the period
Cash and cash
equivalents at end of
the period

$

—

Issuer
Parent-RDA

$

—

(14.7) $

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

(4.5) $

—

Eliminations

(6.4) $

Consolidated

(1.1) $

(26.7)

(1.9)

—

—

(1.9)

—

(14.7)

(6.4)

(6.4)

(1.1)

(28.6)

—

116.1

(0.1)

(1.5)

—

114.5

—

—

2.1

—

—

2.1

—

116.1

2.0

(1.5)

—

116.6

—

(48.2)

—

—

—

(48.2)

(0.2)

—

—

(0.2)

—

$

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

—

—

(48.2)

(0.2)

—

—

(48.4)

—

(1.0)

—

1.9

1.1

2.0

—

52.2

(4.6)

(6.0)

—

41.6

—

21.4

7.4

83.5

—

112.3

—

$

73.6

$

2.8
24

$

77.5

$

—

$

153.9
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RDA Holding Co., and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(in millions, except share and per share amounts)
(unaudited)
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the three months ended March 31, 2011 (Successor Company):
Guarantor
Parent HoldCo

Revenue
Product, distribution and
editorial expenses
Promotion, marketing and
administrative expenses
Other operating items, net
Operating loss

$

Interest expense
Other (income) expense, net
Loss (income) from equity
investment
Loss before income taxes
and discontinued
operations

—

Issuer
Parent-RDA

$

$

73.5

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$

Eliminations

195.3

$

Consolidated

(1.8) $

283.8

—

11.0

41.3

87.1

(1.8)

137.6

—
—
—

26.4
4.2
(24.8)

41.9
(1.5)
(8.2)

127.4
1.9
(21.1)

—
—
—

195.7
4.6
(54.1)

—
—

13.8
(6.2)

—
1.4

—
6.3

—
—

13.8
1.5

81.7

47.6

(0.3)

—

(81.7)

(80.0)

(9.3)

(27.4)

129.0

(69.4)

1.7

(14.0)

(1.6)

—

(13.9)

(81.7)

(81.7)

4.7

(25.8)

129.0

(55.5)

—

Income tax expense (benefit)
(Loss) income from
continuing operations
before discontinued
operations

16.8

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

(129.0)

—

Loss from discontinued
operations, net of taxes
Net loss

$

—
(81.7) $

—
(81.7) $

(23.1)
(18.4) $

(3.1)
(28.9) $

—
129.0

$

(26.2)
(81.7)

Comprehensive loss

$

(81.7) $

(49.6) $

(18.3) $

(28.5) $

129.3

$

(48.8)
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RDA Holding Co., and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(in millions, except share and per share amounts)
(unaudited)
Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2011 (Successor Company):
Guarantor
Parent HoldCo

Assets
Current assets
Property and equipment, net
Restricted cash
Goodwill
Other intangible assets, net
Prepaid pension assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Intercompany noncurrent
receivables
Other noncurrent assets
Total assets
Liabilities and
stockholders' equity
Current liabilities
Long-term debt
Unearned revenue
Accrued pension
Postretirement and
postemployment benefits
other than pensions
Intercompany noncurrent
payables
Other noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and
stockholders' equity

$

$

$

$

—
—
—
—
—
—
142.6
—
—
142.6

—
—
—
—

Issuer
Parent-RDA

$

$

$

38.9
33.2
1.7
—
—
114.0
617.1
84.1
21.2
910.2

72.8
603.8
—
—

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$

241.2
8.0
—
243.5
139.4
—
202.4
—
16.8
851.3

$

$

254.9
—
88.0
—

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$

$

$

Eliminations

364.5
10.8
5.0
147.2
168.0
21.5
—
8.1
3.9
729.0

247.4
—
1.6
4.4

—

8.0

—

1.2

—
—
—
142.6

8.1
74.9
767.6
142.6

8.0
23.1
374.0
477.3

76.1
56.1
386.8
342.2

142.6

$

910.2

$

851.3
26

$

729.0

$

$

$

Consolidated

(14.7) $
—
—
—
—
—
(962.1)

629.9
52.0
6.7
390.7
307.4
135.5
—

(92.2)
—
(1,069.0) $

—
41.9
1,564.1

(14.7) $
—
—
—

560.4
603.8
89.6
4.4

—

$

9.2

(92.2)
—
(106.9)
(962.1)

—
154.1
1,421.5
142.6

(1,069.0) $

1,564.1
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RDA Holding Co., and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(in millions, except share and per share amounts)
(unaudited)
Consolidated Condensed Statement of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2011 (Successor Company):
Guarantor
Parent HoldCo

Net change in cash due to
continuing operating
activities
Net change in cash due to
discontinued operating
activities
Net change in cash due to
operating activities
Net change in cash due to
continuing investing
activities
Net change in cash due to
discontinued investing
activities
Net change in cash due to
investing activities
Net change in cash due to
financing activities
Effect of exchange rate
changes on cash and cash
equivalents
Net change in cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the period
Cash and cash
equivalents at end of
the period

$

$

—

Issuer
Parent-RDA

$

—

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$

3.8

—

—

(2.6)

—

—

1.2

—

(4.0)

—

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$

Eliminations

(32.8) $

(3.3) $

(32.3)

—

(2.6)

(32.8)

(3.3)

(34.9)

(0.5)

8.0

—

3.5

—

(0.3)

—

—

(0.3)

—

(4.0)

(0.8)

8.0

—

3.2

—

(43.5)

—

—

—

(43.5)

—

(1.5)

—

2.6

3.3

4.4

—

(49.0)

0.4

(22.2)

—

(70.8)

—

64.8

3.8

100.8

—

169.4

—

$

15.8

$

4.2
27

—

Consolidated

$

78.6

$

—

$

98.6
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Management's discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations ("MD&A") of the Company is intended to
provide a reader of our Consolidated Financial Statements with a narrative from management's perspective on our financial condition,
results of operations, liquidity and certain other factors that may affect our future results. This discussion is organized as follows:
•

Executive Overview

•

Results of Operations

•

Liquidity and Capital Resources

•

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

This discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes presented elsewhere in this
report and with our December 31, 2011 Consolidated Financial Statements filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
Form 10-K. This discussion contains forward-looking statements about our markets, the demand for our products and services and
our expectations regarding future results, as discussed in the section "Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements"
below.
Certain amounts and percentages do not recalculate due to rounding. Any references in MD&A to "we," "us," "RDA," "the Company"
and "our" generally refer to RDA Holding Co. and its subsidiaries.
As discussed in Note 2, Reorganization and Emergence from Chapter 11, in the Notes to our December 31, 2011 Consolidated
Financial Statements, we emerged from chapter 11 bankruptcy protection on February 19, 2010 and adopted fresh start accounting in
accordance with Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC"), Topic 852, Reorganizations. In accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States, we were considered a new company upon our emergence from bankruptcy, with the periods
prior to February 19, 2010 representing the predecessor company ("Predecessor Company") and the periods after February 19, 2010
representing the successor company ("Successor Company"). The periods subsequent to February 20, 2010 include the impact of the
application of fresh start accounting upon our emergence from bankruptcy.
Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements
Certain statements in this MD&A and in future oral and written statements that we make, may be "forward-looking statements."
These statements reflect our beliefs and expectations as to future events and trends affecting our business, consolidated financial
condition and results of operations and discuss, among other things, anticipated future performance and future business plans.
Forward-looking statements are identified by such words and phrases as "prospects," "outlook," "believes," "estimates," "intends,"
"may," "will," "should," "anticipates," "expects" or "plans," or the negative or other similar expressions, or by discussion of trends and
conditions, strategy or risks and uncertainties.
Forward-looking statements are necessarily subject to risks and uncertainties, many of which are outside our control or ability to
predict with accuracy and some of which we might not even anticipate, because they relate to events and depend on circumstances that
may or may not occur in the future. These could cause actual results to differ materially from our forward-looking statements. We
caution you that forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and that our actual results of operations,
financial condition and liquidity and the development of the industry in which we operate may differ materially from those made in or
suggested by the forward-looking statements. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements
are based upon reasonable assumptions at the time made, we can give no assurance that our expectations will be achieved. In
addition, even if our results of operations, financial condition and liquidity, and the development of the industry in which we operate
are consistent with the forward-looking statements, those results or developments may not be indicative of results or developments in
subsequent periods. Future events and actual results, financial and otherwise, may differ materially from the results discussed in the
forward-looking statements. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements.
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Important factors that may cause actual results to differ materially from forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, the
risks and uncertainties set forth in this MD&A and in the "Business" and "Risk Factors" sections contained in our Form 10-K for the
fiscal year 2011, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and include the following:
•

our degree of leverage and concerns about our financial condition;

•

general economic and market conditions;

•

increased competition and other factors affecting the media and publishing industries generally;

•

our ability to anticipate, respond or adapt to trends in what the public finds appealing;

•

the identification and completion of significant transactions;

•

the ability to attract and retain new and younger customers and key personnel;

•

changes in relationships with, or the financial condition of, key suppliers or vendors;

•

declines in advertising revenue or in media spending generally;

•

a failure to maintain circulation levels in a cost-efficient manner;

•

risks relating to the foreign countries where we transact business;

•

a material deterioration in foreign exchange rates with respect to the U.S. dollar;

•

our ability to fulfill our strategy of building our Internet and digital businesses;

•

significant financial restrictions placed on us by the Indenture governing our Senior Secured Notes and the agreements
governing our 2012 Secured Credit Facility and 2011 Unsecured Term Loan (each as defined below);

•

lack of comparable financial data due to the restructuring of our business or the adoption of fresh start accounting;

•

the application of tax laws resulting from our chapter 11 proceedings, which will have an adverse effect on our future cash
tax obligations; and

•

the risk factors set forth under the section titled "Risk Factors" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Any forward-looking statements that we make speak only as of the dates of such statements. We assume no obligation to update or
supplement any forward-looking statements that may become untrue because of subsequent events, whether because of new
information, future events or otherwise, except as otherwise required by law. Comparisons of results for current and any prior periods
are not intended to express any future trends or indications of future performance, unless expressed as such, and should only be
viewed as historical data.
Overview
We are a global, multi-brand and multi-platform media and direct marketing company that educates, entertains and connects audiences
around the world. We are dedicated to providing our customers with the inspiration, ideas and tools to simplify and enrich their lives.
With a database of more than 140 million customer names, we produce and sell print and digital magazines, books, music, videos and
advertising to customers in 78 countries and 21 languages through multiple channels, such as direct mail (including catalogs), the
Internet and retail. Through trusted partners and expert sourcing we co-brand, market and sell other consumer goods and financial
services.
During the first quarter 2012, we concentrated our strategic initiatives towards improving shareholder value and stabilizing our
businesses. We finalized the sales of our Allrecipes.com and Weekly Reader businesses, with cash proceeds used to delever our
balance sheet. Further, we secured replacement financing with a third-party lender. See our "Financing Activities" section below for
further information. As a result, we have enhanced our liquidity and have a stronger cash position, one of our principal objectives.
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Our core businesses continued to face negative pressures, with further declines in our active customer and subscriber base. Factors
affecting our international businesses include unfavorable macro-economic environments, particularly in Europe; challenges in
attracting new customers; and declining active customer base. At the same time, we are in the midst of our transformation from a
traditional direct marketing business focused on mass marketing to a targeted marketing business focused on more customer-centric,
affinity-based and digital marketing. Our North America businesses were negatively affected by declining renewals across certain of
our print magazines, as we focus our customer acquisition and renewal efforts towards digital products; along with lower per-copy
rates on some magazines as a reflection of a change in frequency to include special issues.
In the short-term, we remain focused on an aggressive review of our cost structure and an exploration of various alternatives in our
international markets, including the pursuit of strategic partners to assist in marketing our products through a licensing model. While
our core businesses continued to face challenges, we remain confident in our long-term strategy of investment in our brands,
development of digital products and aligning our marketing methods to capture today's consumer trends.
Financial Highlights
At March 31, 2012, we have three reportable segments which operate our media and direct marketing businesses: North America,
Europe and Asia Pacific and Latin America ("APLA"). Our North America segment primarily operates our media businesses, while
our Europe and APLA segment primarily operate our direct marketing businesses. Total revenue for the three months ended
March 31, 2012 was $241.8. Excluding intercompany eliminations and fair value adjustments, North America, Europe and APLA
segments contributed 41.3%, 38.3% and 20.4% of total revenue, respectively.
For the three months ended March 31, 2012, excluding intercompany eliminations and fair value adjustments, the combined sales of
books, music, other home entertainment products and other products contributed 61.3% of total revenue, while magazine
subscriptions, newsstand sales and advertising contributed 38.7% of total revenue.
We typically generate our strongest revenue in the fourth calendar quarter due to consumer purchases during the holiday season.
Within our North America segment, our revenue and profitability is strongest in the fourth quarter, followed by the second quarter,
due to the increased number of magazine issues within each of those quarters, coupled with the timing of year end annual publications
and consumer holiday purchases in the fourth quarter. Our international segments are also seasonal, with fluctuations in profits as a
result of the timing of customer acquisition mailings (generally made in the first and third quarters, depressing profits in those quarters
as a result), and revenue tending to be strongest in the fourth quarter due to holiday consumer purchases.
Financing Activities
During the three months ended March 31, 2012, the Company executed the financing activities described below in order to improve
our liquidity and cash position. Refer to "Liquidity and Capital Resources — Sufficiency of capital resources" and Note 7, Debt, in
the Notes to our March 31, 2012 Consolidated Financial Statements for further information on these financing activities.
On March 30, 2012, we entered into a $50.0 secured term loan ("2012 Secured Term Loan") and an $11.0 letter of credit facility
("Letter of Credit Facility" and together with the 2012 Secured Term Loan, the "2012 Secured Credit Facility"). The 2012 Secured
Credit Facility matures on March 30, 2015. This new facility effectively replaced the Senior Credit Facility and 2011 Secured Term
Loan, which we had repaid and terminated using proceeds from the sale of Allrecipes.com.
On March 21, 2012, we repaid and terminated our three year revolving credit facility ("Senior Credit Facility"), using $35.0 of net
proceeds from our Allrecipes.com sale. Further, we cash-collateralized our standby letters of credit, $11.4 as of March 21, 2012,
which had been issued under the Senior Credit Facility, and which we intend to reissue under our Letter of Credit Facility.
On March 24, 2012, we amended our $10.0 unsecured term loan ("2011 Unsecured Term Loan") to increase the senior secured
leverage ratio for the quarter ended March 31, 2012 and thereafter.
On March 6, 2012, using a portion of the net proceeds from our sale of Allrecipes.com, we repaid our $45.0 secured term loan ("2011
Secured Term Loan"), along with a $5.0 prepayment premium, which fully satisfied our obligations.
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Discontinued Operations
We reported income from discontinued operations, net of taxes of $47.8 for the three months ended March 31, 2012. This was
primarily driven by our sale of Allrecipes.com, which resulted in a gain of $51.1, net of taxes.
Discontinued operations, for the three months ended March 31, 2012, included the operations of our Lifestyle and Entertainment
Direct ("LED"), Allrecipes.com and Weekly Reader businesses. Each of these businesses was previously a reportable segment; the
Weekly Reader business previously constituted our Other reportable segment. We classified these operations as held for sale at
December 31, 2011, reflecting the Company's intent to sell these businesses. The sales of the Allrecipes.com and Weekly Reader
businesses were completed in the first quarter 2012 and we continue the sales process for LED. Additionally, during the first quarter
2012, our Worldwide Country Tours and Bulgaria businesses were classified as discontinued operations, as a result of the closure of
these businesses. These businesses were previously within our North America and Europe reportable segments, respectively.
Intercompany Eliminations, Corporate Unallocated Expenses and Other
We present our segment revenue and operating (losses) profits consistently with how we manage our operations and how our chief
operating decision maker reviews our results. Revenue and expenses attributable to intercompany transactions are included in the
results of our reportable segments. However, we separately report corporate unallocated expenses, which cover expenses that are not
directly attributable to business unit performance. Corporate unallocated expenses include the cost of corporate governance and other
corporate-related expenses, as well as certain income and expenses associated with our U.S. pension plans and postretirement
healthcare costs, stock awards and other executive compensation programs that are not allocated to our reportable segments. Our
segments include employee bonus expense, assuming we have met and earned 100% of our targeted bonus, to report our segments on
a consistent basis. Any adjustments to the actual payouts and expected funding targets are recorded as an increase or decrease to
corporate unallocated expenses. We separately report the effects of goodwill and other intangible asset impairment charges, certain
fair value adjustments related to emergence from bankruptcy and other operating items, net, because our chief operating decision
maker does not consider these items when assessing business unit performance.
Results of Operations
Upon our emergence from chapter 11 proceedings, fresh start accounting rules under U.S. GAAP required that the Company record its
assets and liabilities at fair value. These adjustments significantly affected the comparability of our results and included fair value
adjustments to goodwill, other intangible assets, fixed assets, pensions and the reduction of a significant amount of unearned revenue.
These adjustments impacted our reported revenue and operating expenses. As the fair value adjustments to unearned revenue are
amortized into revenue over the duration of our subscriptions, our reported revenue after our emergence from chapter 11 is lower than
the amounts we would have otherwise reported. However, with the exception of incremental depreciation as a result of fair value
adjustments to our tangible assets, our chief operating decision maker does not consider the impact of these adjustments in the
operating results, and therefore, these items are largely excluded from our segment results. Other intangible asset amortization is
reported within the corporate unallocated line.
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Reportable segment financial information for three months ended March 31, 2012, compared to three months ended
March 31, 2011:
Successor Company
Three months ended March 31,
2012
2011

Revenue
North America
Europe
Asia Pacific & Latin America
Subtotal
Intercompany eliminations
Fair value adjustments (a)
Total revenue

$

$

Operating (loss) income
North America
Europe
Asia Pacific & Latin America
Subtotal
Corporate unallocated
Fair value adjustments (a)
Other operating items, net (b)
Operating loss
Interest expense
Other (income) expense, net
Income tax benefit
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes
Net loss

$

$

103.4
95.8
51.0
250.2
(1.3)
(7.1)
241.8

$

(6.4)
(18.1)
(2.9)
(27.4)
(24.9)
(3.7)
(0.8)
(56.8)
17.4
(2.4)
(16.2)
47.8
(7.8)

$

$

$

130.9
121.5
57.8
310.2
(1.8)
(24.6)
283.8
0.6
(11.4)
1.8
(9.0)
(23.4)
(17.1)
(4.6)
(54.1)
13.8
1.5
(13.9)
(26.2)
(81.7)

(c)

Fair value adjustments include the amortization of the fair value reduction to unearned revenue and related deferred cost
accounts resulted from the application of fresh start accounting upon our emergence from bankruptcy.

(d)

Items included in other operating items, net consist of the following: (i) restructuring charges, representing the
streamlining of our organizational structure; (ii) professional, contractual charges and other periodic costs related to the
strategic repositioning of our businesses; (iii) gain or loss on the sale or disposal of assets; and (iv) pension curtailments.
See Note 2, Other Operating Items, Net, in the Notes to our March 31, 2012 Consolidated Financial Statements for
further information.

Revenue
Revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2012 decreased $42.0, or 14.8%, to $241.8, as compared to $283.8 for the three
months ended March 31, 2011. Our revenue included the amortization of fair value adjustments, which reduced our unearned revenue
recorded at our emergence from bankruptcy on February 19, 2010 as a result of fresh start accounting. The amortization of fair value
adjustments to unearned revenue reduced revenue by $7.1 for the three months ended March 31, 2012 and $24.6 for three months
ended March 31, 2011.
Excluding the negative effect of foreign currency translation of $5.2, and fair value adjustments, revenue for the three months ended
March 31, 2012 decreased $54.3 or 17.6%, as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2011. Our revenue decline was
principally due to a lower active customer base and lower response rates within certain customer segments, across many of our
markets in Europe and Asia; absence of revenue for the Every Day with Rachael Ray publication, which was sold in October 2011; a
decline in renewals, along with lower per-copy rates, on certain magazines; and lower sales on our Taste of Home annual editions and
Select Edition series in the North America segment.
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Product, Distribution and Editorial Expenses
Product, distribution and editorial expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2012 decreased $20.0 to $117.6, as compared to
$137.6 for the three months ended March 31, 2011. Excluding the positive effect of foreign currency translation of $3.0, product,
distribution and editorial expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2012 decreased $17.0, or 12.3%, as compared to the three
months ended March 31, 2011. Our product, distribution and editorial expenses declined, primarily due to sales volume declines and
the absence of costs for the Every Day with Rachael Ray publication.
Promotion, Marketing and Administrative Expenses
Promotion, marketing and administrative expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2012 decreased $15.5 to $180.2, as
compared to $195.7 for the three months ended March 31, 2011. Excluding the positive effect of foreign currency translation of $4.0,
promotion, marketing and administrative expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2012 decreased $11.5, or 5.9%, as compared
to the three months ended March 31, 2011. The decline in promotion, marketing and administrative expenses was largely driven by
the absence of costs for the Every Day with Rachael Ray publication, sales volume declines and reductions in promotional efforts.
Operating Loss
Operating loss for the three months ended March 31, 2012 increased $2.7 to $56.8, as compared to $54.1 for the three months ended
March 31, 2011. Operating loss for our reportable segments for the three months ended March 31, 2012 increased $18.4 to $27.4, as
compared to $9.0 for the three months ended March 31, 2011. The benefit of foreign exchange movements was minimal on our
segment results during the three months ended March 31, 2012. The decrease was primarily the result of declining revenue, as
described above. This was partially offset by headcount reduction initiatives, resulting, in part, from our 2011 restructuring initiatives.
Corporate unallocated expense for the three months ended March 31, 2012 increased $1.5 to $24.9, as compared to $23.4 for the three
months ended March 31, 2011. Our results were negatively impacted by increased stock-based compensation expense associated with
new equity awards granted under our 2010 Plan and increased bonus expense, due to anticipated funding levels in 2012 compared to
2011. This was partially offset by decreased amortization of other intangible assets resulting from the application of fresh start
accounting and our emergence from bankruptcy and lower overhead costs driven by our 2011 restructuring initiatives.
Other operating items, net for the three months ended March 31, 2012 decreased $3.8 to $0.8, as compared to $4.6 for the three
months ended March 31, 2011. The decrease was primarily due to lower restructuring expense, driven by fewer headcount
restructuring actions in the first quarter of 2012 compared to 2011, and lower professional fees relating to reorganizational efforts.
Interest Expense
Interest expense for the three months ended March 31, 2012 increased $3.6 to $17.4, as compared to $13.8 for the three months ended
March 31, 2011, including the amortization of deferred financing fees and bond discount of $3.1 and $1.1, respectively. The increase
was the result of borrowings under our Senior Credit Facility and 2011 Secured Term Loan for a portion of the three months ended
March 31, 2012, and the write-off of deferred financing fees associated with the repayment and termination of the Senior Credit
Facility in the quarter. See Note 7, Debt, in the Notes to our March 31, 2012 Consolidated Financial Statements for further
information.
Income Taxes
The income tax benefit for the three months ended March 31, 2012 increased $2.3, to $16.2, as compared to a benefit of $13.9 for the
three months ended March 31, 2011. The income tax benefit for the three months ended March 31, 2012 is driven by the Company's
jurisdictional earnings mix of foreign earnings at a low taxed rate and domestic losses at a higher taxed rate. The reported benefit for
the three months ended March 31, 2012 reflects a $10.6 tax benefit related to our domestic continuing operations which is supported
by taxable income generated by the sale of Allrecipes.com, which is included as a component of discontinued operations, as well as a
discrete tax benefit of $4.7 related to the reversal of reserves for uncertain tax positions resulting from the settlement of foreign tax
litigation for the 2007 and 2008 tax years. The income tax benefit recorded in this quarter also reflects the limitation under GAAP that
the tax benefit for the year-to-date loss cannot be greater than the anticipated full year benefit.
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Results of Operations: Reportable Segments
North America
Revenue in our North America segment for the three months ended March 31, 2012 decreased $27.5, or 21.0%, to $103.4, as
compared to $130.9 for the three months ended March 31, 2011. Foreign currency translation had a minimal impact in the quarter.
The decrease was primarily driven by the absence of revenue from the Every Day with Rachael Ray publication; declining renewals,
along with lower per-copy rates, on certain of our food and home magazine titles and our Reader's Digest titles; and lower sales on
certain books, particularly our Taste of Home annual editions and our Select Editions series.
Operating profit (loss) in our North America segment for the three months ended March 31, 2012 decreased $7.0 to an operating loss
of $6.4, as compared to an operating profit of $0.6 for the three months ended March 31, 2011. Foreign currency translation had a
minimal impact in the quarter. The decrease was primarily driven lower revenue described above, offset somewhat by the absence of
the Every Day with Rachael Ray publication, which incurred an operating loss in the prior year.
Europe
Revenue in our Europe segment for three months ended March 31, 2012 decreased $25.7, or 21.2%, to $95.8, as compared to $121.5
for the three months ended March 31, 2011. Excluding the negative effect of foreign currency translation of $4.6, revenue for the three
months ended March 31, 2012 decreased $21.1 or 17.4%, as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2011. This decline was
largely due to a lower active customer base and lower response rates within certain customer segments, on our books and home
entertainment products, primarily in our markets in Central Europe, the German region, France and the Russia region.
Operating loss in our Europe segment for the three months ended March 31, 2012 increased $6.7, or 58.8%, to $18.1, as compared to
$11.4 for the three months March 31, 2011. Excluding the positive effect of foreign currency translation of $0.8, operating loss for the
three months ended March 31, 2012 increased $7.5, or 65.8%, as compared to the three months ended March 31, 2011. The increase
in operating loss was primarily due to lower revenue described above, partially offset by reduced promotional investments and
overhead cost savings resulting from our 2011 headcount reduction initiatives.
Asia Pacific & Latin America
Revenue in our APLA segment for the three months ended March 31, 2012 decreased $6.8, or 11.8%, to $51.0, as compared to $57.8
for the three months ended March 31, 2011. Foreign currency translation had a minimal impact in the quarter. The decline was
primarily driven by a lower active customer base and lower response rates within certain customer segments, in Asia and Latin
America; and softer responses to our promotions, primarily in our market in Brazil, where we were impacted by having delayed our
prior year promotional investments until January 2011; and declining subscription renewals on certain titles. This was somewhat
offset by favorable performance on non-published products in Australia, including a new food-related series.
Operating results in our APLA segment for three months ended March 31, 2012 decreased $4.7 to an operating loss of $2.9, as
compared to an operating profit of $1.8 for the three months ended March 31, 2011. Foreign currency translation had a minimal
impact in the quarter. This increase in operating loss was primarily due to lower revenue described above.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flows
The consolidated statements of cash flows are summarized below:
Successor Company
Three months ended March 31,
2012
2011

Net change in cash due to:
Continuing operating activities
Discontinued operating activities
Operating activities
Continuing investing activities
Discontinued investing activities
Investing activities
Continuing financing activities
Discontinued financing activities
Financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

$

$

(26.7)
(1.9)
(28.6)
114.5
2.1
116.6
(48.2)
(0.2)
(48.4)
2.0
41.6
112.3
153.9

$

$

(32.3)
(2.6)
(34.9)
3.5
(0.3)
3.2
(43.5)
—
(43.5)
4.4
(70.8)
169.4
98.6

Overview
At March 31, 2012, we had $153.9 of cash and cash equivalents. During the three months ended March 31, 2012, there was a net
increase in cash of $41.6, which was primarily due to the net proceeds from our sale of Allrecipes.com and our 2012 Secured Term
Loan, offset, in part, by repayment of debt, the transfer of net proceeds from the Allrecipes.com sale to an escrow account for
distribution by our collateral agent, lower operating cash flows due to reduced business activities, as discussed under our "Results of
Operations" section above, and cash-collateralization of our stand-by letters of credit previously supported by the Senior Credit
Facility.
During the three months ended March 31, 2011, there was a net decrease in cash of $70.8, which is primarily due to our
February 2011 common stock repurchase, employee bonuses, increased promotional spending during our investment quarter, normal
prepaid production costs and capital expenditures, partially offset by cash inflow related to the sale of certain assets.
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash used by continuing operating activities was $26.7 during the three months ended March 31, 2012, which was driven by our
current year operating loss. This was offset, in part, by improvements in our working capital, resulting from the collection of accounts
receivable on the fourth quarter sales and increases in deferred revenue driven by magazine renewals and partnership advertising
advances, negated somewhat by seasonal decreases in our accounts payable, restructuring related payments, and increases in deferred
magazine production costs due to the timing our magazine frequency.
Net cash used by continuing operating activities was $32.3 during the three months ended March 31, 2011. The use of cash was driven
by our operating loss for the quarter and decreases in our working capital, which primarily consisted of payment of employee
bonuses, normal prepaid editorial and production costs, accumulation of inventory in preparation for second quarter mailings
(primarily in Europe) and a prepayment on payroll, due to timing at quarter-end. This was offset, in part, by the collection of accounts
receivable on our fourth quarter sales and receipt of vendor rebates related to our outsourced relationships.
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Cash flows from investing activities
Net cash provided by continuing investing activities was $114.5 during the three months ended March 31, 2012, primarily due to the
sale of Allrecipes.com, which yielded $175.0 in gross proceeds or $150.7 in net proceeds, after our tax liability related to the gain on
the sale and associated professional fees. The net proceeds were used to repay a portion of our outstanding debt as discussed below,
with the remainder held in a restricted account to be used to replenish collateral and fund a tender offer for our Senior Secured Notes,
as required under our Indenture.
Net cash provided by continuing investing activities was $3.5 during the three months ended March 31, 2011, due to the sale of certain
assets, partially offset by normal capital expenditures and investments in new enterprise planning and reporting platforms.
Cash flows from financing activities
Net cash used by continuing financing activities was $48.2 during three months ended March 31, 2012. During the quarter, using net
proceeds from our Allrecipes.com sale, we executed repayment on our 2011 Secured Term Loan, including payment of an early
prepayment penalty. We also repaid our Senior Credit Facility and cash-collateralized our standby letters of credit outstanding
thereunder, which we intend to reissue under our Letter of Credit Facility. These cash outlays were offset, in part, by proceeds from
our 2012 Secured Term Loan, funded on March 30, 2012.
Net cash used by continuing financing activities was $43.5 during the three months ended March 31, 2011, which was the result of our
February 2011 repurchase of common stock.
Debt
Our debt facilities at March 31, 2012 included our Senior Secured Notes, 2011 Unsecured Term Loan and 2012 Senior Credit
Facility. See Note 7, Debt, in the Notes to our March 31, 2012 Consolidated Financial Statements for further information. On
March 6, 2012, we repaid the 2011 Secured Term Loan and on March 21, 2012, we repaid the Senior Credit Facility, using net
proceeds from the sale of our Allrecipes.com business.
A summary of activity for the outstanding debt instruments is as follows:
Successor Company
•

Senior Secured Notes and Indenture: At March 31, 2012, $513.0, net of unamortized discount of $12.0, was outstanding
under the Senior Secured Notes. The Senior Secured Notes bear interest at a variable rate, which is reset quarterly, equal to
LIBOR (subject to LIBOR floor of 3.0%) plus 6.5%. The Indenture governing the Senior Secured Notes includes various
covenants that, among other things, restrict certain payments by us, restrict our ability to merge with another entity, incur or
guarantee debt and sell or transfer assets. Refer to the "Sufficiency of capital resources" section below regarding compliance
with the covenants.

•

2012 Secured Credit Facility: On March 30, 2012, the Company entered into a credit and guarantee agreement (the "Credit
Agreement") with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as administrative agent; the Guarantors (defined therein), Wells
Fargo Principal Lending, LLC as issuing lender, and the lenders thereunder, providing the Company with a $50.0 secured
term loan ("2012 Secured Term Loan") and an $11.0 letter of credit facility ("Letter of Credit Facility" and together with the
2012 Secured Term Loan, the "2012 Secured Credit Facility"). The 2012 Secured Credit Facility matures on March 30,
2015. The term loans under the 2012 Secured Term Loan bear interest at a variable rate per annum, based upon the
Company's election of a prime rate or LIBOR (subject to a floor of 4.0% and 3.0%, respectively) plus 4.0% in the case of
prime rate borrowings and 5.0% in the case of LIBOR borrowings. The drawn letters of credit under the Letter of Credit
Facility bear an interest rate of 6.0% per annum and the Letter of Credit Facility includes a utilization fee of 1.0% per annum,
which will accrue on the total undrawn amount of the Letter of Credit Facility. The 2012 Secured Term Loan has a shortterm repayment of $0.125 due quarterly, which is recorded in current portion of long-term debt in our consolidated balance
sheets.
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•

2011 Unsecured Term Loan: On August 12, 2011, the Company entered into an unsecured term loan and guarantee
agreement with Luxor Capital Group, as administrative agent; the Guarantors (as defined therein); and the lenders thereunder,
consisting of funds affiliated with Luxor Capital Group and Point Lobos Capital, who are shareholders of the Company's
common stock, providing the Company with the $10.0 Unsecured Term Loan. The 2011 Unsecured Term Loan matures in
May 2014 and bears interest at the rate of 11.0% per annum. The 2011 Unsecured Term Loan is fully and unconditionally
guaranteed, on an unsecured basis, jointly and severally by ourselves and by substantially all of our existing and future
wholly-owned direct and indirect domestic subsidiaries. The 2011 Unsecured Term Loan contains mandatory prepayment
provisions in the event of certain events, including certain asset sales, however, certain other indebtedness, including the
Senior Secured Notes, would be paid prior to the 2011 Unsecured Term Loan. In the event of any optional and mandatory
prepayments, we will be required to pay a prepayment premium as set forth in the 2011 Unsecured Term Loan. On
March 16, 2012, we obtained a waiver for the 2011 Unsecured Term Loan from the lenders thereunder, which waived
compliance, as of December 31, 2011, with the financial covenant test contained in the 2011 Unsecured Term Loan. On
March 24, 2012, we amended the 2011 Unsecured Term Loan to increase the senior secured leverage ratio in the financial
covenant for the quarter ended March 31, 2012 and thereafter.

In connection with the 2011 Unsecured Term Loan, the Company issued two tranches of warrants to the lenders under the 2011
Unsecured Term Loan. See Note 10, Common Stock Warrants, in the Notes to our March 31, 2012 Consolidated Financial Statements
for further information.
Sufficiency of capital resources
Our primary sources of operating cash are revenue from non-magazine products (including single and series book sales, music, video
and DVD products), magazine related products (including subscription revenue, advertising revenue and newsstand revenue) and nonpublished products and services (including vitamins and related health products, jewelry, merchandise, wine, mailing list rentals and
royalty and license agreements). Historically, our sources of cash have also included financing sources, including proceeds from the
issuance of the Senior Secured Notes, as well as borrowings under the Senior Credit Facility, the 2011 Secured Term Loan, the 2011
Unsecured Term Loan and the 2012 Secured Credit Facility. Our primary uses of cash are product and promotional costs;
administrative expenses, including compensation, services and supplies; and interest and income taxes.
Our operating cash flows may be impacted by, among other things, the following items: (i) the impact of the global financial
environment on our customers and the stability of the financial, foreign exchange, equity and credit markets, (ii) the speed with which
we manage our cost structure in response to margin compression, (iii) customer demand for our products, (iv) the ability or
willingness of our vendors to supply products and services to us on favorable terms and (v) rapid changes in the highly competitive
market in which we operate.
Since emerging from Chapter 11 in February 2010, we have experienced operating losses and cash flow deficits. Deteriorating
macroeconomic and industry conditions and uncertainty have had a significant negative impact on the demand for our products and,
therefore, the cash flows of our businesses. Most of our revenue is based upon discretionary spending by consumers, which is
influenced by customer preferences and general economic conditions. Customer demand has declined in recent periods due to
changing preferences as a result of increased competition from alternative content providers and pricing pressures. In addition, a
longer term trend has been a decrease in revenue from advertising as advertising budgets have scaled back and advertisers have shifted
their advertising dollars to more directed platforms, including the internet. We initiated various measures in 2011 to mitigate the
impact on our cash flows, including reducing our cost structure by lowering headcount and overhead expenses and expanding our
digital presence and products. Notwithstanding these initiatives, in recent periods our business continued to face a number of
challenges, including declines in our active customer base, softness in advertising in several of our publications and in our
international markets, which have had an adverse impact on our results of operations. We expect some of these conditions to continue
throughout 2012. Furthermore, the uncertainty of a continuing economic recession in the United States, Europe and other economies
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position or operating results.
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In addition to the initiatives discussed above, we have taken steps to sell or shutdown non-core or underperforming businesses. On
February 8, 2012, we sold our Weekly Reader business and on February 29, 2012, we sold our Allrecipes.com business. Proceeds
from the Weekly Reader sale were not material. The net proceeds from the Allrecipes.com sale of approximately $150.0 were used to
repay the 2011 Secured Term Loan and the Senior Credit Facility and related fees. The remaining proceeds will be used for certain
capital expenditures as allowed under the Indenture and a tender offer for the Senior Secured Notes. In addition, we shut down our
Worldwide Country Tours business and our RD Bulgaria operations during the first quarter of 2012 and are continuing the process to
sell our LED business.
While we continue to have confidence in our overall strategy and intend to work vigorously on addressing the challenges in our
business, we cannot be certain that we will be able to fully realize all of the benefits of our operational and strategic initiatives
discussed above or that, even if realized, those benefits will be sufficient to fully offset the impact of a weaker business environment
and global economic conditions on our business. To ensure continued availability of working capital in the near term, during the first
quarter of 2012, we secured new financing, in the form of the 2012 Secured Credit Facility, which replaced a portion of the debt that
we repaid using the proceeds of the Allrecipes.com sale. The proceeds from the 2012 Secured Credit Facility will be used for working
capital and general corporate purposes.
Other factors impact our cash availability and use. As of March 31, 2012, we had $153.9 in cash and cash equivalents, of which
approximately $72.3 was held by foreign subsidiaries. At any given time, approximately $60.0 to $70.0 of our global cash is generally
unavailable for general corporate use as it is held in various worldwide bank accounts for local needs, such as prefunding payrolls and
certain payables, and local working capital needs. Further, at any given time, we generally have legally or contractually restricted
cash of $12.0 to $18.0, required for sweepstakes deposits, cash collateral for credit card transactions and postal deposits. The taxrelated impact of repatriation of cash on hand from our foreign subsidiaries to the United States is not expected to be material. We are
also involved in disputes with the tax authorities in Brazil, against which we paid $4.5 in April 2012, and we continue to negotiate a
settlement with the Federal Trade Commission in connection with its investigation with respect to sales of a fitness product by our
LED business. See "Item 1. Legal Proceedings."
We were in compliance with all covenants contained in our debt agreements as of March 31, 2012. However, our ability to comply
with the covenants in our debt agreements, particularly the financial covenant in our 2012 Secured Credit Facility, which requires us
to meet a total leverage ratio, a first-out lien leverage ratio and a cash interest coverage ratio, each on a quarterly basis, and in our
2011 Unsecured Term Loan, which requires us to meet a senior secured leverage ratio, respectively, depends on our results of
operations and our operational and strategic initiatives continuing in line with our expectations. Adverse changes in operating
performance, further deterioration in business conditions or an unexpected event could have an adverse impact on our financial
performance and could cause us to fail to satisfy the financial covenant. Our results of operations also may be affected by any of the
factors referred to above under "Cautionary Note Regarding Forward Looking Statements." If we fail to meet the financial covenant
in debt agreements, we would have to either seek a waiver from the lenders thereunder or identify another source of working capital
funding.
An important factor that has an impact on our ability to obtain financing, and the cost to us of such financing, is our corporate credit
ratings. Our corporate credit ratings and outlooks at March 31, 2012, which last changed in August 2011, are summarized below:
Rating

Outlook

B3
CCC+

Negative
Negative

Rating Agency

Moody's
Standard & Poor's

Credit rating agencies review their ratings periodically and, therefore, the credit rating assigned to us by each agency may be subject
to revision at any time. Accordingly, we are not able to predict whether our current credit ratings will remain as disclosed above.
Factors that can affect our credit ratings include, but are not limited to, changes in our operating performance, the economic
environment, conditions in the markets and industries in which we operate, our financial position and changes in our business
strategy. Although the impact that these ratings changes will have on our ability to raise new capital, receive other forms of credit
extensions or the cost at which the new capital may be negotiated has yet to be seen, it is likely to be more challenging for us to do so.
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Based on our current and anticipated levels of operations and conditions in our markets and industry, we believe that our cash on hand
and anticipated cash flows from operations and new financing will be adequate for us to meet our working capital, capital expenditure,
debt service and other funding requirements for the next twelve months. However, our ability to meet these needs, and to comply with
the financial covenants in our debt agreements, depends on operating performance and on realizing the expected benefits of our
operating and strategic initiatives, which are intended to reduce costs, further reduce our debt levels and improve operating results and
cash flows. Furthermore, as noted above, our results of operations are materially impacted by prevailing economic conditions and
other factors, some of which are beyond our control. In light of these challenging circumstances, we are taking further steps to reduce
our cash requirements, including having executed additional restructuring actions in the first quarter 2012, mostly in North America,
to achieve a sustainable cost structure and reducing debt and related debt service through selected asset sales such as our sale of
Allrecipes.com. We cannot assure you, however, that we will be able to successfully implement these initiatives or that, even if we
are able to implement them, these initiatives will be sufficient to fully address our longer-term liquidity needs.
If our cash on hand and cash flows from operations were not sufficient to fully fund our working capital and other liquidity
requirements, we would need to obtain funding from other sources. However, we expect that, as a result of the factors described
above, including current economic and market conditions, our current leverage and recent operating results, and our current credit
ratings, it may be difficult for us to obtain additional debt or equity financing on terms that are acceptable to us, if at all. Also, our
debt agreements contain covenants that limit our ability to incur additional debt, and those lenders may be unwilling to modify or
waive those covenants if such modifications or waivers are necessary. In addition, while affiliates of certain of our shareholders
provided us with funds in the past under the 2011 Secured Term Loan and the 2011 Unsecured Term Loan, neither they nor any other
shareholders have agreed or are under any obligation to provide us with any further funding. If we were unable to obtain additional
financing, we would need to pursue one or more alternative solutions, such as amending or restructuring our debt or selling additional
assets.
Collateral requirements
The Senior Secured Notes and our 2012 Secured Credit Facility are secured by a first priority security interest on substantially all of
the assets of the Company and the Guarantors, including 100.0% of the capital stock of the Company and its domestic subsidiaries and
65.0% of the capital stock of their respective first-tier foreign subsidiaries, in each case subject to certain exceptions set forth in the
Indenture and related documentation.
As of March 31, 2012, excluding intercompany assets, our non-guarantor subsidiaries represented approximately 44.7% of our total
assets. The value of the collateral in the event of liquidation may be materially different from book value.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In September 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2011-08,
Testing Goodwill for Impairment ("ASU 2011-08"), which represents an update to ASC 350, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other. ASU
2011-08 simplifies how entities test goodwill for impairment. ASU 2011-08 permits entities to first assess qualitative factors to
determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as a basis for
determining whether to perform a two-step goodwill impairment test. ASU 2011-08 is effective for the Company in the first quarter
of its fiscal year ending December 31, 2012. The Company adopted this guidance effective January 1, 2012, and it did not have a
material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-05, Presentation of Comprehensive Income ("ASU 2011-05"), which represents an
update to ASC 220, Comprehensive Income ("ASC 220"). ASU 2011-05 provides new disclosure guidance for comprehensive
income, requiring presentation of each component of net income along with total net income, each component of other comprehensive
income along with a total for other comprehensive income and a total amount for comprehensive income. An entity will have the
option to present these items in one continuous statement or two separate but consecutive statements. An entity will no longer be
permitted to present components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders' equity. In
December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-12, Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the Presentation of
Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05 ("ASU
2011-12"), which represents an update to ASC 220. ASU 2011-12 defers only those changes in ASU 2011-05 that relate to the
presentation of reclassification adjustments. These updates are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011 and for
interim periods within those years. The Company adopted this guidance effective January 1, 2012, and it did not have a material
impact on our consolidated financial statements.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Foreign currency exchange rate risk
The functional currency for our foreign operations is the local currency. In the normal course of business, significantly all of the
transactions of our foreign operations occur in local currencies. However, on occasion, certain transactions are conducted in
currencies that differ from the local currency. Our earnings are sensitive to the impact of changes in foreign currency exchange rates
on certain identifiable transactions. We seek to manage this exposure in part through operational means, to the extent possible, by
matching functional currency revenue and costs, and matching functional currency assets and liabilities. Exchange rate gains or losses
related to foreign currency transactions are recognized as transaction gains or losses in our consolidated statements of comprehensive
income (loss) along with the underlying transactions. As of March 31, 2012, our financial instruments consisted of short-term
receivables and payables whose carrying value approximated fair value.
Interest rate risk
The Senior Secured Notes and the 2012 Secured Credit Facility each provide for a variable rate of interest and therefore are exposed to
interest rate changes. However, if LIBOR increases 1.0% from present levels there would be no change in annual interest expense
because current LIBOR rates are well below the LIBOR floor on the Senior Secured Notes (3.0%).
Each quarter point change in LIBOR above 3.0% would result in a $1.3 change in our annual interest expense on the Senior Secured
Notes.
Item 4. Controls and Procedures
The Company's management evaluated, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, the
effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act")) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation,
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were
effective as of the end of the period covered in this report.
There has been no change in the Company's internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) in the quarter ended March 31, 2012 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II — OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings
From time to time, we are involved in a variety of claims, lawsuits, investigations and proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of
business.
As previously disclosed, on April 19, 2010, the Federal Trade Commission ("FTC") issued a Civil Investigative Demand requesting
the production of documents and information, regarding the marketing of the Ab Circle Pro fitness product, to Direct Entertainment
Media Group, Inc. ("DEMG"), a subsidiary of The Reader's Digest Association, Inc., as well as certain third parties involved in the
manufacture and promotion of the product. DEMG provided its initial responses by August 23, 2010 and had not heard from the FTC
until June 2011, at which time the FTC indicated it would seek authority to enter into consent negotiations with DEMG regarding the
terms of a Consent Order. On October 5, 2011, the FTC indicated that it had received authority from the Bureau of Consumer
Protection to enter into consent negotiations. The FTC also indicated that its proposed Consent Order would include The Readers
Digest Association, Inc. and Direct Holdings Americas, Inc. as parties to the settlement and injunctive relief regulating certain
marketing activities in the future, and that it would seek restitution. We are currently in consent negotiations with the FTC and both
parties are working toward reaching a mutually agreeable settlement. However, if we are unsuccessful in reaching a mutually
agreeable settlement with the FTC, the matter will result in litigation. If litigation results, we intend to vigorously defend our position;
however, we cannot predict the outcome or the timing of litigation. If a settlement is reached, we expect it to occur in the second or
third quarter of 2012. Although the Company believes that the amounts reserved are adequate based on currently available
information, the estimation process involves a considerable amount of judgment by management and ultimate amounts could vary
materially. Either a settlement with the FTC or litigation over the matter could have a material impact on our financial condition and
liquidity.
On December 30, 2011, the Polish Office for the Protection of Consumers and Competition ("UOKiK") issued a decision in its
consumer protection proceeding against Reader's Digest Przeglad Sp. z o.o. (Reader's Digest Poland, "RDP"). UOKiK's takes the
position that RDP's sweepstakes-based direct mail marketing model makes use of practices which may mislead consumers and/or fail
to provide clear and complete information on the details of the distance-selling contracts executed between RDP and the consumers.
The decision requires RDP to (i) pay a fine of approximately $1.3, (ii) announce the decision on its website and in two national papers
and (iii) change certain of its promotional materials. RDP filed an appeal on January 16, 2012, with the consumer protection/
competition court, and UOKiK's decision is not binding prior to the consumer protection/competition court's ruling on appeal. A
ruling by the appellate court is expected in six to twelve months. Although we cannot predict the final outcome of this matter, based
on the information presently available to us, management does not believe that the ultimate resolution of this investigation will have a
material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.
Item 1A. Risk Factors
There have been no material changes to the risk factors disclosed in the section titled "Risk Factors" in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for fiscal year 2011 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, and such risk factors are incorporated by
reference herein. In addition, see "Part I - Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—
Liquidity—Debt" and "—Liquidity—Sufficiency of Capital Resources" for a discussion of risks related to our capital resources and
cash position, and a discussion of our debt agreements and risks associated with compliance with covenants contained therein.
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
There were no repurchases of common stock by the Company during the quarter ended March 31, 2012. We made no unregistered
sales of our equity securities during the three months ended March 31, 2012.
Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.
Not applicable.
Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.
Not applicable.
Item 5. Other Information.
Not applicable.
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Item 6. Exhibits
Exhibit
Number

10.1
10.2
10.3

31.1
31.2
32.1
32.2
101

Description

Employment Agreement dated as of January 9, 2012, between The Reader's Digest Association, Inc., RDA Holding Co.
and Robert Guth.
Stock Purchase Agreement by and among Meredith Corporation, Allrecipes.com, Inc. and The Reader's Digest
Association, Inc., dated as of January 23, 2012.
Credit and Guarantee Agreement, dated March 30, 2012, by and among the Company, Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as administrative agent, Wells Fargo Principal Lending, LLC as issuing lender, the Guarantors named
therein, and the lenders thereunder (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K (File
No. 333-170143) filed with the SEC on April 3, 2012 and incorporated herein by reference).
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Interactive Data File.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
RDA HOLDING CO.
Dated: May 8, 2012

By: /s/ Robert E. Guth
Robert E. Guth
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 10.1
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") dated as of January 9, 2012 (the "Effective Date"), between The
Reader's Digest Association, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), RDA Holding Co., a Delaware corporation ("RDA
Holding"), and Robert Guth ("Executive").
WHEREAS, Executive was elected by the Board of Directors of the Company and RDA Holding to be the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company and RDA Holding effective as of September 12, 2011, and accepted employment as such (the "Employment
Date");
WHEREAS, the Company desires to continue to employ Executive as its Chief Executive Officer and Executive is willing to
serve in such capacity for the period and upon such other terms and conditions of this Agreement.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements, provisions and covenants contained herein, and intending
to be legally bound hereby, the parties hereto agree as set forth below:
Term. (a) Duration. The term of Executive's employment under this Agreement shall continue until December 31,
1.
2013, unless terminated earlier as hereinafter provided (the "Expiration Date"). The period of time from the Employment Date through
the termination of Executive's employment under this Agreement is herein referred to as the "Term."
No Obligation. The parties agree and acknowledge that, should Executive and the Company choose to
(b)
continue Executive's employment for any period of time following the Expiration Date without extending the term of Executive's
employment under this Agreement or entering into a new written employment agreement, Executive's employment with the Company
shall be "at will," such that the Company may terminate Executive's employment at any time, with or without reason and with or
without notice, and Executive may resign at any time, with or without reason and with or without notice.
(c)

Definitions. For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms, as used herein, shall have the definitions

set forth below.
"Affiliate(s)" means, with respect to any specified Person, any other Person that directly or indirectly, through one
or more intermediaries, Controls, is Controlled by, or is under common Control with, such specified Person, provided that, in
any event, any business in which the Company has any direct or indirect ownership interest shall be treated as an Affiliate of
the Company.
"Approved Change in Control" means a Change in Control as defined in the RDA Holding Co. 2010 Equity
Incentive Plan provided that such Change of Control is approved by the majority of the Current Board, and excluding clause
(b) of such definition.
"Control" (including, with correlative meanings, the terms "Controlled by" and "under common Control with"), as
used with respect to any Person, means the direct or indirect possession of the power to direct or cause the direction of the
management or policies of such Person, whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract

or otherwise.
"Current Board" means (i) the members of the RDA Holding Board who as of the Effective Date were members of
the RDA Holding Board, and (ii) the members of the RDA Holding Board whose election or nomination for election was
approved by a majority of the Current Board.
"Person" means any individual, firm, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, trust, joint venture,
association, governmental entity, unincorporated entity or other entity.
2.

Duties and Responsibilities.

(a)
During the Term, Executive agrees to be employed and devote substantially all of Executive's business
time, attention and efforts to the Company and RDA Holding and the promotion of its interests and the performance of Executive's
duties and responsibilities hereunder, upon the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Executive shall render Executive's services
hereunder as Chief Executive Officer of the Company and RDA Holding, with the duties, responsibilities and authority commensurate
with Executive's status, including any duties and responsibilities as directed from time to time by the Board of Directors of the
Company (the "Board") and the Board of Directors of RDA Holding (the "RDA Holding Board") consistent with Executive's position
hereunder. Executive shall report to the Board and the RDA Holding Board. In addition, the Company may, from time to time, direct
Executive to perform similar duties and hold the same or similar offices for any of its Affiliates. As of the Employment Date and
during the Term, Executive shall be appointed or elected (and re-elected, as applicable) as a member of the Board and the RDA
Holding Board.
Place of Employment; Business Travel. During the Term, Executive's principal place of employment shall
(b)
be at the Company's New York, New York or White Plains, New York office. Executive acknowledges that Executive's duties and
responsibilities shall require Executive to travel on business to the extent reasonably necessary to fully perform Executive's duties and
responsibilities hereunder.
(c)
Board Membership; No Conflict. During the Term, except as set forth on Exhibit A which appointments
were in existence prior to the Employment Date, Executive shall not be permitted to be a member of the board of directors of any forprofit company without the consent of the Company (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld) (for all purposes under this
Agreement, any required consent of the Company shall be evidenced by the written approval of the Chairman of the Board); provided
that, Executive may serve, without approval, on the boards of directors of not-for-profit entities; provided further that, such activities
do not interfere with the performance of Executive's duties and responsibilities hereunder.
3.
Compensation and Related Matters. (a) Base Salary. During the Term, for all services rendered under this
Agreement, Executive shall receive an aggregate annual base salary ("Base Salary") at an initial rate of $1,200,000, payable in
accordance with the Company's applicable payroll practices. Base Salary shall be subject to review by the Compensation Committee
of the Board (the "Committee") or, if applicable, the Board, for increase, but not decrease, in its sole discretion and references in this
Agreement to "Base Salary" shall be deemed to refer to the most recently effective annual base salary rate; provided however that it is
not anticipated that the Base Salary will be increased during the Term.
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(b)
Bonus Opportunities. During the Term, Executive shall be eligible to receive an annual cash bonus under
the Company's annual management incentive plan as in effect from time to time (the "Annual Bonus") based on Executive's
achievement of the financial and/or other goals ("Goals") established by the Committee or, if applicable, the Board, after consultation
with Executive, provided, that the Annual Bonus payable to Executive upon achievement of the applicable annual Goals shall be
$400,000 (the "Target Bonus"), and payment in the case of overachievement or underachievement of the Goals shall be adjusted from
the Target Bonus consistent with the formula applied to other senior executives of the Company for similar performance. For 2011,
the Target Bonus shall be pro-rated from the Employment Date.
Any Annual Bonus that Executive shall actually become entitled to receive pursuant to the arrangements described above, will be
payable by the Company at such time and in such manner that bonuses are paid to other senior executives of the Company in
accordance with the terms of the applicable annual management incentive plan, and is in any event intended to be paid as "short-term
deferral" income, within the meaning of Section 409A (as such term is defined in Section 16 below).
Benefits and Perquisites. During the Term, Executive shall be entitled to participate in the benefit and
(c)
perquisite plans and programs, commensurate with Executive's position, that are established by the Company from time to time for
executive employees generally, subject to the terms and conditions of such plans.
(d)
Vacation. During the Term, Executive shall be entitled to paid vacation in accordance with the Company's
vacation policies applicable to senior executives of the Company, but in no event less than four (4) weeks per year.
(e)

Expenses.

(i)
During the Term, the Company shall promptly reimburse Executive for Executive's reasonable
business expenses incurred in connection with performing Executive's duties hereunder, in accordance with Company policy,
as in effect from time to time.
(ii)
During the Term, the Company shall provide housing in New York City to Executive at the
Company's expense, and shall provide reimbursement to Executive of commuting expenses (between North Carolina or Florida
and New York) for Executive and his spouse, up to five round-trips per month each. In addition, if Executive is required to
work in White Plains, New York, the Company shall provide Executive with car service from New York City to the White
Plains office.
Legal Fees. The Company shall pay all reasonable attorneys' fees and disbursements incurred by Executive
(f)
in connection with the negotiation and documentation of this Agreement (and any equity awards), up to a maximum of $8,500. Any
reimbursement pursuant to this Section 3(g) shall be paid to Executive promptly upon remittance of documentation of such fees.
(g)
Equity Compensation Opportunities. The Company shall grant to Executive an initial equity award under
the RDA Holding Co. 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, as soon as reasonably practicable after the Effective Date. In addition to the initial
equity award, Executive shall be eligible to receive additional equity awards on an annual basis, subject to such terms as may be
determined by the Board.
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4.

Separation from Service with the Company.
(a)

Death or Disability.

(i)
Executive's employment shall automatically terminate upon Executive's death. The
Company may terminate Executive's employment hereunder in the event of Executive's "Disability" (as defined below) upon
thirty (30) days' written notice to Executive. In the event of a termination of Executive's employment hereunder by reason of
death or by reason of Disability, the Company shall pay to Executive or Executive's estate, as applicable, any accrued but
unpaid Base Salary, accrued but unused vacation time, unreimbursed business expenses, and unpaid Annual Bonus for any
completed performance period prior to the year of termination, and Executive or Executive's estate shall be entitled to receive
employee benefits pursuant to the terms of the benefit plans and programs applicable to terminated employees (collectively, the
"Accrued Rights"). In all cases where Accrued Rights are payable to Executive, Accrued Rights shall be payable on their
normal payment dates; provided that accrued but unused vacation time shall be paid within 30 days following the date of
termination of Executive's employment. In addition, Executive shall be entitled to a pro-rata portion of the Annual Bonus that
relates to the performance period in which the termination of employment occurs, based on actual results of the Company as of
the date of termination, which amount shall be calculated based upon a formula, the denominator of which shall be 365 and the
numerator of which shall be the number of days during the applicable performance period during which Executive was
employed by the Company, and shall be paid within sixty (60) days following the date of termination (the "Pro-Rata Bonus").
(ii)
For purposes of this Agreement, "Disability" means Executive has been physically or
mentally incapable for six (6) consecutive months (or six (6) months in any twelve (12) month period) to perform Executive's
duties hereunder, as determined reasonably and in good faith by the Board.
(b)

By the Company for Cause or By Executive Without Good Reason.

(i)
The Company may terminate Executive's employment hereunder for "Cause" (as defined
below) at any time upon written notice to Executive and Executive may terminate Executive's employment hereunder without
"Good Reason" (as defined below) at any time upon thirty (30) days' written notice to the Company. In the event the Company
terminates Executive's employment hereunder for Cause or Executive terminates Executive's employment hereunder without
Good Reason, Executive shall be entitled to Executive's Accrued Rights and the Company shall have no further obligations to
Executive under this Agreement.
(ii)
For purposes of this Agreement, "Cause" means: (A) Executive's willful failure to
substantially perform Executive's duties hereunder (other than due to physical or mental illness) after written notice of such
failure to Executive, (B) Executive's conviction of, or plea of guilty or nolo contendere to a felony (or the equivalent of a felony
in a jurisdiction other than the United States) other than traffic violations, (C) Executive's material breach of this Agreement
that, to the extent curable, is uncured by Executive promptly following receipt of written notice given by the Company of such
breach, (D) Executive's material violation of the Company's written policies of a nature that has a material detrimental impact
on the Company or its Affiliates and that, to the extent curable, is uncured by Executive promptly following receipt of written
notice given
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by the Company of such breach; (E) Executive's fraud or embezzlement with respect to the Company or its Affiliates;
(F) Executive's misappropriation or misuse of funds or property belonging to the Company or its Affiliates that is more than de
minimis in nature; (F) Executive's use of illegal drugs or misuse of prescription drugs that interferes with the performance of
Executive's duties hereunder; or (G) Executive's gross misconduct, whether or not done in connection with employment, other
than an action done in the good faith belief that it was in the best interests of the Company, that adversely affects the business
or reputation of the Company, its Affiliates.
(iii)
For purposes of this Agreement, "Good Reason" means (A) any diminution in
Executive's title or position or a material diminution in Executive's duties, authorities or responsibilities (excluding for this
purpose an insubstantial or inadvertent action taken in good faith and which is remedied by the Company promptly after receipt
of notice thereof given by Executive); (B) any material breach by the Company of this Agreement that, to the extent curable, is
uncured by the Company promptly following receipt of written notice thereof from Executive; (C) any material reduction of
Executive's Base Salary or Target Bonus; (D) the transfer or relocation of Executive's principal place of employment to a
location more than forty (40) miles from New York, New York (; (E) any failure to re-elect Executive to the Board if the
Company is not public, or to nominate Executive for election to the Board if the Company is public, or the removal of
Executive from the Board other than for cause in accordance with the Company's by-laws or in connection with a termination
for "Cause" under the terms of this agreement; or (F) other than in connection with an Approved Change of Control, the failure
of the Company to obtain the assumption of this Agreement by any Person which at any time, whether by purchase, merger or
otherwise, directly or indirectly acquires all or substantially all of the assets or business of the Company and the failure to
deliver a copy of the document effecting such assumption to Executive upon Executive's written request.
By the Company Other Than for Cause or by Executive for Good Reason. The Company may terminate
(c)
Executive's employment hereunder other than for Cause (and other than due to Disability) at any time upon written notice to
Executive and Executive may terminate Executive's employment hereunder for Good Reason within thirty (30) days following the
occurrence of the event constituting Good Reason upon thirty (30) days' written notice to the Company. In the event of a termination
of Executive's employment hereunder (i) by the Company other than for Cause (but not in connection with an Approved Change of
Control as set forth in paragraph (d) below), or (ii) by Executive for Good Reason, Executive shall be entitled to Executive's Accrued
Rights plus the following benefits (collectively, the "Separation Benefits"): (i) a severance payment equal to the sum of
(A) Executive's then current Base Salary plus (B) the Target Bonus plus (C) a pro-rata portion of the Target Bonus for the calendar
year in which the termination occurs which pro rata amount shall be calculated based upon a formula, the denominator of which shall
be 365 and the numerator of which shall be the number of days during the applicable performance period during which Executive was
employed by the Company; which aggregate amount shall be paid, subject to the provisions of Section 16 hereof, in a lump-sum on
the fifty third (53rd) day following the date of termination; (ii) coverage or monthly payments equal to the applicable COBRA
premium rate, if any, for Executive, Executive's spouse and Executive's eligible dependents for twelve (12) months with respect to any
welfare benefit plans for which Executive elects COBRA coverage (provided that any such payments otherwise payable to Executive
within the first fifty two (52) days following such termination shall not be paid on the otherwise scheduled payment date but shall
instead accumulate and be paid on the fifty third (53rd) day following the date of termination) (the benefits described in this subsection
(ii), the "COBRA Benefits"); and (iii) Executive's Accrued
5

Rights. Notwithstanding the foregoing, unless, on or prior to the fifty second (52nd) day following the date of termination of
employment, Executive shall have signed the Release of Claims (the "Release") in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B and such
Release shall have become effective in accordance with its terms, (1) no payment shall be paid or made available to Executive under
clause (i) of this Section 4(c), (2) the Company shall be relieved of all obligations to provide or make available any further benefits to
Executive pursuant to clause (ii) of this Section 4(c) and (3) Executive shall forfeit any portion of any equity award that vested
pursuant to clause (iv) of this Section 4(c). Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, payment of any or all of the
Separation Benefits is expressly contingent upon Executive's continued substantial compliance with the terms and conditions of
Sections 6, 7, 8 and 9 of this Agreement. Executive recognizes that, except as expressly provided in this Section 4 or pursuant to the
terms of Executive's equity grant agreements, no compensation is owed to Executive after termination of Executive's employment.
(d)
Expiration of Term; Approved Change of Control. If Executive's employment shall terminate by reason of
the expiration of the Term, Executive shall be entitled to the Accrued Rights. In addition, if Executive's employment shall terminate
in connection with an Approved Change of Control at any time after execution of the applicable transaction agreement and within 30
days of the consummation of the Approved Change of Control, Executive shall be entitled to the Accrued Rights and the COBRA
Benefits.
Resignation from Board. Upon termination of Executive's employment for any reason, and regardless of
(e)
whether Executive continues as a consultant to the Company, upon the Company's request Executive agrees to resign, as of the date of
such termination of employment or such other date requested, from the Board and any committees thereof (and, if applicable, from the
board of directors (and any committees thereof) of any subsidiary or Affiliate of the Company) to the extent Executive is then serving
thereon.
Amounts Due Under Plans. Subject to the provisions hereof, the payment of any amounts accrued under
(f)
any benefit plan, program or arrangement in which Executive participates shall be subject to the terms of the applicable plan, program
or arrangement, and any elections Executive has made thereunder.
(g)
Waiver of Notice. The Board may waive any notice required of Executive and Executive may waive any
notice required of the Company under this Section 4 without liability, penalty or cost.
5.
Acknowledgments. (a) Executive acknowledges that the Company has expended and shall continue to expend
substantial amounts of time, money and effort to develop business strategies, employee and customer relationships and goodwill and
build an effective organization. Executive acknowledges that Executive is and shall become familiar with the Company's Confidential
Information (as defined below), including trade secrets, and that Executive's services are of special, unique and extraordinary value to
the Company, its subsidiaries and Affiliates. Executive acknowledges that the Company has a legitimate business interest and right in
protecting its Confidential Information, business strategies, employee and customer relationships and goodwill, and that the Company
would be seriously damaged by the disclosure of Confidential Information and the loss or deterioration of its business strategies,
employee and customer relationships and goodwill.
(b)
Executive acknowledges (i) that the business of the Company, its subsidiaries and Affiliates is global in
scope and without geographical limitation and (ii)
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notwithstanding the jurisdiction of formation or principal office of the Company, its subsidiaries and Affiliates, or the location of any
of their respective executives or employees (including, without limitation, Executive), it is expected that the Company and its
subsidiaries and Affiliates will have business activities and have valuable business relationships within their respective industries
throughout the world. Executive also agrees and acknowledges that the potential harm to the Company of the non-enforcement of
Sections 6, 7, 8, 9 and 12 outweighs any potential harm to Executive of its enforcement by injunction or otherwise.
(c)
Executive acknowledges that he has carefully read this Agreement and has given careful consideration to
the restraints imposed upon Executive by this Agreement, and is in full accord as to the necessity of such restraints for the reasonable
and proper protection of the Confidential Information, business strategies, employee and customer relationships and goodwill of the
Company and its subsidiaries and Affiliates now existing or to be developed in the future. Executive expressly acknowledges and
agrees that each and every restraint imposed by this Agreement is reasonable with respect to subject matter, time period and
geographical area. Executive further acknowledges that although Executive's compliance with the covenants contained in Sections 6
and 7 may prevent Executive from earning a livelihood in a business similar to the business of the Company, Executive's experience
and capabilities are such that Executive has other opportunities to earn a livelihood and adequate means of support for Executive and
Executive's dependents.
Restrictive Covenants. (a) Noncompetition and Nonsolicitation. Executive agrees that Executive shall not, while an
6.
employee of the Company and during the one (1) year period following termination of employment (such one-year period, the
"Restriction Period"), directly or indirectly, without the prior written consent of the Company:
(i)
engage in activities or businesses anywhere in the world on behalf of any Person that is in
competition with a portion of the Company's business from which the Company derives at least 15% of its revenues based on
the Company's fiscal prior to the earlier of the activity or termination ("Competitive Activities"), including (A) selling goods or
services of the type sold by the Company or any of its subsidiaries; (B) soliciting or attempting to solicit any customer or client
or prospective customer or client of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or Affiliates including, without limitation, to
purchase any goods or services of the specific type sold by the Company or any of its subsidiaries from anyone other than the
Company or any of its subsidiaries; and (C) assisting any Person in any way to do, or attempt to do, anything prohibited by
(A) or (B) above; provided, however, that the foregoing shall not prevent or be violated by Executive's service in a
noncompetitive portion of a company or business enterprise which is engaged in Competitive Activities with the Company or,
as a result thereof, owning compensatory equity in such a company or business enterprise engaged in Competitive Activities; or
(ii)
(A) solicit, recruit or hire any employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
Affiliates or Persons who have worked for the Company or any of its subsidiaries or Affiliates in the prior 6 months; (B) solicit
or encourage any employee of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or Affiliates to leave the employment of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or Affiliates; or (C) intentionally interfere with the relationship of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or Affiliates with any Person who or which is employed by or otherwise engaged to perform services for the Company or any
of its subsidiaries or Affiliates. The restrictions in this Section 6(a)(ii) shall not apply to (x) general solicitations that are not
specifically directed to employees of
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the Company or any Affiliate, (y) serving as a reference at the request of an employee or (z) actions taken in the good faith
performance of Executive's duties for the Company.
The Restriction Period shall be tolled during (and shall be deemed automatically extended by) any period in which Executive is
determined to be in violation of the provisions of this Section 6 by a relevant trier of fact, but only with respect to specific provisions
to which the breach relates.
(b)
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the provisions of Section 6 (a) shall
not be deemed breached as a result of Executive's passive ownership of: (i) less than an aggregate of 3% of any class of securities of a
Person engaged, directly or indirectly, in Competitive Activities; provided, however, that such stock is listed on a national securities
exchange, is quoted on the National Market System of NASDAQ or is otherwise publicly traded; (ii) less than an aggregate of 3% in
value of any instrument of indebtedness of a Person engaged, directly or indirectly, in Competitive Activities; or (iii) less than 3% in
interest in mutual funds, private equity funds, hedge funds and similar pooled entities that have interests in or are engaged, directly or
indirectly, in Competitive Activities, so long as such investments are totally passive.
(c)
If a final and non-appealable judicial determination is made that any of the provisions of this Section 6
constitutes an unreasonable or otherwise unenforceable restriction against Executive, the provisions of this Section 6 will not be
rendered void but will be deemed to be automatically modified to the minimum extent necessary to remain in force and effect for the
longest period and largest geographic area that would not constitute such an unreasonable or unenforceable restriction. Moreover,
notwithstanding the fact that any provision of this Section 6 is determined not to be specifically enforceable, the Company will
nevertheless be entitled to recover monetary damages as a result of Executive's breach of such provision to the extent permitted by
applicable law.
7.
Nondisclosure of Confidential Information. (a) Executive acknowledges that the Confidential Information obtained
by Executive while employed by the Company and its subsidiaries and Affiliates is the property of the Company or its subsidiaries
and Affiliates, as applicable. Therefore, Executive agrees that other than in connection with the good faith performance of Executive's
duties, Executive shall not disclose to any unauthorized Person or use for Executive's own purposes any Confidential Information
without the prior written consent of the Company, unless and to the extent that the aforementioned matters (i) become generally
known in the relevant trade or industry or the public domain other than as a result of Executive's acts or omissions in violation of this
Agreement, (ii) become available to Executive on a nonconfidential basis or (iii) were within Executive's possession prior to its being
obtained by Executive in the course of Executive's employment with the Company; provided, however, that if Executive receives a
request to disclose Confidential Information pursuant to a deposition, interrogation, request for information or documents in legal
proceedings, subpoena, civil investigative demand, governmental or regulatory process or similar process, (A) Executive shall
promptly notify in writing the Company, and reasonably consult with and reasonably assist the Company in seeking a protective order
or request for other appropriate remedy, (B) in the event that such protective order or remedy is not obtained, or if the Company
waives compliance with the terms hereof, Executive shall disclose only that portion of the Confidential Information that, according to
Executive's counsel, is legally required to be disclosed and (C) to the extent possible, the Company shall be given an opportunity to
review the Confidential Information prior to disclosure thereof.
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(b)
For purposes of this Agreement, "Confidential Information" means information and data concerning the
business or affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries and Affiliates, including, without limitation, all business information (whether
or not in written form) which relates to the Company, its subsidiaries or Affiliates, or their customers, suppliers or contractors or any
other third parties in respect of which the Company or its subsidiaries or Affiliates has a business relationship or owes a duty of
confidentiality, or their respective businesses or products, and which is not known to the public generally or within the industry other
than as a result of Executive's breach of this Agreement, including but not limited to: technical information or reports; trade secrets;
unwritten knowledge and "know-how" operating instructions; training manuals; customer lists; customer buying records and habits;
product sales records and documents, and product development, marketing and sales strategies; market surveys; marketing plans;
profitability analyses; product cost; long-range plans; information relating to pricing, competitive strategies and new product
development; information relating to any forms of compensation or other personnel-related information; contracts; and supplier lists.
Confidential Information will not include such information known to Executive prior to Executive's involvement with the Company or
its subsidiaries or Affiliates or information rightfully obtained from a third party (other than pursuant to a breach by Executive of this
Agreement). Without limiting the foregoing, Executive and the Company agree to keep confidential the existence of, and any
information concerning, any dispute between Executive and the Company or its subsidiaries and Affiliates, except that Executive and
the Company may disclose information concerning such dispute to the court that is considering such dispute or to Executive's or the
Company's legal counsel or related advisors and experts (provided that such Persons may not disclose any such information other than
as necessary to the prosecution or defense of such dispute).
(c)
Executive further agrees that Executive will not improperly use or disclose any confidential information or
trade secrets, if any, of any former employers or any other Person to whom Executive has an obligation of confidentiality, and will not
bring onto the premises of the Company, its subsidiaries or Affiliates any unpublished documents or any property belonging to any
former employer or any other Person to whom Executive has an obligation of confidentiality unless consented to in writing by the
former employer or other Person.
8.
Return of Property. Executive acknowledges that all notes, memoranda, specifications, devices, formulas, records,
files, lists, drawings, documents, models, equipment, property, computer, software or intellectual property relating to the businesses of
the Company and its subsidiaries and Affiliates, in whatever form (including electronic), and all copies thereof, that are received or
created by Executive while an employee of the Company or its subsidiaries or Affiliates (including but not limited to Confidential
Information) are and shall remain the property of the Company and its subsidiaries and Affiliates, and Executive shall immediately
return such property to the Company upon the termination of Executive's employment and, in any event, at the Company's request.
Executive further agrees that any property situated on the premises of, and owned by, the Company or its subsidiaries or Affiliates,
including disks and other storage media, filing cabinets or other work areas, is subject to inspection by Company's personnel at any
time with or without notice. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Executive shall be permitted to retain Executive's rolodex and similar
address books, including those in electronic form and the parties agree that the names and contact information therein are not
Confidential Information.
9.
Intellectual Property Rights. (a) Executive agrees that the results and proceeds of Executive's services for the
Company or its subsidiaries or Affiliates (including, but not
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limited to, any trade secrets, products, services, processes, know-how, designs, developments, techniques, formulas, methods,
developmental or experimental work, improvements, discoveries, inventions, ideas, source and object codes, programs, matters of a
literary, musical, dramatic or otherwise creative nature, writings and other works of authorship) resulting from services performed
while an employee of the Company and any works in progress, whether or not patentable or registrable under copyright or similar
statutes, that were made or conceived or reduced to practice or learned by Executive, either alone or jointly with others (collectively,
"Inventions"), shall be works-made-for-hire and the Company (or, if applicable or as directed by the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or Affiliates) shall be deemed the sole owner throughout the universe of any and all trade secret, patent, copyright and other
intellectual property rights (collectively, "Proprietary Rights") of whatsoever nature therein, whether or not now or hereafter known,
existing, contemplated, recognized or developed, with the right to use the same in perpetuity in any manner the Company determines
in its sole discretion, without any further payment to Executive whatsoever. If, for any reason, any of such results and proceeds shall
not legally be a work-made-for-hire and/or there are any Proprietary Rights which do not accrue to the Company (or, as the case may
be, any of its subsidiaries or Affiliates) under the immediately preceding sentence, then Executive hereby irrevocably assigns and
agrees to assign any and all of Executive's right, title and interest thereto, including any and all Proprietary Rights of whatsoever
nature therein, whether or not now or hereafter known, existing, contemplated, recognized or developed, to the Company (or, if
applicable or as directed by the Company, any of its subsidiaries or Affiliates), and the Company or such subsidiaries or Affiliates
shall have the right to use the same in perpetuity throughout the universe in any manner determined by the Company or such
subsidiaries or Affiliates without any further payment to Executive whatsoever. As to any Invention that Executive is required to
assign, Executive shall promptly and fully disclose to the Company all information known to Executive concerning such Invention.
(b)
Executive agrees that, from time to time, as may be reasonably requested by the Company and at the
Company's sole cost and expense, Executive shall do any and all things that the Company may reasonably deem useful or desirable to
establish or document the Company's exclusive ownership throughout the United States of America or any other country of any and
all Proprietary Rights in any such Inventions, including the execution of appropriate copyright and/or patent applications or
assignments. To the extent Executive has any Proprietary Rights in the Inventions that cannot be assigned in the manner described
above, Executive unconditionally and irrevocably waives the enforcement of such Proprietary Rights. This Section 9(b) is subject to
and shall not be deemed to limit, restrict or constitute any waiver by the Company of any Proprietary Rights of ownership to which the
Company may be entitled by operation of law by virtue of the Company's being Executive's employer. Executive shall reasonably
assist the Company in every proper and lawful way to obtain and from time to time enforce Proprietary Rights relating to Inventions in
any and all countries. To this end, Executive shall execute, verify and deliver such documents and perform such other reasonable acts
(including appearances as a witness) as the Company may reasonably request for use in applying for, obtaining, perfecting,
evidencing, sustaining, and enforcing such Proprietary Rights and the assignment thereof. In addition, Executive shall execute, verify,
and deliver assignments of such Proprietary Rights to the Company or its designees. Executive's obligation to assist the Company with
respect to Proprietary Rights relating to such Inventions in any and all countries shall continue beyond the termination of Executive's
employment with the Company; provided that, the Company shall compensate Executive at a reasonable rate after such termination
for the time actually spent by Executive at the Company's request on such assistance.
(c)
In the event the Company is unable for any reason, after reasonable effort, defined as five (5) business days
after written notice, to secure Executive's signature on
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any document required in connection with the actions specified in Section 9(b), Executive hereby irrevocably designates and appoints
the Company and its duly authorized officers and agents as Executive's agent and attorney in fact, to act for and in Executive's behalf
to execute, verify and deliver any such documents and to do all other lawfully permitted acts to further the purposes of Section 9(b)
with the same legal force and effect as if executed by Executive. Executive hereby waives and quitclaims to the Company any and all
claims, of any nature whatsoever, that Executive now or may hereafter have for infringement of any Proprietary Rights assigned
hereunder to the Company.
10.
Notification of Subsequent Employer. Executive hereby agrees that prior to accepting employment with any other
Person during any period during which Executive remains subject to any of the covenants set forth in Section 6, Executive shall
provide such prospective employer with written notice of such provisions of this Agreement, with a copy of such notice delivered to
the Company within a reasonable time thereafter.
Remedies and Injunctive Relief. The parties acknowledges that a violation by Executive or the Company of any of
11.
the covenants applicable to Executive or the Company and contained in Section 6, 7, 8, 9 or 12 would cause irreparable damage to
Executive or the Company in an amount that would be material but not readily ascertainable, and that any remedy at law (including
the payment of damages) would be inadequate. Accordingly, the parties agree that, notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement
to the contrary, each party shall be entitled (without the necessity of showing economic loss or other actual damage) to injunctive
relief (including temporary restraining orders, preliminary injunctions and/or permanent injunctions) in any court of competent
jurisdiction for any actual or threatened breach of any of the covenants set forth in Section 6, 7, 8, 9 or 12 in addition to any other legal
or equitable remedies either may have. The preceding sentence shall not be construed as a waiver of the rights that the parties may
have for damages under this Agreement or otherwise, and all of the rights held by either Executive or the Company shall be
unrestricted.
12.
Nondisparagement. Executive shall not, whether in writing or orally, directly or indirectly, criticize, denigrate or
disparage the Company, its subsidiaries or Affiliates or any of their respective predecessors, successors, current or former directors,
officers, employees, or, in their capacity as such, any of their current or former shareholders, partners, members, agents or
representatives, with respect to any of their respective past or present activities, or otherwise publish (whether in writing or orally)
statements that tend to portray any of the aforementioned parties in an unfavorable light; provided that, the foregoing shall only apply
with respect to persons that Executive knows or reasonably should know are covered thereby and shall not apply to statements made
by Executive in the reasonable good faith performance of Executive's duties while employed by the Company; provided further that,
nothing herein shall create any right or cause of action with respect to any third party. The Company's directors, its chief executive
officer and his or her direct reports shall not, whether in writing or orally, directly or indirectly, criticize, denigrate or disparage
Executive with respect to Executive's respective past or present activities, or otherwise publish (whether in writing or orally)
statements that tend to portray Executive in an unfavorable light; provided that, the foregoing shall not apply to statements made by
the foregoing persons in the reasonable good faith performance of their duties while rendering services with respect to the Company
while Executive is in the employ of the Company. The foregoing provisions of this Section 12 shall cease to apply two (2) years after
the end of Executive's employment with the Company and shall not apply to truthful testimony, normal competitive-type statements,
statements not made with an intent to damage the other party or statements made in rebuttal of statements made by the other party.
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13.
Representations of Executive. (a) Executive represents, warrants and covenants that (i) Executive has the full right,
authority and capacity to enter into this Agreement and perform Executive's obligations hereunder, (ii) Executive is not bound by any
agreement that conflicts with or prevents or restricts the full performance of Executive's duties and obligations to the Company
hereunder during or after the Term and (iii) the execution and delivery of this Agreement shall not result in any breach or violation of,
or a default under, any existing obligation, commitment or agreement to which Executive is subject.
(b)
Prior to execution of this Agreement, Executive was advised by the Company of Executive's right to seek
independent advice from an attorney of Executive's own selection regarding this Agreement. Executive acknowledges that Executive
has entered into this Agreement knowingly and voluntarily and with full knowledge and understanding of the provisions of this
Agreement after being given the opportunity to consult with counsel. Executive further represents that in entering into this Agreement,
Executive is not relying on any statements or representations made by any of the Company's directors, officers, employees or agents
which are not expressly set forth herein, and that Executive is relying only upon Executive's own judgment and any advice provided
by Executive's attorney.
Cooperation. Executive agrees that, upon reasonable notice and without the necessity of the Company obtaining a
14.
subpoena or court order, Executive shall provide reasonable cooperation in connection with any suit, action or proceeding (or any
appeal from any suit, action or proceeding), and any investigation and/or defense of any claims asserted against the Company or any
of its subsidiaries or Affiliates, which relates to events occurring during Executive's employment with the Company, its subsidiaries
and Affiliates as to which Executive may have relevant information (including but not limited to furnishing relevant information and
materials to the Company or its designee and/or providing testimony at depositions and at trial). With respect to such cooperation
occurring following termination of employment, the Company shall compensate Executive at a reasonable per diem rate to be
mutually agreed (other than with regard to actual testimony), as well as reimburse Executive for expenses reasonably incurred in
connection therewith, including legal fees, provided that, any such cooperation occurring after the termination of Executive's
employment shall be scheduled to the extent reasonably practicable so as not to unreasonably interfere with Executive's business or
personal affairs.
15.
Withholding. The Company may deduct and withhold from any amounts payable under this Agreement such
Federal, state, local, foreign or other taxes as are required or permitted to be withheld pursuant to any applicable law or regulation.
16.
Section 409A of the Code. (a) It is intended that the provisions of this Agreement comply with Section 409A of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), and the regulations and Treasury guidance thereunder as in effect from time
to time (collectively hereinafter, "Section 409A"). Section 409A, and all provisions of this Agreement shall be construed in a manner
consistent with the requirements for avoiding taxes or penalties under Section 409A. If any provision of this Agreement (or of any
award of compensation, including equity compensation or benefits) would cause Executive to incur any additional tax or interest
under Section 409A, the Company and Executive agree to renegotiate such provision to comply with Section 409A, provided that any
such renegotiated terms shall maintain, to the maximum extent practicable, the original intent and economic benefit to Executive of
the applicable provision without violating the provisions of Section 409A. In no event whatsoever shall the Company be liable for any
tax, interest or penalties that may be imposed on Executive by Section 409A of the Code or any damages for failing to comply with
Section 409A.
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(b)
A termination of employment shall not be deemed to have occurred for purposes of any provision of this
Agreement providing for the payment of any amounts or benefits upon or following a termination of employment unless such
termination is also a "separation from service" (within the meaning of Section 409A) and, for purposes of any such provision of this
Agreement, references to a "termination" or "termination of employment" shall mean separation from service. If Executive is deemed
on the date of termination of Executive's employment to be a "specified employee", within the meaning of that term under Section
409A(a)(2)(B) of the Code and using the identification methodology selected by the Company from time to time (or if none, the
default methodology), then with regard to any payment or the providing of any benefit made subject to this Section 16, and any other
payment or the provision of any other benefit that is required to be delayed in compliance with Section 409A(a)(2)(B) of the Code,
such payment or benefit shall not be made or provided prior to the earlier of (i) the expiration of the six-month period measured from
the date of Executive's separation from service or (ii) the date of Executive's death. On the first day of the seventh month following the
date of Executive's separation from service or, if earlier, on the date of Executive's death, all payments delayed pursuant to this
Section 16(b) (whether they would have otherwise been payable in a single sum or in installments in the absence of such delay) shall
be paid or reimbursed to Executive in a lump sum, and any remaining payments and benefits due under this Agreement shall be paid
or provided in accordance with the normal payment dates specified for them herein.
(c)
With regard to any provision herein that provides for reimbursement of expenses or in-kind benefits, except
as permitted by Section 409A, (i) the right to reimbursement or in-kind benefits is not subject to liquidation or exchange for another
benefit, (ii) the amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefits, provided during any taxable year shall not affect
the expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefits to be provided, in any other taxable year, provided that the foregoing
clause (ii) shall not be violated with regard to expenses reimbursed under any arrangement covered by Section 105(b) of the Code
solely because such expenses are subject to a limit related to the period the arrangement is in effect.
(d)
If under this Agreement, an amount is paid in two or more installments, for purposes of Section 409A, each
installment shall be treated as a separate payment.
Parachute Payments. In the event that any payment or distribution by the Company to or for the benefit of
17.
Executive, whether paid or payable or distributable pursuant to the terms of this Agreement or otherwise (a "Payment"), would be
subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Code, or any interest or penalties with respect to such excise tax (such excise
tax, together with any interest or penalties are hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Excise Tax"), the Company shall pay to the
Executive an additional payment (a "Gross-up Payment"), in an amount such that after payment by Executive of all taxes (including
any interest or penalties imposed with respect to such taxes), including any Excise Tax imposed on any Gross-up Payment, Executive
retains an amount of the Gross-up Payment equal to the Excise Tax imposed upon the Payments. Company and Executive shall make
an initial determination as to whether a Gross-up Payment is required and the amount of any such Gross-up Payment. Executive shall
notify the Company immediately in writing of any claims by the Internal Revenue Service which, if successful, would require
Company to make a Gross-up Payment (or a Gross-up Payment in excess of that, if any, initially determined by Company and
Executive) within five (5) days of the receipt of such claim. The Company shall notify Executive in writing at least five (5) days prior
to the due date of any response required with respect to such claim if it plans to contest the claim. If the Company decides to contest
such claim, Executive shall cooperate fully with the Company in such action; provided however, the Company shall bear and pay
directly or indirectly all costs and expenses (including additional interest and penalties) incurred in
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connection with such action. If as a result if the Company's action with respect to a claim, Executive receives a refund of any amount
paid by the Company with respect to such claim, Executive shall promptly pay such refund to the Company. If the Company fails to
timely notify Employee whether it will contest such claim or the Company determines not to contest such claim, the Company shall
immediately pay to Executive the portion of such claim, if any, which it has not previously paid to Executive.
Assignment. (a) This Agreement is personal to Executive and without the prior written consent of the Company
18.
shall not be assignable by Executive, except for the assignment by will or the laws of descent and distribution of any accrued
pecuniary interest of Executive, and any assignment in violation of this Agreement shall be void.
(b)
This Agreement shall be binding on, and shall inure to the benefit of, the parties to it and their respective
heirs, legal representatives, successors and permitted assigns (including, without limitation, in the event of Executive's death,
Executive's estate and heirs in the case of any payments due to Executive hereunder).
(c)
Executive acknowledges and agrees that all of Executive's covenants and obligations to the Company, as
well as the rights of the Company hereunder, shall run in favor of and shall be enforceable by the Company and its successors and
assigns, provided that the successor or assignee is the successor to all or substantially all of the assets of the Company and such
assignee or successor assumes the rights and duties of the Company as contained in this Agreement, either contractually or as a matter
of law.
Indemnification and Insurance. The Company's and Executive's rights and obligations pursuant to that certain
19.
Indemnity Agreement between the Company and Executive dated April 18, 2011 and that certain Indemnity Agreement between RDA
Holding and Executive dated April 18, 2011 shall remain binding and enforceable in accordance with the terms of such agreements.
No Mitigation; No Offset. Executive shall not be required to seek other employment or otherwise mitigate the
20.
amount of any payments to be made by the Company pursuant to this Agreement. The payments provided pursuant to this Agreement
shall not be reduced by any compensation earned by Executive as the result of employment by another employer after the termination
of Executive's employment or otherwise. Except as specifically provided in this Agreement, the Company's obligation to make the
payments provided for in this Agreement and otherwise to perform its obligations hereunder shall not be affected by any setoff,
counterclaim, recoupment, defense or other claim, right or action which the Company may have against Executive or others.
21.
Governing Law. This Agreement shall be deemed to be made in the State of New York, and the validity,
interpretation, construction, and performance of this Agreement in all respects shall be governed by the laws of the State of New York
without regard to its principles of conflicts of law. No provision of this Agreement or any related document will be construed against
or interpreted to the disadvantage of any party hereto by any court or other governmental or judicial authority by reason of such party
having or being deemed to have structured or drafted such provision.
22.
Consent to Jurisdiction. (a) Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, Executive and the Company each
hereby irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York (or,
if subject matter
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jurisdiction in that court is not available, in any state court located within the Borough of Manhattan, New York) over any dispute
arising out of or relating to this Agreement. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, the parties undertake not to
commence any suit, action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement in a forum other than a forum described in this
Section 22(a); provided, however, that nothing herein shall preclude the Company from bringing any suit, action or proceeding in any
other court for the purposes of enforcing the provisions of this Section 22 or enforcing any judgment obtained by the Company.
(b)
The agreement of the parties to the forum described in Section 22(a) is independent of the law that may be
applied in any suit, action, or proceeding and the parties agree to such forum even if such forum may under applicable law choose to
apply non-forum law. The parties hereby waive, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, any objection which they now or
hereafter have to personal jurisdiction or to the laying of venue of any such suit, action or proceeding brought in an applicable court
described in Section 22(a), and the parties agree that they shall not attempt to deny or defeat such personal jurisdiction by motion or
other request for leave from any such court. The parties agree that, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, a final and nonappealable judgment in any suit, action or proceeding brought in any applicable court described in Section 22(a) shall be conclusive
and binding upon the parties and may be enforced in any other jurisdiction.
(c)
The parties hereto irrevocably consent to the service of any and all process in any suit, action or proceeding
arising out of or relating to this Agreement by the mailing of copies of such process to such party at such party's address specified
herein. In addition, Executive irrevocably appoints the General Counsel of the Company as Executive's agent for service of process in
connection with any suit, action or proceeding, who shall promptly advise Executive of any such service of process.
(d)
The prevailing party in an action hereunder, as determined by the applicable court, shall be entitled to
recover reasonable legal fees and related costs from the other party; provided that, such fees and costs are incurred prior to the fifth
(5th) anniversary of the expiration of the Term. In the event that Executive is entitled to recover such fees and costs all such amounts
shall be paid to Executive within thirty (30) days after the award of such fees and costs by the applicable court.
Amendment; No Waiver. No provisions of this Agreement may be amended, modified, waived or discharged
23.
except by a written document signed by Executive and a duly authorized officer of the Company (other than Executive). The failure of
a party to insist upon strict adherence to any term of this Agreement on any occasion shall not be considered a waiver of such party's
rights or deprive such party of the right thereafter to insist upon strict adherence to that term or any other term of this Agreement. No
failure or delay by either party in exercising any right or power hereunder will operate as a waiver thereof, nor will any single or
partial exercise of any such right or power, or any abandonment of any steps to enforce such a right or power, preclude any other or
further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right or power.
24.
Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced by any
applicable law or public policy, all other conditions and provisions of this Agreement shall nonetheless remain in full force and effect
so long as the economic and legal substance of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement is not affected in any manner
materially adverse to any party. Upon such determination that any term or other provision is invalid, illegal or incapable of being
enforced, the parties hereto shall negotiate in good faith to modify this Agreement so as to effect the original intent of the parties as
closely as
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possible in a mutually acceptable manner in order that the transactions contemplated hereby be consummated as originally
contemplated to the fullest extent possible.
Entire Agreement. This Agreement (including the Exhibits hereto) and any other agreements contemplated by this
25.
Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding between the Company and Executive with respect to the subject matter
hereof and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings (whether written or oral), between Executive and the Company,
relating to such subject matter. None of the parties shall be liable or bound to any other party in any manner by any representations
and warranties or covenants relating to such subject matter except as specifically set forth herein.
Survival. The rights and obligations of the parties under the provisions of this Agreement shall survive, and remain
26.
binding and enforceable, notwithstanding the expiration of the Term, the termination of this Agreement, the termination of Executive's
employment hereunder or any settlement of the financial rights and obligations arising from Executive's employment hereunder, to the
extent necessary to preserve the intended benefits of such provisions.
27.
Notices. All notices or other communications required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be in writing and
shall be delivered by hand or sent by facsimile or sent, postage prepaid, by registered, certified or express mail or overnight courier
service and shall be deemed given when so delivered by hand or facsimile, or if mailed, three (3) days after mailing (one (1) business
day in the case of express mail or overnight courier service) to the parties at the following addresses or facsimiles (or at such other
address for a party as shall be specified by like notice):
If to the Company:

The Reader's Digest Association, Inc.
750 Third Avenue
New York, New York 10017
Attention: Board of Directors
Fax: 914-244-5644

With a copy to:

The Reader's Digest Association, Inc.
44 South Broadway
White Plains, New York 10601
Attention: General Counsel
Fax: 914-244-5644

If to Executive:

To the address last shown on the records of the Company

Notices delivered by facsimile shall have the same legal effect as if such notice had been delivered in person.
28.
Headings and References. The headings of this Agreement are inserted for convenience only and neither constitutes
a part of this Agreement nor affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. When a reference in this Agreement is
made to a Section, such reference shall be to a Section of this Agreement unless otherwise indicated.
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29.
Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts (including via facsimile and electronic
image scan (pdf)), each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same
instrument and shall become effective when one or more counterparts have been signed by each of the parties and delivered to the
other parties.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties as of the date first written above.
THE READER'S DIGEST ASSOCIATION, INC.
/s/ Paul Tomkins
Name: Paul Tomkins
Title: Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
RDA HOLDING CO.
/s/ Paul Tomkins
Name: Paul Tomkins
Title: Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
ROBERT GUTH
/s/ Robert Guth
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EXHIBIT A
Directorships
Lumos Networks
Integra Telecom
Otelco

EXHIBIT B
RELEASE OF CLAIMS
I.
Release. For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, the undersigned, with the intention of binding himself, his heirs, executors, administrators and assigns, does hereby
release and forever discharge The Readers' Digest Association, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), and its parents,
subsidiaries, affiliates, predecessors, successors, and/or assigns, past, present, and future, together with its and their officers, directors,
executives, agents, employees, and employee benefits plans (and the trustees, administrators, fiduciaries and insurers of such plans),
past, present, and future (collectively, the "Released Parties"), from any and all claims, actions, causes of action, demands, rights,
damages, debts, accounts, suits, expenses, attorneys' fees and liabilities of whatever kind or nature in law, equity, or otherwise,
whether now known or unknown (collectively, the "Claims"), which the undersigned now has, owns or holds, .or has at any time
heretofore had, owned or held against any Released Party, from the beginning of time to the date of the undersigned's execution of this
Release of Claims, including without limitation, any Claims arising out of or in any way connected with the undersigned's
employment relationship with the Company, its subsidiaries, predecessors or affiliated entities, or the termination thereof, under any
Federal, state or local statute, rule, or regulation, or principle of common, tort or contract law, including but not limited to, the Family
and Medical Leave Act of 1993, as amended (the "FMLA"), 29 U.S.C. §§ 2601 et seq., Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as
amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000e et seq., the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended, 29 U.S.C. §§ 621 et seq., the
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq., the Worker Adjustment and Retraining Notification
Act of 1988, as amended, 29 U.S.C. §§ 2101 et seq., the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, 29 U.S.C.
§§ 1001 et seq., and all other Federal, state, or local statutes, regulations or laws; provided, however, that nothing herein shall release
the Company of its obligations under that certain Employment Agreement, dated on or about July 11, 2011, between the undersigned,
the Company and RDA Holding Co., or with respect to the undersigned's rights with regard to indemnification and directors and
officers liability insurance. Except as set forth in Section II below, the undersigned understands that, as a result of executing this
Release of Claims, she will not have the right to assert that the Company or any other Released Party unlawfully terminated the
undersigned's employment or violated any of the undersigned's rights in connection with the undersigned's employment or otherwise.
The undersigned affirms that she is not presently party to any Claim, complaint or action against any Released Party
in any forum or form and that she knows of no facts which may lead to any Claim, complaint or action being filed against any
Released Party in any forum by the undersigned or by any agency, group, etc. The undersigned furthermore affirms that she has no
known workplace injuries or occupational diseases and has been provided and/or has not been denied any leave requested under the
FMLA. If any agency or court assumes jurisdiction of any such Claim, complaint or action against any Released Party on behalf of
the undersigned, the undersigned hereby waives any right to individual monetary or other relief.
The undersigned further declares and represents that she has carefully read and fully understands the terms of this
Release of Claims and that, through this document, she is hereby advised to consult with an attorney prior to executing this Release of
Claims, that she may take up to and including twenty one (21) days from receipt of this Release of Claims, to consider whether to sign
this Release of Claims, that she may revoke this Release of Claims within seven (7) calendar days after signing it by delivering to the
Company written notification of revocation

(and that this Release of Claims shall not become effective or enforceable until the expiration of such revocation period), and that she
knowingly and voluntarily, of the undersigned's own free will, without any duress, being fully informed and after due deliberate
action, accepts the terms of and signs the same as the undersigned's own free act.
Protected Rights. The Company and the undersigned agree that nothing in this Release of Claims is
II.
intended to or shall be construed to affect, limit or otherwise interfere with any non-waivable right of the undersigned under any
Federal, state or local law, including the right to file a charge or participate in an investigation or proceeding conducted by the Equal
Employment Opportunity Commission ("EEOC") or to exercise any other right that cannot be waived under applicable law. The
undersigned is releasing, however, the undersigned's right to any monetary recovery or relief should the EEOC or any other agency
pursue Claims on the undersigned's behalf. Further, should the EEOC or any other agency obtain monetary relief on the undersigned's
behalf, the undersigned assigns to the Company all rights to such relief.
Severability. If any term or provision of this Release of Claims is invalid, illegal or incapable of being
III.
enforced by any applicable law or public policy, all other conditions and provisions of this Release of Claims shall nonetheless remain
in full force and effect so long as the economic and legal substance of the transactions contemplated by this Release of Claims is not
affected in any manner materially adverse to any party.
IV.
GOVERNING LAW. THIS RELEASE OF CLAIMS SHALL BE DEEMED TO BE MADE IN THE
STATE OF NEW YORK, AND THE VALIDITY, INTERPRETATION, CONSTRUCTION AND PERFORMANCE OF
THIS AGREEMENT IN ALL RESPECTS SHALL BE GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK
WITHOUT REGARD TO ITS PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICTS OF LAW.
Effective on the eighth (8th) calendar day following the date set forth below.
THE READER'S DIGEST ASSOCIATION, INC.
Name:
Title:
ROBERT GUTH

Date Signed:

Exhibit 10.2
STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT
BY AND AMONG
MEREDITH CORPORATION,
ALLRECIPES.COM, INC.
AND
THE READER'S DIGEST ASSOCIATION, INC.
Dated as of January 23, 2012
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STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT
This STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT, (the "Agreement"), dated as of January 23, 2012, by and among
Meredith Corporation, a corporation existing under the laws of Iowa ("Purchaser"), Allrecipes.com, Inc., a Washington corporation
(the "Company"), and The Reader's Digest Association, Inc., a Delaware corporation and the sole stockholder of the Company (the
"Seller").
W I T N E S S E T H:
WHEREAS, Seller owns an aggregate of ten (10) shares of the Company's common stock, no par value (the
"Shares"), which constitutes all of the issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of the Company;
WHEREAS, Seller desires to sell to Purchaser, and Purchaser desires to purchase from Seller, the Shares for the
purchase price and upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth; and
WHEREAS, certain terms used in this Agreement are defined in Section 1.1.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter
contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:
ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS
1.1

Certain Definitions.
(a)

For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings specified in this Section 1.1:

"Affiliate" means, with respect to any Person, any other Person that, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, controls, or is controlled by, or is under common control with, such Person, and the term "control" (including the terms
"controlled by" and "under common control with") means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the
direction of the management and policies of such Person, whether through ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise.
"Business Day" means any day of the year on which national banking institutions in New York are open to the
public for conducting business and are not required or authorized to close.
"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
"Combined Tax Return" means any Income Tax Return that includes at least one member of the Seller Group, on
the one hand, and the Company, on the other hand.

"Consolidated Group" means the combined, consolidated or unitary group of corporations that files a Combined Tax
Return, which for the avoidance of doubt, includes at least one member of the Seller Group, on the one hand, and the Company, on the
other hand.
"Contract" means any oral or written contract, agreement, indenture, note, bond, mortgage, loan, instrument, lease,
or license.
"Environmental Law" means any applicable Law relating to the protection of health and safety as it relates to
exposure to Hazardous Materials, the environment or natural resources, including the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act (42 U.S.C. § 9601 et seq.), the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act (49 U.S.C. App. § 1801 et
seq.), the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (42 U.S.C. § 6901 et seq.), the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq.), the
Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq.) the Toxic Substances Control Act (15 U.S.C. § 2601 et seq.), and the Federal Insecticide,
Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act (7 U.S.C. § 136 et seq.), as each has been amended and the regulations promulgated pursuant thereto.
"ERISA Affiliate" means any trade or business (whether or not incorporated) under common control with the
Company within the meaning of Section 414(b) or (c) of the Code (or is treated as a single employer with the Company under
Sections 414(m) or (o) of the Code or Title IV of ERISA).
"GAAP" means generally accepted accounting principles in the United States as in effect from time to time.
"Governmental Body" means any government or governmental or regulatory body thereof, or political subdivision
thereof, whether federal, state, local or foreign, or any agency, instrumentality or authority thereof, or any court or arbitrator (public or
private).
"Hazardous Material" means any substance, material or waste defined as "toxic," "hazardous," a "pollutant," a
"contaminant," or words of similar meaning by any Environmental Law.
"HSR Act" means the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder.
"Income Tax" or "Income Taxes" means any federal, state, local or foreign Tax based upon or measured by net
income, including for the avoidance of doubt, the Washington Business and Occupation Tax (but not any other gross income Tax and
not any withholding Tax), together with any interest or penalties imposed with respect thereto.
"Income Tax Return" means any Tax Return relating to Income Taxes.
"Indebtedness" of any Person means, without duplication, (i) the principal of and, accreted value and accrued and
unpaid interest in respect of (A) indebtedness of such Person for money borrowed and (B) indebtedness evidenced by notes,
debentures, bonds or other similar instruments for the payment of which such Person is responsible or liable; (ii) all obligations of
such Person issued or assumed as the deferred purchase price of property, all conditional sale
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obligations of such Person and all obligations of such Person under any title retention agreement (but excluding trade accounts
payable and other accrued current liabilities); (iii) all obligations of the type referred to in clauses (i) through (ii) of any Persons the
payment of which such Person is responsible or liable, directly or indirectly, as obligor, guarantor, surety or otherwise; and (iv) all
obligations of the type referred to in clauses (i) through (iii) of other Persons secured by any Lien on any property or asset of such
Person (whether or not such obligation is assumed by such Person).
"Intellectual Property" means all intellectual property rights predominantly used by the Company arising from or in
respect of the following: (i) all patents and applications therefor, including continuations, divisionals, continuations-in-part, or reissues
of patent applications and patents issuing thereon (collectively, "Patents"), (ii) all trademarks, service marks, trade names, service
names, brand names, trade dress rights, logos, Internet domain names and corporate names, together with all goodwill associated with
any of the foregoing, and all applications, registrations and renewals thereof, (collectively, "Marks"), (iii) all copyrightable works,
copyrights and registrations and applications therefor, and works of authorship, together with all translations, adaptations and
derivations thereof (collectively, "Copyrights"), (iv) all material advertising and promotional materials, (v) all rights in trade secrets,
know-how, confidential business information, user lists, website statistics, formulas, recipes, designs and registration and regulatory
data and information (collectively, "Trade Secrets"), and (vi) all Software and Technology of the Company.
"IRS" means the United States Internal Revenue Service and, to the extent relevant, the United States Department of
Treasury.
"Knowledge of the Company" means the actual knowledge of the persons identified on Schedule I hereto.
"Law" means any foreign, federal, state, or local law, statute, code, ordinance, rule or regulation.
"Legal Proceeding" means any judicial, administrative or arbitral actions, suits or proceedings (public or private) by
or before a Governmental Body.
"Liability" means any debt, liability or obligation (whether direct or indirect, absolute or contingent, accrued or
unaccrued, liquidated or unliquidated, or due or to become due) and including all costs and expenses relating thereto.
"License Agreement" means a license agreement, to be entered into by and among the Purchaser, the Company and
Seller on the Closing Date, in form and substance reasonably acceptable to each of the parties thereto, and which agreement will
reflect, among other things, the terms set forth in the attached term sheet on Exhibit A.
"Lien" means any lien, encumbrance, pledge, mortgage, deed of trust, security interest, claim, lease, charge, option,
right of first refusal, easement, servitude or transfer restriction.
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"Material Adverse Effect" means any event, condition, change, occurrence, development or state of circumstances
which has had or would reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on (A) the business, condition (financial or
otherwise), results of operations, assets or liabilities or business prospects of the Company or (B) the ability of the Company or Seller
to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement; provided, that none of the following shall be taken into account in
determining whether a Material Adverse Effect has occurred:
(i)
the effect of any change in financial, economic, political or industry conditions in the United
States or foreign economies or securities or financial markets in general;
(ii)

the effect of any change that generally affects the industry in which the Company operates;

(iii)

the effect of any change in any Laws or accounting rules or interpretation or enforcement thereof;

(iv)
the effect of any change arising in connection with (i) earthquakes, hostilities, acts of war,
sabotage or terrorism or military actions existing or underway as of the date hereof or any escalation or material
worsening thereof, or (ii) earthquakes, hostilities, acts of war, sabotage or terrorism or military actions arising on or
after the date hereof;
(v)
the effect of any change relating to the announcement of, entry into, pendency of, actions required
or contemplated by or performance of obligations under, this Agreement and the transactions expressly
contemplated hereby or the identity of the parties to this Agreement, including any termination of, reduction in or
similar adverse impact on relationships, contractual or otherwise, with any customers, suppliers, distributors,
partners or employees of the Company resulting therefrom;
(vi)
the failure by the Company to meet internal or third party projections or forecasts or any
published revenue or earnings projections for any period; provided, that this exception shall not prevent or otherwise
affect any determination that any event, condition, change, occurrence, development or state of facts underlying
such failure has or resulted in, or contributed to, a Material Adverse Effect; or
(vii)

actions taken by the Company or Seller at the express request or direction of Purchaser;

but only in the case of the foregoing clauses (i) — (iv) to the extent such changes do not have a materially disproportionate
effect on the Company relative to others in the industry in which the Company operates.
"Order" means any order, injunction, judgment, decree, ruling, writ, assessment or arbitration award of a
Governmental Body.
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"Ordinary Course of Business" means the ordinary and usual course of normal day-to-day operations of the
Company.
"Parent" means RDA Holding Co.
"Permits" means any approvals, authorizations, consents, licenses, permits or certificates of a Governmental Body.
"Permitted Exceptions" means (i) all defects, exceptions, restrictions, easements, rights of way and encumbrances
disclosed in policies of title insurance; (ii) statutory liens for current Taxes, assessments or other governmental charges not yet
delinquent or the amount or validity of which is being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings and for which reserves are
established on the Financial Statements in accordance with GAAP; (iii) mechanics', carriers', workers', repairers' and similar Liens
arising or incurred in the Ordinary Course of Business; (iv) zoning, entitlement and other land use and environmental regulations by
any Governmental Body; (v) title of a lessor under a capital or operating lease; and (vi) such other imperfections in title, charges,
easements, restrictions and encumbrances which would not result in a Material Adverse Effect.
"Person" means any individual, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, firm, joint venture, association,
joint-stock company, trust, unincorporated organization, Governmental Body or other entity.
"Pre-Closing Period" means any taxable period (or portion thereof) ending on or prior to the Closing Date.
"Reference Statement" means the reference statement attached hereto as Exhibit B setting forth a calculation of Net
Working Capital, applied with the same accounting methods, practices, principles, policies and procedures, used in the preparation of
the Company's Balance Sheet.
"Seller Group" means Parent and its Subsidiaries (other than the Company).
"Software" means any and all (i) computer programs, including any and all software implementations of algorithms,
models and methodologies, whether in source code or object code, (ii) databases and compilations, including any and all data and
collections of data, whether machine readable or otherwise and (iii) all documentation, including user manuals and other training
documentation related to any of the foregoing.
"Subsidiary" means, with respect to a Person, any other Person of which (i) a majority of the outstanding voting
securities are owned, directly or indirectly, by such Person, or (ii) such Person is entitled, directly or indirectly, to appoint a majority
of the board of directors, board of managers, or comparable governing body of such other Person.
"Tax" or "Taxes" means (i) all federal, state, local or foreign taxes, charges, fees, imposts, levies or other
assessments, including all net income, gross receipts, capital, sales, use, ad valorem, value added, transfer, franchise, profits,
inventory, capital stock, license, withholding, payroll, employment, social security, unemployment, excise, severance, stamp,
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occupation, property and estimated taxes, customs duties, fees, assessments and charges of any kind whatsoever, and (ii) all interest,
penalties, fines or additions to tax imposed by any Taxing Authority in connection with any item described in clause (i), whether
disputed or not and including obligations to indemnify or otherwise assume or succeed to the Tax liability of any other Person.
"Tax Item" means any item of income, gain, loss, deduction, credit, recapture of credit or any other item which
increases or decreases Taxes paid or payable, including an adjustment under Section 481 of the Code (or any similar provision of nonUnited States federal Income Tax law) resulting from a change in accounting method.
"Tax Proceeding" means any audit, examination, contest, litigation or other proceeding with or against any Taxing
Authority.
"Tax Return" means any return, declaration, report, claim for refund or information return or statement required to
be filed with any Taxing Authority relating to Taxes, including any schedule or attachment thereto, and including any amendment
thereof.
"Taxing Authority" means any Governmental Body responsible for the administration of any Tax.
"Technology" means, collectively, all information, designs, formulae, algorithms (including search engine
optimization algorithms), procedures, methods, techniques, ideas, know-how, research and development, technical data, programs,
subroutines, tools, materials, specifications, processes, inventions (whether patentable or unpatentable and whether or not reduced to
practice), apparatus, creations, improvements, works of authorship and other similar materials, and all recordings, graphs, drawings,
reports, analyses, and other writings, and other tangible embodiments of the foregoing, in any form whether or not specifically listed
herein, and all related technology, that are used in, incorporated in, embodied in, displayed by or relate to, or are used by the
Company.
"Transition Services Agreement" means a transition services agreement, to be entered into by and among the
Company and Seller on the Closing Date, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C.
1.2
Terms Defined Elsewhere in this Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms have meanings
set forth in the sections indicated:
Section

Term

338(h)(10) Election
Acquisition Proposal
Agreement
Antitrust Laws
Balance Sheet
Balance Sheet Date
Cap
Closing

9.14
8.15
Recitals
8.4(b)
5.6(a)
5.6(a)
11.5(a)
4.1
6

Term

Section

Closing Date
Closing Net Amount
Closing Statement
Closing Working Capital
Closing Working Neutral Amount
Closing Working Neutral Deficiency
Closing Working Neutral Excess
COBRA
Collar Amount
Common Stock
Company
Company Benefit Plan
Company Documents
Confidentiality Agreement
Continuing Employees
Copyrights
Critical Representations
Current Assets
Current Liabilities
De Minimis Amount
Deductible
Environmental Permits
ERISA
Estimated Closing Working Capital
Estimated Working Capital Adjustment
Final Working Capital
Financial Statements
Indemnification Claim
Indemnified Party
Indemnifying Party
Independent Accountant
Losses
Lower Working Capital Collar
Marks
Material Contracts
Negative Closing Adjustment Amount
Negative Estimate Adjustment Amount
Net Working Capital
Parent Guaranty
Patents
Personal Property Leases
PII
Policies
Positive Closing Adjustment Amount

4.1
3.3(b)
3.3(b)
3.3(b)
3.3(a)
3.3(a)
3.3(a)
5.14(g)
3.3(a)
5.4(a)
Recitals
5.14(a)
5.2
8.6
8.9(a)(i)
1.1 (in Intellectual Property definition)
11.1(b)
3.3(a)
3.3(a)
11.5(a)
11.5(a)
5.17(a)
5.14(a)
3.3(a)
3.3(a)
3.3(f)
5.6(a)
11.4(b)
11.4(b)
11.4(b)
3.3(d)
10.2(a)
3.3(a)
1.1 (in Intellectual Property definition)
5.13(a)
3.3(b)
3.3(a)
3.3(b)
8.17
1.1 (in Intellectual Property definition)
5.11
5.23(b)
5.19
3.3(b)
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Term

Section

Positive Estimate Adjustment Amount
Purchase Price
Purchaser
Purchaser Documents
Purchaser Indemnified Parties
Purchaser Plans
Purchaser Tax Indemnitee
Real Property Leases
Released Claims
Released Parties
Securities Act
Seller
Seller Documents
Seller Indemnified Parties
Seller Indemnified Taxes
Seller Tax Indemnitee
Shares
Subsequent Loss
Termination Date
Third Party Intellectual Property Rights
Trade Secrets
Transfer Taxes
Upper Working Capital Collar
1.3

3.3(a)
3.1
Recitals
7.2
11.2(a)
8.9(a)(ii)
9.1
5.10
8.14
8.14
7.5
Recitals
6.2
11.3(a)
9.1
9.2
Recitals
9.5(c)
4.2(d)
5.12(b)
1.1 (in Intellectual Property definition)
9.12
3.3(a)

Other Definitional and Interpretive Matters.
(a)

Unless otherwise expressly provided, for purposes of this Agreement, the following rules of interpretation

shall apply:
Calculation of Time Period. When calculating the period of time before which, within which or following which
any act is to be done or step taken pursuant to this Agreement, the date that is the reference date in calculating such period shall be
excluded. If the last day of such period is a non-Business Day, the period in question shall end on the next succeeding Business Day.
Dollars. Any reference in this Agreement to $ shall mean U.S. dollars.
Exhibits/Schedules. The Exhibits and Schedules to this Agreement are hereby incorporated and made a part hereof
and are an integral part of this Agreement. All Exhibits and Schedules annexed hereto or referred to herein are hereby incorporated in
and made a part of this Agreement as if set forth in full herein. The parties hereto agree that the disclosure set forth in any particular
section or subsection of the Schedules shall be deemed to be an exception to (or, as applicable, a disclosure for purposes of) (i) the
representations and warranties (or covenants, as applicable) that are set forth in the corresponding section or subsection of this
Agreement, and (ii) any other representations and warranties (or covenants, as applicable) that are set forth in this
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Agreement, but in the case of this clause (ii) only if the relevance of that disclosure as an exception to (or a disclosure for purposes of)
such other representations and warranties (or covenants, as applicable) is reasonably apparent on the face of such disclosure.
Disclosure of any item on any Schedule shall not constitute an admission or indication that such item or matter is material or would
have a Material Adverse Effect. No disclosure on a Schedule relating to a possible breach or violation of any Contract, Law or Order
shall be construed as an admission or indication that a breach or violation exists or has actually occurred. Any capitalized terms used
in any Schedule or Exhibit but not otherwise defined therein shall be defined as set forth in this Agreement.
Gender and Number. Any reference in this Agreement to gender shall include all genders, and words imparting the
singular number only shall include the plural and vice versa.
Headings. The provision of a Table of Contents, the division of this Agreement into Articles, Sections and other
subdivisions and the insertion of headings are for convenience of reference only and shall not affect or be utilized in construing or
interpreting this Agreement. All references in this Agreement to any "Section" are to the corresponding Section of this Agreement
unless otherwise specified.
Herein. The words such as "herein," "hereinafter," "hereof," and "hereunder" refer to this Agreement as a whole and
not merely to a subdivision in which such words appear unless the context otherwise requires.
Including. The word "including" or any variation thereof means (unless the context of its usage otherwise requires)
"including, without limitation" and shall not be construed to limit any general statement that it follows to the specific or similar items
or matters immediately following it.
Reflected On or Set Forth In. An item arising with respect to a specific representation or warranty shall be deemed
to be "reflected on" or "set forth in" a balance sheet or financial statements, to the extent any such phrase appears in such
representation or warranty, if (a) there is a reserve, accrual or other similar item underlying a number on such balance sheet or
financial statements that clearly from the face of such statement relates to the subject matter of such representation, (b) such item is
otherwise specifically set forth on the balance sheet or financial statements or (c) such item is included in the determination of a
number on the balance sheet or financial statements and is specifically set forth in the notes thereto.
(b)
The parties hereto have participated jointly in the negotiation and drafting of this Agreement and, in the
event an ambiguity or question of intent or interpretation arises, this Agreement shall be construed as jointly drafted by the parties
hereto and no presumption or burden of proof shall arise favoring or disfavoring any party by virtue of the authorship of any provision
of this Agreement.
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ARTICLE II
SALE AND PURCHASE OF SHARES
2.1
Sale and Purchase of Shares. Upon the terms and subject to the conditions contained herein, on the Closing Date,
Seller agrees to sell to Purchaser, and Purchaser agrees to purchase from Seller, the Shares of the Company.
ARTICLE III
PURCHASE PRICE
Purchase Price. The aggregate consideration for the Shares shall be an amount in cash equal to $175,000,000 (the
3.1
"Purchase Price"), subject to adjustment in accordance with Section 3.3.
3.2
Payment of Purchase Price. On the Closing Date, Purchaser shall pay the Purchase Price to Seller, which shall be
paid by wire transfer of immediately available United States funds into accounts designated by Seller.
3.3

Purchase Price Adjustment.

(a)
At least three (3) Business Days prior to the Closing Date, Seller shall cause to be prepared and delivered
to Purchaser a statement of Seller's good faith estimate of (i) Net Working Capital (as defined below) as of the end of business on the
Closing Date (the "Estimated Closing Working Capital") and (ii) Estimated Working Capital Adjustment (as defined below). The
calculation of Estimated Closing Working Capital and Estimated Working Capital Adjustment (as defined below) shall be prepared by
the Company in accordance with the same accounting methods, practices and principles used in the preparation of the Reference
Statement. If Estimated Closing Working Capital is (i) greater than or equal to the Lower Working Capital Collar and less than or
equal to the Upper Working Capital Collar, then the Purchase Price payable at Closing will be unchanged ("Closing Working Capital
Neutral Amount"), (ii) greater than the Upper Working Capital Collar, then the Purchase Price payable at Closing will be increased by
an amount equal to Estimated Closing Working Capital minus the Upper Working Capital Collar ("Closing Working Capital Excess")
and (iii) if the Estimated Closing Working Capital is less than the Lower Working Capital Collar, then the Purchase Price payable at
Closing will be decreased by an amount equal to the Lower Working Capital Collar minus the Estimated Closing Working Capital
("Closing Working Capital Deficiency"). "Estimated Working Capital Adjustment" means the change to Purchase Price payable at
Closing by an amount equal to either the Closing Working Capital Neutral Amount, the Closing Working Capital Excess or the
Closing Working Capital Deficiency. "Net Working Capital" means the Current Assets of the Company less the Current Liabilities of
the Company, determined as of the end of business on the Closing Date, applied with the same accounting methods, practices,
principles, policies and procedures used in the preparation of the Reference Statement. "Current Assets" means accounts receivable,
deposits and prepaid expenses, but excluding deferred tax assets and receivables from any of the Company's Affiliates, directors,
employees, officers or stockholders and any of their Affiliates. "Current Liabilities" means accounts payable, accrued
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Taxes (excluding Income Taxes) and accrued expenses, but excluding deferred tax liabilities and payables to any of the Company's
Affiliates, directors, employees, officers or stockholders and any of their Affiliates and the current portion of long term Indebtedness.
"Lower Working Capital Collar" means $5,000,000 if Closing occurs on or prior to February 29, 2012 and $3,000,000 if Closing
occurs after February 29, 2012. "Upper Working Capital Collar" means $10,000,000 if Closing occurs on or prior to February 29,
2012 and $8,000,000 if Closing occurs after February 29, 2012.
(b)
As promptly as practicable, but no later than sixty (60) days after the Closing Date, Purchaser shall cause
to be prepared and delivered to Seller a closing statement (the "Closing Statement") setting forth Purchaser's calculation of (i) Net
Working Capital ("Closing Working Capital") and (ii) the Closing Net Amount.
"Closing Net Amount" means the amount determined as follows:
(A) if Estimated Closing Working Capital is greater than or equal to the Lower Working Capital Collar, but less than or equal to the
Upper Working Capital Collar, then: (1) if Final Working Capital is less than the Lower Working Capital Collar, a negative number
equal to the amount by which Final Working Capital is less than the Lower Working Capital Collar; (2) if Final Working Capital is
greater than the Upper Working Capital Collar, a positive number equal to the amount by which Final Working Capital exceeds the
Upper Working Capital Collar; or (3) if Final Working Capital is greater than or equal to the Lower Working Capital Collar but less
than or equal to the Upper Working Capital Collar, zero;
(B) if Estimated Closing Working Capital is less than the Lower Working Capital Collar, then: (1) if Final Working Capital is less
than Estimated Closing Working Capital, a negative number equal to the amount by which Final Working Capital is less than
Estimated Closing Working Capital; (2) if Final Working Capital is equal to Estimated Closing Working Capital, zero; (3) if Final
Working Capital is greater than Estimated Closing Working Capital but less than the Lower Working Capital Collar, a positive
number equal to the amount by which Final Working Capital exceeds Estimated Closing Working Capital; (4) if Final Working
Capital is greater than or equal to the Lower Working Capital Collar but less than or equal to the Upper Working Capital Collar, a
positive number equal to the Closing Working Capital Deficiency; or (5) if Final Working Capital is greater than the Upper Working
Capital Collar, a positive number equal to the sum of (i) the Closing Working Capital Deficiency plus (ii) the amount by which Final
Working Capital exceeds the Upper Working Capital Collar; and
(C)
if Estimated Closing Working Capital is greater than the Upper Working Capital Collar, then: (1) if Final Working Capital is
greater than Estimated Closing Working Capital, a positive number equal to the amount by which Final Working Capital exceeds
Estimated Closing Working Capital; (2) if Final Working Capital is equal to Estimated Closing Working Capital, zero; (3) if Final
Working Capital is less than Estimated Closing Working Capital but greater than the Upper Working Capital Collar, a negative
number equal to the amount by which Final Working Capital is less than Estimated Closing Working Capital; (4) if Final Working
Capital is less than or equal to the Upper Working Capital Collar but greater than or equal to the Lower Working Capital Collar, a
negative number equal to the Closing Working Capital Excess; or (5) if Final Working Capital is less than the Lower Working Capital
Collar, a negative number equal
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to the sum of (i) the Closing Working Capital Excess plus (ii) the amount by which Final Working Capital is less than the Lower
Working Capital Collar.
(c)
If Seller disagrees with Purchaser's calculation of Closing Working Capital or Closing Net Amount
delivered pursuant to Section 3.3(b), Seller may, within ten (10) days after delivery of the Closing Statement, deliver a notice to
Purchaser stating that Seller disagrees with such calculation and specifying in reasonable detail those items or amounts as to which
Seller disagrees and the basis therefore.
(d)
If a notice of disagreement shall be duly delivered pursuant to Section 3.3(c), Seller and Purchaser shall,
during the ten (10) days following such delivery, use their commercially reasonable efforts to reach agreement on the disputed items
or amounts in order to determine, as may be required, the amount of Closing Working Capital and Closing Net Amount. If during
such period, Seller and Purchaser are unable to reach such agreement, they shall promptly thereafter cause a nationally recognized
independent accounting firm mutually agreeable to Purchaser and Seller, as the case may be (the "Independent Accountant"), to
review this Agreement and the disputed items or amounts for the purpose of calculating Closing Working Capital. Each of Purchaser
and Seller agrees that it shall not engage, or agree to engage, the Independent Accountant to perform any services other than as the
Independent Accountant pursuant hereto until the Closing Statement, Final Working Capital and Closing Net Amount have been
finally determined pursuant to this Section 3.3. Each party agrees to execute, if requested by the Independent Accountant, a
reasonable engagement letter. Purchaser and Seller shall cooperate with the Independent Accountant and promptly provide all
documents and information requested by the Independent Accountant. In making its calculation of Closing Working Capital and
Closing Net Amount, the Independent Accountant shall consider only those items or amounts in the Closing Statement and Purchaser's
calculation of Closing Working Capital and Closing Net Amount as to which Seller has disagreed in its notice of disagreement duly
delivered pursuant to Section 3.3(c). The Independent Accountant shall deliver to Seller and Purchaser, as promptly as practicable
(but in any case no later than twenty (20) days from the date of engagement of the Independent Accountant), a report setting forth such
calculation. Such report shall be final and binding upon Seller and Purchaser, shall be deemed a final arbitration award that is binding
on Purchaser and Seller, and neither Purchaser nor Seller shall seek further recourse to courts or other tribunals, other than to enforce
such report. Judgment may be entered to enforce such report in any court of competent jurisdiction. The Independent Accountant will
determine the allocation of the cost of the Independent Accountant's review and report based on the inverse of the percentage its
determination (before such allocation) bears to the total amount of the total items in dispute as originally submitted to the Independent
Accountant. For example, should the items in dispute total an amount equal to $1,000 and the Independent Accountant awards $600
in favor of Seller's position, 60% of the costs of the Independent Accountant's review would be borne by Purchaser and 40% of the
costs of the Independent Accountant's review would be borne by Seller.
(e)
Seller, Purchaser and the Company shall, and shall cause their respective representatives to, cooperate and
assist in the preparation of the Closing Statement and the calculation of Closing Working Capital and Closing Net Amount and in the
conduct of the review referred to in this Section 3.3, including the making available to the extent necessary of books, records, work
papers and personnel.
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(f)
If the Closing Net Amount is positive, then (A) Purchaser shall promptly (but in no event less than five
(5) Business Days after Final Working Capital has been determined) pay to Seller the Closing Net Amount by wire transfer of
immediately available funds to an account designated by Seller. If the Closing Net Amount is negative, then (A) Seller shall promptly
(but in no event less than five (5) Business Days after Final Working Capital has been determined) pay to Purchaser the Closing Net
Amount by wire transfer of immediately available funds to an account designated by Seller. "Final Working Capital" means Closing
Working Capital (i) as shown in Purchaser's calculation delivered pursuant to Section 3.3(b) if no notice of disagreement with respect
thereto is duly delivered pursuant to Section 3.3(c); or (ii) if such a notice of disagreement is delivered, (A) as agreed by Seller and
Purchaser pursuant to Section 3.3(d) or (B) in the absence of such agreement, as shown in the Independent Accountant's calculation
delivered pursuant to Section 3.3(d); provided, however, that in no event shall Final Working Capital be more than Purchaser's
calculation of Closing Working Capital delivered pursuant to Section 3.3(b) or less than Seller's calculation of Closing Working
Capital delivered pursuant to Section 3.3(c).
(g)
Any payment pursuant to Section 3.3(f) shall be made at a mutually convenient time and place, within five
(5) Business Days after Final Working Capital has been determined, by wire transfer by Purchaser or Seller, as the case may be, of
immediately available funds to the account of such other party as may be designated in writing by such other party. The amount of
any payment to be made pursuant to this Section 3.3 shall bear interest from and including the Closing Date to but excluding the date
of payment at a rate per annum equal to the rate of interest published from time to time by The Wall Street Journal, Eastern Edition, as
the "prime rate" at large U.S. money center banks during the period from the Closing Date to the date of payment. Such interest shall
be payable at the same time as the payment to which it relates and shall be calculated daily on the basis of a year of 365 days and the
actual number of days elapsed.
ARTICLE IV
CLOSING AND TERMINATION
4.1
Closing Date. Unless this Agreement shall have been terminated pursuant to Section 4.2, and subject to the
satisfaction (or to the extent permitted, the waiver) of the conditions set forth in Article X, the closing of the sale and purchase of the
Shares provided for in Section 2.1 hereof (the "Closing") shall take place at the offices of Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP located at 767
Fifth Avenue, New York, NY 10153-0199 (or at such other place as the parties may designate in writing) at 10:00 a.m. (New York
City time) on a date to be specified by the parties (the "Closing Date"), which date shall be no later than the third Business Day after
the satisfaction or waiver of the conditions set forth in Article X (excluding conditions that, by their terms, cannot be satisfied until the
Closing, but the Closing shall be subject to the satisfaction or waiver of those conditions), unless another time, date or place is agreed
to in writing by the parties hereto.
4.2

Termination of Agreement. This Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the Closing only:
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(a)

by mutual written consent of Seller, the Company and Purchaser;

(b)
by Purchaser, if Seller or the Company is in material breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or
agreement contained in this Agreement or if any representation or warranty of Seller or the Company shall have become untrue, in
either case, such that the conditions set forth in Sections 10.1(a) and 10.1(b) would not be satisfied and such breach is incapable of
being cured or, if capable of being cured, shall not have been cured within ten (10) Business Days following receipt by Seller and the
Company of notice of such breach from Purchaser;
(c)
by Seller or the Company, if Purchaser is in material breach of any representation, warranty, covenant or
agreement contained in this Agreement or if any representation or warranty of Purchaser shall have become untrue in either case such
that the conditions set forth in Sections 10.2(a) and 10.2(b) would not be satisfied and such breach is incapable of being cured or, if
capable of being cured, shall not have been cured within ten (10) Business Days following receipt by Purchaser of notice of such
breach from Seller and/or the Company;
(d)
by Purchaser, Seller or the Company at any time on or after May 15, 2012 (the "Termination Date"), if the
Closing of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall not have occurred by the close of business on such date; provided,
that the terminating party is not in material default of any of its obligations hereunder that has been the cause of, or resulted in, the
failure of the Closing to occur on or before the Termination Date.
(e)
by Purchaser, Seller or the Company, if there shall be in effect a final nonappealable Order of a
Governmental Body of competent jurisdiction restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby; provided, that the right to terminate this Agreement under this Section 4.2(e) shall not be available to a
terminating party if such Order was primarily due to the failure of such party to perform any of its obligations under this Agreement.
Procedure Upon Termination. In the event of termination and abandonment by Purchaser, Seller or the Company,
4.3
or by all parties, pursuant to Section 4.2 hereof, written notice thereof shall forthwith be given to the other party or parties, and this
Agreement shall terminate, and the purchase of the Shares hereunder shall be abandoned, without further action by Purchaser, Seller
or the Company.
4.4
Effect of Termination. In the event that this Agreement is validly terminated in accordance with Section 4.2 and
4.3, then each of the parties shall be relieved of their duties and obligations arising under this Agreement after the date of such
termination and such termination shall be without liability to Purchaser, Seller or the Company (other than this Section 4.4,
Section 8.6 (Confidentiality) and Article XII (Miscellaneous) hereof which shall survive the termination of this Agreement); provided,
that no such termination shall relieve any party hereto from liability for a breach of any of its covenants or agreements or willful
breach of its representations and warranties contained in this Agreement prior to the date of termination. The damages recoverable by
the non-breaching party shall include all attorneys' fees reasonably incurred by such party in connection with the transactions
contemplated hereby.
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ARTICLE V
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY
The Company hereby represents and warrants to Purchaser that:
5.1

Organization and Good Standing.

(a)
The Company is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the
State of Washington and has all requisite corporate power and authority to own, lease and operate its properties and to carry on its
business in all material respects as now conducted. The Company is duly qualified or authorized to do business and is in good
standing under the laws of each jurisdiction in which it owns or leases real property and each other jurisdiction in which the conduct
of its business or the ownership of its properties requires such qualification or authorization, except where the failure to be so
qualified, authorized or in good standing would not have a Material Adverse Effect.
(b)
The Company has delivered or made available to Purchaser true and complete copies of the certificate of
incorporation and by-laws or comparable organizational documents of the Company as amended and in effect on the date hereof.
Authorization of Agreement. The Company has all requisite power and authority to execute and deliver this
5.2
Agreement and each other agreement, document, or instrument or certificate contemplated by this Agreement or to be executed by the
Company in connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the "Company Documents"), and
to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the Company Documents
and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby have been duly authorized by all requisite corporate action
on the part of the Company. This Agreement has been, and each of the Company Documents will be at or prior to the Closing, duly
and validly executed and delivered by the Company and (assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery by the other parties
hereto and thereto) this Agreement constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligations of the Company, enforceable against it in
accordance with its terms, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and similar laws affecting
creditors' rights and remedies generally, and subject, as to enforceability, to general principles of equity, including principles of
commercial reasonableness, good faith and fair dealing (regardless of whether enforcement is sought in a proceeding at law or in
equity).
5.3

Conflicts; Consents of Third Parties.

(a)
Except as set forth on Schedule 5.3(a), neither the execution, delivery or performance by the Company of
this Agreement or the Company Documents, the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, or compliance by
the Company with any of the provisions hereof or thereof will conflict with, or result in any violation of or default (with or without
notice or lapse of time, or both) under, or give rise to a right of termination or cancellation under, any provision of (i) the certificate of
incorporation and by-laws or comparable organizational documents of the Company, (ii) any Contract or Permit to which the
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Company is a party or by which any of the properties or assets of the Company are bound, (iii) any Order applicable to the Company
or by which any of the properties or assets of the Company are bound, or (iv) any applicable Law, other than, in the case of clauses (ii)
and (iii), such conflicts, violations, defaults, terminations or cancellations that are not individually or in the aggregate, material to the
Company.
(b)
Except as set forth on Schedule 5.3(b), no consent, waiver, approval, Order, Permit or authorization of, or
declaration or filing with, or notification to, any Person or Governmental Body is required on the part of the Company in connection
with the execution and delivery of this Agreement or the Company Documents or the compliance by the Company with any of the
provisions hereof or thereof, or the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, except for compliance with the
applicable requirements of the HSR Act and such other consents, waivers, approvals, Orders, Permits or authorizations that are not
material to the Company.
5.4

Capitalization.

(a)
The authorized capital stock of the Company consists of 100 shares of common stock, no par value (the
"Common Stock"). As of the date hereof, there are ten (10) shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding and no shares of
Common Stock are held by the Company as treasury stock. All of the issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock were duly
authorized for issuance and are validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable.
(b)
Except as set forth on Schedule 5.4(b), there is no existing option, warrant, call, right, or Contract of any
character to which the Company is a party requiring, and there are no securities of the Company outstanding which upon conversion
or exchange would require, the issuance, of any shares of capital stock of the Company or other securities convertible into,
exchangeable for or evidencing the right to subscribe for or purchase shares of capital stock of the Company. The Company is not a
party to any voting trust or other Contract with respect to the voting, redemption, sale, transfer or other disposition of the Common
Stock of the Company.
Subsidiaries. The Company does not have any wholly or partially owned Subsidiaries. The Company does not,
5.5
directly or indirectly, own, hold or control any interest in any person (whether of record, beneficially, or equitably). The Company is
not a direct or indirect participant in any joint venture, partnership, co-development, cost-sharing or other similar arrangement.
5.6

Financial Statements.

(a)
The Company has made available to Purchaser copies of the unaudited: (i) asset and liabilities statement of
the Company (the "Balance Sheet") as of the twelve (12) months ending December 31, 2011, the "Balance Sheet Date") and the
related profit and loss, changes in stockholders' equity and cash flow statements for the twelve month period then ended and (ii) asset
and liabilities statement of the Company for the calendar years ended 2008, 2009 and 2010 and the related profit and loss, changes in
stockholders' equity and cash flow statements for the calendar years then ended (together with the Balance Sheet, the "Financial
Statements").
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(b)
The Financial Statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position and
results of operations of the Company as of the dates and for the periods specified therein. The Financial Statements conform in all
material respects with GAAP, except with respect to the reporting, or absence thereof, of intercompany transactions and related notes
and schedules.
No Undisclosed Liabilities. The Company does not have any Liabilities that are required to be reflected on a
5.7
balance sheet prepared in accordance with GAAP or in the notes thereto or any "off-balance sheet arrangements" that would be
required to be disclosed under Item 303(a)(4) of Regulation S-K promulgated under the Securities Act, except for Liabilities
(i) specifically disclosed, reflected or reserved against on the Balance Sheet, (ii) incurred in connection with the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, (iii) incurred in the Ordinary Course of Business since the Balance Sheet Date (none of which arises
out of any breach of contract, warranty, tort, infringement or violation of law) and (iv) that individually, or in the aggregate, are
immaterial to the Company.
Absence of Certain Developments. Except as contemplated by this Agreement or as set forth on Schedule 5.8,
5.8
since the Balance Sheet Date (i) the Company has conducted its business only in the Ordinary Course of Business and (ii) there has
not been any event, change, occurrence or circumstance that has had a Material Adverse Effect.
5.9
Taxes. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.9, all Income Tax Returns and all other material Tax Returns and reports
required to be filed with respect to the Company have been timely filed, all such Tax Returns were true, correct and complete in all
material respects, all material Taxes required to be paid by or with respect to the Company (whether or not shown on a Tax Return)
have either been paid or are reflected on the Financial Statements in accordance with GAAP and all material Taxes required to be
withheld by the Company have been withheld and paid over to the proper Taxing Authority. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.9, as of
the date hereof, (i) no Tax Return of the Company is under current examination by any Taxing Authority, (ii) there have been no
audits of income Tax Returns of the Company for taxable years ending after April 20, 2006 and (iii) there are no deficiencies for any
material amount of Taxes assessed against the Company that have not been fully paid, reflected on the Financial Statements in
accordance with GAAP or otherwise satisfied or withdrawn. No written claim has been made by a Taxing Authority for a taxable year
ending after April 20, 2006 in a jurisdiction in which the Company does not file Tax Returns that the Company is or may be subject to
taxation by that jurisdiction. The Company has not, within the past two (2) years, distributed the stock of another Person, or had its
stock distributed by another Person, in a transaction that was purported or intended to be governed, in whole or in part, by Section 355
or Section 361 of the Code. The Company is not, and has not been, a party to any "listed transaction" as defined in Section 6707A(c)
(2) of the Code and Treasury Regulations Section 1.6011-4(b)(2). Except as set forth on Schedule 5.9, as of the date hereof, the
Company has not waived any statute of limitations in respect of Taxes or agreed to any extension of time with respect to a Tax
assessment or deficiency which waiver or extension remains in effect. The Company will not be required to include any item of
income in, or exclude any item of deduction from, taxable income for any taxable period (or portion thereof) ending after the Closing
Date as a result of any: (i) change in method of accounting for a taxable period ending on or prior to the Closing Date, (ii) "closing
agreement" as described in Section 7121 of the Code (or any similar provision of non-United
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States federal Income Tax law) executed on or prior to the Closing Date, (iii) intercompany transactions or excess loss account
described in Treasury Regulations under Section 1502 of the Code (or any similar provision of non-United States federal Income Tax
law), (iv) installment sale or open transaction disposition made on or prior to the Closing Date, (v) prepaid amount received on or
prior to the Closing Date, or (vi) election under Section 108(i) of the Code.
Real Property. The Company does not own any real property. Schedule 5.10 sets forth a complete list of all leases
5.10
of real property by the Company involving monthly payments in excess of $5,000 (individually, a "Real Property Lease" and
collectively, the "Real Property Leases") as lessee or lessor. The Company has not received any written notice of any default or event
that with notice or lapse of time, or both, would constitute a material default by the Company under any of the Real Property Leases
and to the Knowledge of the Company it is not in material default under such Real Property Leases and there does not exist any event
that with notice or lapse of time, or both, would constitute a material default by the Company under any of the Real Property Leases.
To the Knowledge of the Company, no other party is in default thereof, and no party to the Real Property Leases has exercised any
termination rights with respect thereto. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company has good and marketable title to all leasehold
improvements with respect to any Real Property Lease, except as would not be material to the Company.
Tangible Personal Property. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.11(a), the Company has valid title to all of its
5.11
personal property, and such personal property is not subject to any Lien except as set forth on Schedule 5.11(a). Schedule 5.11(b) sets
forth all material leases for personal property leased by the Company ("Personal Property Leases"). To the Knowledge of the
Company, the Company has not received any written notice of any default or any event that with notice or lapse of time, or both,
would constitute a default, by the Company under any of the Personal Property Leases and to the Knowledge of the Company it is not
in material default under such Personal Property Leases and there does not exist any event that with notice or lapse of time, or both,
would constitute a material default by the Company under any of the Personal Property Leases. To the Knowledge of the Company,
no other party is in default thereof, and no party to the Personal Property Leases has exercised any termination rights with respect
thereto. The Company has good and marketable title to (or with respect to leased properties and assets, valid leaseholder interests in)
all properties and assets, real and personal, used in or necessary to the business of the Company, except as would not be material to the
Company. All material (individually or in the aggregate) plant, property and equipment of the Company that are used in the
operations of its business are in good operating condition and repair.
5.12

Intellectual Property.

(a)
Schedule 5.12(a) sets forth all of the registered Intellectual Property and material unregistered Marks
owned by the Company and all applications for registration of Intellectual Property owned by the Company. Except as set forth on
Schedule 5.12(b), the Company owns or has valid licenses to use all material Intellectual Property used in the business as currently
conducted by the Company. The Company has not exclusively licensed or authorized any other party or entity to exclusively use any
of the material Intellectual Property used by the Company. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.12(c), to the Knowledge of the
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Company, (i) the material Intellectual Property used by the Company is not the subject of any challenge received by the Company in
writing, (ii) the Company has not received any written notice of any default or any event that with notice or lapse of time, or both,
would constitute a default under any material Intellectual Property license to which the Company is a party or by which it is bound
and (iii) no third party is infringing on any of the material registered Intellectual Property owned by the Company.
(b)
Except as set forth on Schedule 5.12(b), to the Knowledge of the Company, (i) there is no unauthorized
use, disclosure, infringement, violation or misappropriation of any material Intellectual Property or violation of any material noncompetition agreements by any third-party, and (ii) there is no unauthorized use, disclosure, infringement, violation or
misappropriation of any intellectual property rights of any third party ("Third Party Intellectual Property Rights") by the Company.
(c)
To the Knowledge of the Company, the Company is not, nor will it be as a result of the execution and
delivery of this Agreement or the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, in breach of any material license, sublicense or
other agreement, to which the Company is a party relating to the Intellectual Property or Third Party Intellectual Property Rights. To
the Knowledge of the Company, no third-party is in breach of any material license, sublicense or other agreement (as to which the
Company is a party) relating to Intellectual Property or Third Party Intellectual Property rights.
(d)
All material issued patents and registered trademarks, trade names, service marks, and copyrights owned
by the Company are valid, subsisting, and in full force and effect. The Company (i) is not a party to any legal proceeding, nor to the
Knowledge of the Company is any such legal proceeding threatened in writing, which involves a claim of misuse, unauthorized
disclosure, infringement, violation or misappropriation by the Company of any Third Party Intellectual Property Right; and (ii) has no
Knowledge that the development, manufacturing, use, marketing, distribution, licensing or sale of its products and services discloses
without authorization, infringes, violates or misappropriates any material Third Party Intellectual Property Right.
(e)
To the Knowledge of the Company, no consultants or employees of the Company who contributed to
conception, reduction to practice, creation or development of material Intellectual Property in the course of providing services to the
Company has any right, title or interest in any material Intellectual Property of the Company.
(f)
The Company has taken reasonable steps in accordance with normal industry practice in the industry in
which it conducts its business to maintain the confidentiality of its trade secrets and other confidential information.
(g)
To the Knowledge of the Company, the Software developed by the Company does not contain, any
Disabling Device including, but not limited to, any limitations that are triggered by: (a) software being used or copied a certain
number of times, or after the lapse of a certain period of time; (b) software being installed on or moved to a central processing unit or
system that has a serial number, model number or other identification different from the central processing unit or system on which the
software was originally installed; or (c) the
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occurrence or lapse of any similar triggering factor or event. "Disabling Device" means any virus, worm, trap door, back door, timer,
clock, counter, Trojan horse or other limiting routine, instruction or design that would erase data or programming or otherwise cause
systems to become inoperable or incapable of being used in the full manner for which it was designed and created.
(h)
The Company has not delivered, licensed or made available, and has no duty or obligation (whether
present, contingent, or otherwise) to deliver, license or make available, the source code for any Software developed for the Company
to any Person who is not, as of the date of this Agreement, an employee of the Company, and no Software material to the Business is
subject to the terms of any "open source" or other similar license that provides for any source of such software to be disclosed,
licensed, publicly distributed or dedicated to the public.
5.13

Material Contracts.

Schedule 5.13(a) sets forth all of the following Contracts to which the Company is a party or by which it is
(a)
bound (collectively, the "Material Contracts"):
(i)

Contracts with Parent, Seller or any current officer, director or employee of the Parent, Seller or

the Company;
(ii)
Contracts under which the Company is or will after the Closing be restricted from competing in
any line of business or with any Person in any geographical area or soliciting or hiring any person;
(iii)

any joint venture or partnership Contract;

(iv)
Contracts for the sale of any of the assets of the Company other than in the Ordinary Course of
Business, for consideration in excess of $50,000;
(v)
Contracts relating to any acquisition to be made by the Company of any operating business or the
capital stock of any other Person, in each case for consideration in excess of $100,000;
(vi)
Contracts relating to the incurrence of Indebtedness, or the making of any loans, in each case
involving amounts in excess of $100,000;
(vii)

Contracts providing for severance, retention, change in control or other similar payments;

(viii)
Contracts which involve the expenditure of more than $100,000 in the aggregate or require
performance by any party more than one year from the date hereof that, in either case, are not terminable by the Company
without penalty on notice of 180 days' or less, except for purchase orders issued in the Ordinary Course of Business;
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(ix)
any advertising sales representative agreements providing for third parties to receive
commissions upon sales by the Company;
(x)
any contract regarding the development, ownership or use of material Intellectual Property
(including material licenses to or from third parties, but other than commercial off the shelf software, as the terms is
commonly understood);
(xi)

Website hosting agreements and co-location facility agreements with any third party;

(xii)
any Contract under which real time user updates and other social media communications, end
user profiles and other data information is supplied or otherwise made available to the Company; and
(xiii)

any Agreement, the consequences of default or termination of which could cause a Material

Adverse Effect.
(b)
Except as set forth on Schedule 5.13(b), the Company has not received any written notice of any material
default or event that with notice or lapse of time, or both, would constitute a material default by the Company or any other party under
any Material Contract. As of the date hereof, each of the Material Contracts is in full force and effect, and there exists no default or
event of default or event, occurrence, condition or act, with respect to the Company or to the Knowledge of the Company with respect
to the other contracting party, which, with the giving of notice, the lapse of the time or the happening of any other event or condition,
would become a material default or event of default under any Material Contract. True, correct and complete copies of all Material
Contracts have been delivered or made available to the Purchaser.
(c)
With respect to the fifteen (15) largest advertisers of the Company, as measured by the dollar amount of ad
purchases therefrom for cash for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 (the "Material Advertisers"), the Company is not involved
in any material claim, dispute or controversy with any such Material Advertiser.
5.14

Employee Benefits Plans; Employee Matters.

(a)
Schedule 5.14(a) lists each "employee benefit plan" (as defined in Section 3(3) of the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA")) and any other material employee plan or agreement maintained or
contributed to by the Company or the Seller Group for the benefit of employees of the Company (each, a "Company Benefit Plan").
The Company has made available to Purchaser correct and complete copies of each Company Benefit Plan and, to the extent
applicable, (i) the most recent annual reports on Form 5500 required to be filed with the IRS with respect to each Company Benefit
Plan, (ii) the most recent summary plan description for each Company Benefit Plan, and (iii) the most recent IRS determination letter
for each Company Benefit Plan. Schedule 5.14(a) identifies each Company Benefit Plan that is sponsored or administered by the
Company, or that is exclusive to employees of the Company (with no other employees of the Seller Group eligible to participate), each
such Company Benefit Plan referred to herein as an "Assumed Plan." Each Company Assumed Plan has been administered in all
material respects in accordance with its terms. All
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Company Assumed Plans are in material compliance with the applicable provisions of ERISA, the Code and all other applicable
Laws, except for any noncompliance that would not have a Material Adverse Effect.
(b)
Except as set forth in Schedule 5.14(b), no Company Assumed Plans are "employee pension benefit plans"
(as defined in Section 3(2) of ERISA). Each Company Assumed Plan that is intended to be qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code
has received a favorable determination letter from the IRS to the effect that such Company Assumed Plan is qualified under section
401(a) of the Code and the trust related thereto is exempt from federal income taxes under section 501(a) of the Code. No such
determination letter has been revoked and revocation has not been threatened. No such Company Assumed Plan has been amended or
operated since the date of its most recent determination letter in any respect, and no act or omission has occurred, that would adversely
affect its qualification.
(c)
All contributions, premiums and benefit payments under or in connection with the Company Assumed
Plans that are required to have been made as of the date hereof in accordance with the terms of the Company Assumed Plans have
been timely made or have been reflected on the most recent Balance Sheet.
(d)
Except as set forth on Schedule 5.14(d), neither the Company nor any ERISA Affiliate has made any
written representation or promise of any bonus or performance payment to any employee, officer or director of the Company.
(e)
Except as set forth on Schedule 5.14(e), neither the Company nor any ERISA Affiliate is a party to, or in
the last six (6) years has made any contribution to, or otherwise incurred any obligation under, (i) any "multiemployer plan" as defined
in Section 3(37) of ERISA, (ii) a "defined benefit plan" as defined in Section 3(35) of ERISA, or (iii) any other plan which was ever
subject to Section 412 of the Code or Title IV of ERISA.
(f)
(i) None of the Company Benefit Plans promises or provides retiree medical or other retiree welfare
benefits to any employee of the Company; (ii) neither the Company nor any officer of the Company has been party to any non-exempt
"prohibited transaction," as such term is defined in Section 406 of ERISA and Section 4975 of the Code, with respect to any Company
Benefit Plan; (iii) neither the Company nor any ERISA Affiliate is subject to any liability or penalty under Sections 4976 through
4980 of the Code or Title I of ERISA with respect to any of the Assumed Plans; (iv) with respect to each Assumed Plan, no
"reportable event" within the meaning of Section 4043 of ERISA (excluding any such event for which the thirty (30) day notice
requirement has been waived under the regulations to Section 4043 of ERISA) nor any event described in Section 4062, 4063 or 4041
or ERISA has occurred; (v) the Company has not incurred, and does not expect to incur any liability under Title IV of ERISA or
Section 412 of the Code with respect to any Company Benefit Plan or any other benefit plan of the Company or any ERISA Affiliate;
and (vi) except as set forth on Schedule 5.14(f), each Assumed Plan can be amended, terminated or otherwise discontinued after the
Closing in accordance with its terms, without liability to the Purchaser (other than ordinary administrative expenses typically incurred
in a termination event and contributions made though the date of termination). The Company has prepared in good faith and timely
filed all requisite governmental reports, filings and registrations (which were true and correct in all material
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respects as of the date filed) and has properly and timely filed and distributed or posted all notices and reports to employees required
to be filed, distributed or posted with respect to each Assumed Plan, except, in each case, for noncompliance for which the Company
could not be reasonably expected to have a material liability. No suit, administrative proceeding, action or other litigation is pending,
or to the Knowledge of the Company is threatened, against or with respect to any Assumed Plan, including any audit or inquiry by the
IRS, the United States Department of Labor or any other Governmental Entity.
(g)
With respect to each Company Benefit Plan, the Company and the Seller Group have complied with (i) the
applicable health care continuation and notice provisions of the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985
("COBRA") and the regulations thereunder, (ii) the applicable requirements of the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 and the
regulations thereunder, and (iii) the applicable requirements of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as
amended, and the regulations thereunder, except, in each case, for noncompliance for which the Company could not be reasonably
expected to have a material liability.
(h)
There has been no amendment to, written interpretation or announcement (whether or not written) by the
Company relating to, or change in participation or coverage under, any Assumed Plan which would materially increase the expense of
maintaining such Assumed Plan above the level of expense incurred with respect to that Assumed Plan for the most recent fiscal year
included in the Financial Statements.
(i)
To the Knowledge of the Company, no condition exists as a result of which the Company would have any
liability, whether absolute or contingent, including any obligations under the Company Benefit Plans, with respect to any
misclassification of a person performing services for the Company as an independent contractor rather than as an employee.
(j)
Each Company Benefit Plan that is a nonqualified deferred compensation plan (as defined under Section
409A of the Code) has been operated in full compliance with Section 409A of the Code and the final regulations promulgated
thereunder with respect to employees of the Company. No such nonqualified deferred compensation plan contains a provision that
violates, or could give rise to a violation of, Section 409A of the Code with respect to employees of the Company. The Company and
the Seller Group have fully complied with all withholding and reporting obligations imposed under Section 409A of the Code with
respect to each Company employee participating in any such nonqualified deferred compensation plan. The Company has no actual or
potential liability with respect to any gross-up, make-whole, or other similar additional payment with respect to taxes, interest or
penalties imposed under Section 409A of the Code.
Schedule 5.14(k) lists: (i) (x) all current employees of the Company, their respective work location, title,
(k)
date of hire and current rate of base compensation, and (y) each person who has either accepted, has an outstanding offer, or whom the
Company proposes to offer employment and such person's prospective or proposed date of hire, title and rate of base compensation;
(ii) each employment agreement or arrangement to which the Company is a party and which is not terminable "at will" or upon such
notice as results by Law from the termination of employment of an employee without agreement as to notice or severance by the
Company;
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and (iii) the names of each employee of the Company who is subject to a non-competition, non-solicitation or similar agreement. True
and correct copies of agreements for (ii) and (iii) above have been provided to the Purchaser. The Company is in compliance in all
material respects with all currently applicable laws and regulations respecting employment, discrimination in employment, terms and
conditions of employment, wages, hours and occupational safety and health and employment practices. There are no unfair labor
practice charges or complaints pending or to the Knowledge of the Company, threatened on behalf of an employee or group of
employees of the Company. The Company has withheld all amounts required by law or by agreement to be withheld from the wages,
salaries, and other payments to employees; and is not liable for any arrears of wages or any taxes or any penalty for failure to comply
with any of the foregoing. The Company is not liable for any payment to any trust or other fund or to any governmental or
administrative authority with respect to unemployment compensation benefits or social security (other than routine payments to be
made in the Ordinary Course or as required by applicable Law). Except as set forth on Schedule 5.14(k), there are no disputes
pending or, to the Knowledge of the Company, threatened, between the Company and any current or former employees, which
controversies have or could reasonably be expected to result in a Legal Proceeding or arbitration. The Company is not a party to any
collective bargaining agreement or other labor unions contract nor to the Knowledge of the Company are there of any activities or
proceedings of any labor union to organize any such employees. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.14(k), to the Knowledge of the
Company, no employees of the Company are in violation of any term of any employment contract, patent disclosure agreement,
noncompetition agreement, or any restrictive covenant to a former employer relating to the right of any such employee to be employed
by the Company because of the nature of the business conducted or presently proposed to be conducted by the Company or to the use
of trade secrets or proprietary information of others. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.14(k), no employees of the Company have
given notice to the Company, nor to the Knowledge of the Company does any such employee intend to terminate his or her
employment with the Company. The Company is not a party to any Contract that shall result in the payment by, or creation of any
commitment or obligation (absolute or contingent) to pay on behalf of the Company any severance, termination, or other similar
payments to any employee following termination of employment or otherwise except as set forth on Schedule 5.14(a). The Company
is not a party to any agreement, Contract, arrangement or plan that has resulted or would reasonably be expected to result, separately
or in the aggregate, in the payment of any "excess parachute payments" within the meaning of Section 280G of the Code as a result of
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.14(k), none of the employees of the Company are
in nonimmigrant visa status or have applications for lawful permanent residence pending with the relevant Governmental Body.
5.15
Litigation. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.15, as of the date hereof, there are no Legal Proceedings pending or,
to the Knowledge of the Company, threatened against the Company before any Governmental Body, which, if adversely determined,
would have a Material Adverse Effect. The Company is not subject to any material Order of any Governmental Body.
5.16
Compliance with Laws; Permits. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.16, the operations, business and assets of the
Company are in compliance in all material respects with applicable Laws. To the Knowledge of the Company, the Company is not
under investigation with respect to the violation of any Laws, except where such violation would not be materially
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adverse to the Company. The Company has been granted all material Permits necessary for the conduct of its business, and the
Company has not received any notice that any Governmental Body or other licensing authority will revoke, cancel, rescind, materially
modify or refuse to renew in the Ordinary Course of Business any of such Permits. There are no Claims pending or, to the Knowledge
of the Company, threatened, relating to the suspension, revocation or modification of any Permit.
Environmental Matters. The representations and warranties contained in this Section 5.17 are the sole and
5.17
exclusive representations and warranties of the Company or Seller pertaining or relating to any environmental, health or safety
matters, including any arising under any Environmental Laws. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.17 hereto:
(a)
the operations of the Company are and, to the Knowledge of the Company, have been in material
compliance with all applicable Environmental Laws, which compliance includes obtaining, maintaining and complying with any
Permits required under all applicable Environmental Laws necessary to operate its business ("Environmental Permits");
(b)
the Company is not subject to any pending, or to the Knowledge of the Company, threatened claim
alleging that the Company may be in material violation of any Environmental Law or any Environmental Permit or may have any
material liability under any Environmental Law;
(c)
to the Knowledge of the Company, there are no pending or threatened investigations of the business of the
Company, or any currently or previously owned or leased property of the Company under Environmental Laws, which would
reasonably be expected to result in the Company incurring any material liability pursuant to any Environmental Law.
(d)
Except as set forth on Schedule 5.17(d), to the Knowledge of the Company, no release, discharge or spill
of Hazardous Materials has occurred or is occurring at concentrations exceeding those allowed by Environmental Laws at any real
property currently or previously owned or leased by the Company that would reasonably be expected to result in the Company
incurring material liabilities under Environmental Laws.
(e)
Except as set forth on Schedule 5.17(e), to the Knowledge of the Company, no building, equipment or
other improvement over which the Company has control on any real property owned, leased or operated by the Company contains any
friable asbestos-containing materials or any polychlorinated biphenyls.
(f)
To the Knowledge of the Company, the Company made available all material non-privileged assessments,
audits, reports and similar documentation related to environmental matters that are in the Company's possession or reasonable control.
5.18
Financial Advisors. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.18, no Person has acted, directly or indirectly, as a broker,
finder or financial advisor for Seller or the Company in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and no such
Person is entitled to any fee or commission or like payment from Purchaser in respect thereof. The Company has no liability or
obligation to pay a fee or commission or like payment to any Person who has acted
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directly or indirectly, as a broker, finder or financial advisor for Seller or the Company in connection with the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement.
Insurance Policies. Schedule 5.19 sets forth a correct and complete list of all material insurance policies
5.19
maintained by the Company or on behalf the Company to which it is an additional insured or otherwise is a beneficiary of such
policies (the "Policies"). The Policies (a) have been issued by insurers which, to the Knowledge of the Company, are reputable and
financially sound, (b) provide coverage for the operations conducted by the Company of a scope and coverage consistent, in all
material respects, with customary practice in the industries in which the Company operates and (c) are in full force and effect. The
Company is not in material breach or default, and the Company has not taken any action or failed to take any action which, with notice
or the lapse of time, would constitute such a breach or default, or permit termination or modification, of any of the Policies. No
written notice of cancellation or termination or notice of any material premium increase has been received by the Company with
respect to any of the Policies. There is no material claim pending under any of such policies, and no material claim as to which
coverage has been questioned, denied or disputed by the underwriters of such policies. All premiums due and payable under all such
policies and bonds have been paid, and the Company is otherwise in material compliance with the terms of such policies.
Interested Party Transactions. Except as set forth in Schedule 5.20, no employee, officer or director of Parent or
5.20
Seller or any of their respective Affiliates: (a) owns five percent (5%) or more of any class of securities of, or has an equity interest of
five percent (5%) or more in, any Person which has any business relationship (as lessor, supplier, customer, consultant or otherwise)
with the Company; (b) owns, or has any interest in, the assets of the Company or any right, property or asset which is utilized or
required by the Company in connection with owning or operating the Company; (c) has any other business relationship (as lessor,
supplier, customer, consultant or otherwise, except in their capacity as a member, officer or employee) with the Company; or (d) has
any claim or cause of action against the Company (other than routine claims for benefits under any Company Benefit Plans).
5.21
Effect of Transfer of the Shares. Except as set forth on Schedule 5.21, neither the execution and delivery of this
Agreement nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby will (i) entitle any current or former employee, director or
other service provider of the Company to severance benefits or any other payment (including severance, unemployment compensation,
golden parachute, bonus, termination or otherwise) becoming due; (ii) increase any benefits otherwise payable by the Company to any
current or former employee, director or other service provider; or (iii) accelerate the time of payment or vesting, or increase the
amount of compensation due any such employee, director or service provider.
5.22
Powers of Attorney/Bank Accounts. Schedule 5.22 sets forth the names and locations of (a) each Person holding a
power of attorney on behalf of the Company, and (b) all banks, trust companies, brokerage firms or other financial institutions at
which the Company maintains an account or safe-deposit box and the name of each person authorized to draw thereon or make
withdrawals therefrom.
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5.23

Data Privacy and Data Protection.

(a)
A privacy statement is posted and accessible to individuals on the Company's website ("Privacy
Statement"). At all times, the Company has complied in all material respects with its Privacy Statement and with all applicable Laws
and, to the Knowledge of the Company, with the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard.
(b)
The Company has implemented commercially reasonable measures to protect from unauthorized access all
personal data and/or personally identifiable information ("PII") held on information technology systems controlled by or on behalf the
Company.
5.24
No Other Representations or Warranties; Schedules. Except for the representations and warranties contained in this
Article V (as modified by the Schedules hereto), neither the Company nor any other Person makes any other express or implied
representation or warranty with respect the Company or the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and the Company disclaims
any other representations or warranties, whether made by the Company, Seller or any of their respective Affiliates, officers, directors,
employees, agents or representatives. Except for the representations and warranties contained in Article V hereof (as modified by the
Schedules), the Company and Seller hereby disclaim all liability and responsibility for any representation, warranty, projection,
forecast, statement, or information made, communicated, or furnished (orally or in writing) to Purchaser or its Affiliates or
representatives (including any opinion, information, projection, or advice that may have been or may be provided to Purchaser by any
director, officer, employee, agent, consultant, or representative of the Company or Seller or any of their respective Affiliates). The
Company and Seller make no representations or warranties to Purchaser regarding the probable success or profitability of the
Company. The disclosure of any matter or item in any schedule hereto shall not be deemed to constitute an acknowledgment that any
such matter is required to be disclosed.
ARTICLE VI
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE SELLER
Seller hereby represents, severally and not jointly, to Purchaser that:
6.1
Organization and Good Standing. Seller is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing
under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation as set forth above and has all requisite corporate power and authority to own,
lease and operate its properties and to carry on its business.
6.2
Authorization of Agreement. Seller has all requisite corporate power, authority and legal capacity to execute and
deliver this Agreement and each other agreement, document, or instrument or certificate contemplated by this Agreement or to be
executed by Seller in connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (together with this
Agreement, the "Seller Documents"), and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. The execution and
delivery of this Agreement and each of the Seller Documents and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and
thereby have been duly authorized by all required corporate action on the part of Seller. This Agreement has
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been, and each of the Seller Documents will be at or prior to the Closing, duly and validly executed and delivered by Seller, and
(assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery by the other parties hereto and thereto) this Agreement constitutes, and each
Seller Document, when so executed and delivered will constitute, the legal, valid and binding obligation of Seller, enforceable against
Seller in accordance with its terms, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and similar laws
affecting creditors' rights and remedies generally, and subject, as to enforceability, to general principles of equity, including principles
of commercial reasonableness, good faith and fair dealing (regardless of whether enforcement is sought in a proceeding at law or in
equity).
6.3

Conflicts; Consents of Third Parties.

(a)
None of the execution and delivery by Seller of this Agreement or the Seller Documents, the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, or compliance by Seller with any of the provisions hereof or
thereof will conflict with, or result in any violation of or default (with or without notice or lapse of time, or both) under, or give rise to
a right of termination or cancellation under, any provision of (i) the certificate of incorporation and by-laws or comparable
organizational documents of Seller; (ii) any Contract or Permit to which Seller is a party or by which any of the properties or assets of
Seller are bound; (iii) any Order applicable to Seller or by which any of the properties or assets of Seller are bound; or (iv) any
applicable Law, other than, in the case of clauses (ii), (iii) and (iv), such conflicts, violations, defaults, terminations or cancellations
that would not have a material adverse effect on Seller's ability to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.
(b)
No consent, waiver, approval, Order, Permit or authorization of, or declaration or filing with, or
notification to, any Person or Governmental Body is required on the part of Seller in connection with the execution and delivery of
this Agreement or Seller Documents, or the compliance by Seller with any of the provisions hereof or thereof, the consummation of
the transactions contemplated hereby, except for compliance with the applicable requirements of the HSR Act and such other
consents, waivers, approvals, Orders, permits or authorizations the failure of which to obtain would not have a material adverse effect
on Seller's ability to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.
Ownership and Transfer of Shares. Except for the Liens and encumbrances set forth on Schedule 6.4, Seller is the
6.4
record and beneficial owner of the Shares, free and clear of any and all Liens. All such liens and encumbrances as set forth in
Schedule 6.4 shall be released on or prior to the Closing Date, and concurrent with such release, Seller will have the corporate power
and authority to sell, transfer, assign and deliver such Shares as provided in this Agreement, and such delivery will convey to
Purchaser good and marketable title to such Shares, free and clear of any and all Liens.
6.5
Litigation. As of the date hereof, there are no Legal Proceedings pending or, to the knowledge of Seller, threatened
that are reasonably likely to prohibit or restrain the ability of Seller to enter into this Agreement or consummate the transactions
contemplated hereby.
6.6
Financial Advisors. Except as set forth on Schedule 6.6, no Person has acted, directly or indirectly, as a broker,
finder or financial advisor for Seller in connection with the
28

transactions contemplated by this Agreement and no Person is entitled to any fee or commission or like payment in respect thereof.
ARTICLE VII
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF PURCHASER
Purchaser hereby represents and warrants to Seller that:
Organization and Good Standing. Purchaser is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing
7.1
under the laws of the State of Iowa and has all requisite corporate power and authority to own, lease and operate properties and carry
on its business.
7.2
Authorization of Agreement. Purchaser has full corporate power and authority to execute and deliver this
Agreement and each other agreement, document, instrument or certificate contemplated by this Agreement or to be executed by
Purchaser in connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby (the "Purchaser Documents"),
and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. The execution, delivery and performance by Purchaser of this
Agreement and each Purchaser Document have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate action on behalf of Purchaser. This
Agreement has been, and each Purchaser Document will be at or prior to the Closing, duly executed and delivered by Purchaser and
(assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery by the other parties hereto and thereto) this Agreement constitutes, and each
Purchaser Document when so executed and delivered will constitute, the legal, valid and binding obligation of Purchaser, enforceable
against Purchaser in accordance with its terms, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and similar
laws affecting creditors' rights and remedies generally, and subject, as to enforceability, to general principles of equity, including
principles of commercial reasonableness, good faith and fair dealing (regardless of whether enforcement is sought in a proceeding at
law or in equity).
7.3

Conflicts; Consents of Third Parties.

(a)
Except as set forth on Schedule 7.3(a) hereto, none of the execution and delivery by Purchaser of this
Agreement or the Purchaser Documents, the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, or the compliance by
Purchaser with any of the provisions hereof or thereof will conflict with, or result in any violation of or default (with or without notice
or lapse of time, or both) under, or give rise to a right of termination or cancellation under, any provision of (i) the certificate of
incorporation and by-laws of Purchaser; (ii) any Contract or Permit to which Purchaser is a party or by which Purchaser or its
properties or assets are bound; (iii) any Order of any Governmental Body applicable to Purchaser or by which any of the properties or
assets of Purchaser are bound; or (iv) any applicable Law, other than, in the case of clauses (ii), (iii) and (iv), such conflicts,
violations, defaults, terminations or cancellations, that would not have a material adverse effect on Purchaser's ability to consummate
the transactions contemplated hereby.
(b)
No consent, waiver, approval, Order, Permit or authorization of, or declaration or filing with, or
notification to, any Person or Governmental Body is required on the
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part of Purchaser in connection with the execution and delivery of this Agreement or the Purchaser Documents, the compliance by
Purchaser with any of the provisions hereof or thereof, the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or the taking by
Purchaser of any other action contemplated hereby, except for compliance with the applicable requirements of the HSR Act and such
other consents, waivers, approvals, Orders, permits or authorizations the failure of which to obtain would not have a material adverse
effect on Purchaser's ability to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.
(c)
None of the execution and delivery by Purchaser of this Agreement or the Purchaser Documents, the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, or compliance by Purchaser with any of the provisions hereof or
thereof requires, or will require, the vote or approval of the holders of any class or series of capital stock of Purchaser or any direct or
indirect equityholder of Purchaser.
Litigation. There are no Legal Proceedings pending or, to the knowledge of Purchaser, threatened that are
7.4
reasonably likely to prohibit or restrain the ability of Purchaser to enter into this Agreement or consummate the transactions
contemplated hereby.
7.5
Investment Intention. Purchaser is acquiring the Shares for its own account, for investment purposes only and not
with a view to the distribution (as such term is used in Section 2(11) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act")
thereof. Purchaser understands that the Shares have not been registered under the Securities Act and cannot be sold unless
subsequently registered under the Securities Act or an exemption from such registration is available.
Financial Advisors. Except for BDT Capital Partners, LLC, no Person has acted, directly or indirectly, as a broker,
7.6
finder or financial advisor for Purchaser in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and no Person is entitled
to any fee or commission or like payment in respect thereof for which Seller is liable.
Financial Capability. At Closing, Purchaser shall have sufficient immediately available funds to pay, in cash, the
7.7
Purchase Price and to make all other necessary payments of fees and expenses in connection with the transactions contemplated by
this Agreement.
ARTICLE VIII
COVENANTS
8.1

Access to Information.

(a)
Prior to the Closing, Purchaser shall be entitled, through its officers, employees and representatives
(including its consultants, agents, accountants, attorneys and financial advisors), to make such investigation of the properties,
businesses and operations of the Company and such examination of the books and records of the Company as it reasonably requests
and to make extracts and copies of such books and records. Any such investigation and examination shall be conducted during regular
business hours upon reasonable advance notice and under reasonable circumstances and shall be subject to restrictions under
applicable Law. The Company shall cause its officers, employees and representatives (including its consultants,
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agents, accountants, attorneys and financial advisors) to cooperate with Purchaser and Purchaser's representatives in connection with
such investigation and examination, and Purchaser and its representatives shall cooperate with the Company and its representatives
and shall use their reasonable efforts to minimize any disruption to the business. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no
such investigation or examination shall be permitted to the extent that it would require the Company to disclose information subject to
attorney-client privilege or conflict with any confidentiality obligations to which the Company is bound. Notwithstanding anything to
the contrary contained herein, prior to the Closing, without the prior written consent of the Company, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld, (i) Purchaser shall not contact any suppliers to, or customers of, the Company in connection with the
transactions contemplated by the Agreement, and (ii) Purchaser shall have no right to perform invasive or subsurface investigations of
the properties or facilities of the Company.
(b)
For a period of two years after the Closing, Purchaser will give Seller reasonable access during Purchaser's
regular business hours upon reasonable advance notice and under reasonable circumstances and shall be subject to restrictions under
applicable Law to books and records of the Company and to other books and records transferred to Purchaser to the extent necessary
for the preparation of financial statements, regulatory filings or Tax Returns of Seller or its Affiliates in respect of periods ending on
or prior to Closing, or in connection with any Legal Proceedings. Seller shall be entitled, at its sole cost and expense, to make copies
of the books and records to which it is entitled to access pursuant to this Section 8.1(b).
8.2

Conduct of the Business Pending the Closing.

(a)
From the date hereof through the earlier of (x) the date this Agreement is terminated pursuant to
Section 4.2 or (y) the Closing Date, except (I) as set forth on Schedule 8.2, (II) as required by applicable Law, (III) as otherwise
contemplated by this Agreement or (IV) with the prior written consent of Purchaser (which consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld, delayed or conditioned), the Company shall:
(i)
conduct the business of the Company only in the Ordinary Course of Business and in material
compliance with all Laws; and
(ii)
use its commercially reasonable efforts to (A) maintain the value of the Company's business as a
going concern, (B) preserve the present business operations, organization (including officers and employees) and goodwill of
the Company, and (C) preserve the present relationships with Persons having business dealings with the Company (including
customers and suppliers).
(b)
Except (I) as set forth on Schedule 8.2, (II) as required by applicable Law, (III) as otherwise contemplated
by this Agreement or (IV) with the prior written consent of Purchaser (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or
conditioned), the Company shall not:
(i)
declare, set aside, make or pay any dividend or other distribution in respect of the capital stock of
the Company or repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire
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any outstanding shares of the capital stock or other securities of, or other ownership interests in, the Company
(ii)
transfer, issue, sell or dispose of any shares of capital stock or other securities of the Company or
grant options, warrants, calls or other rights to purchase or otherwise acquire shares of the capital stock or other securities of
the Company;
(iii)

effect any recapitalization, reclassification or like change in the capitalization of the Company;

(iv)

amend the certificate of incorporation or by-laws or comparable organizational documents of the

Company;
(v)
sell, lease or otherwise dispose of any material assets of the Company (except for sales or other
dispositions of advertising or inventory in the Ordinary Course of Business);
(vi)
license any Intellectual Property of the Company to or from third parties to the extent not in the
Ordinary Course of Business;
(vii)
(A) materially increase the salary or wages of any employee of the Company, (B) grant any
unusual, special or extraordinary bonus to any employee of the Company, (C) materially increase the coverage or benefits
available under any Company Benefit Plan as applied to Company employees or accelerate the time of payment or vesting, or
lapsing of restrictions with respect to, or fund or otherwise secure the payment of, any compensation or benefits under any
Company Benefit Plan (or any compensation or benefit plan or arrangement that would be a Company Benefit Plan if in
effect on the date hereof) as applied to Company employees or (D) permit any employee of the Company to participate in any
new arrangement that would be a Company Benefit Plan if in effect on the date hereof;
(viii)

change any of the Company's accounting policies or practices;

(ix)

waive any provision of any confidentiality or employee invention assignment agreement to which

it is a party;
(x)
terminate or materially amend or modify any privacy policy governing the acquisition, sharing,
use or security from unauthorized disclosure of PII that is possessed or otherwise subject to the control of the Company;
(xi)
accelerate accounts receivable (including by the offering of discounts for payment), delay
payment on accounts payable or take other actions out of the Ordinary Course of Business the intent or primary effect of
which is to increase any amounts payable to Seller under Section 3.3 hereof;
(xii)
mortgage, pledge or otherwise subject to any Lien, any property or assets of the Company other
than (A) conditional sales or similar security interests
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granted in connection with the lease or purchase or equipment or supplies in the Ordinary Course of Business and
(B) Permitted Exceptions;
(xiii)
other than in the Ordinary Course of Business, terminate, amend, restate, supplement or waive
any rights under any (A) material Contract, Real Property Lease, Personal Property Lease or Intellectual Property license or
(B) material Permit;
(xiv)
enter into any commitment for capital expenditures of the Company inconsistent with the
Company's 2012 capital expenditure budget set forth on Schedule 8.2;
(xv)

enter into or agree to enter into any merger or consolidation with any Person; or

(xvi)
make or change any material Tax election, adopt or change any material Tax accounting method,
file any amended Tax Return, settle any material Tax claim or assessment, surrender any right to claim a material refund of
Taxes, or consent to any extension or waiver of the limitation period applicable to any material Tax claim or assessment, in
each case relating to the Company, if such election, change, filing, settlement, surrender or consent would have the effect of
materially increasing the Tax liability of the Company for any taxable period ending after the Closing Date; or
(xvii)

enter into any Contracts that would impose obligations to do any of the actions referred to in this

Section 8.2.
Purchaser shall respond with reasonable promptness to any and all requests by the Company for consent(s) for the
Company to take any of the actions specified in this Section 8.2.
8.3
Consents. The Purchaser and the Company shall use their commercially reasonable efforts, and Seller shall
cooperate with Purchaser and the Company, to obtain at the earliest practicable date all consents and approvals required to
consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including, without limitation, the consents and approvals referred to in
Sections 5.3(b), 6.3(b) and 7.3(b) hereof, provided, however, that no party shall be obligated to pay any consideration to any third
party from whom consent or approval is requested.
8.4

Regulatory Approvals.

(a)
Each of Purchaser, the Company, Parent (if necessary) and Seller (if necessary) shall (a) make or cause to
be made all filings required of each of them or any of their respective Subsidiaries or Affiliates under the HSR Act or other Antitrust
Laws (as defined below) with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby as promptly as practicable and, in any event, within five
(5) Business Days after the date of this Agreement in the case of all filings required under the HSR Act and within four weeks (to the
extent practical) in the case of all other filings required by other Antitrust Laws, (b) comply at the earliest practicable date with any
request under the HSR Act or other Antitrust Laws for additional information, documents, or other materials received by each of them
or any of their respective Subsidiaries or Affiliates from the FTC, the Antitrust Division or any other Governmental Body in respect of
such filings or
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such transactions, and (c) cooperate with each other in connection with any such filing (including, to the extent permitted by
applicable law, providing copies of all such documents to the non-filing parties prior to filing and considering all reasonable additions,
deletions or changes suggested in connection therewith) and in connection with resolving any investigation or other inquiry of any of
the FTC, the Antitrust Division or other Governmental Body under any Antitrust Laws with respect to any such filing or any such
transaction. Each such party shall use its reasonable best efforts to furnish to each other all information required for any application or
other filing to be made pursuant to any applicable law in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Each such
party shall promptly inform the other parties hereto of any oral communication with, and provide copies of written communications
with, any Governmental Body regarding any such filings or any such transaction. No party hereto shall independently participate in
any formal meeting with any Governmental Body in respect of any such filings, investigation, or other inquiry without giving the
other parties hereto prior notice of the meeting and, to the extent permitted by such Governmental Body, the opportunity to attend
and/or participate. Subject to applicable Law, the parties hereto will consult and cooperate with one another in connection with any
analyses, appearances, presentations, memoranda, briefs, arguments, opinions and proposals made or submitted by or on behalf of any
party hereto relating to proceedings under the HSR Act or other Antitrust Laws. Any party may, as it deems advisable and necessary,
reasonably designate any competitively sensitive material provided to the other parties under this Section 8.4 as "outside counsel
only." Such materials and the information contained therein shall be given only to the outside legal counsel of the recipient and will
not be disclosed by such outside counsel to employees, officers, or directors of the recipient, unless express written permission is
obtained in advance from the source of the materials. Both parties shall share the costs of any filing fees associated with the approvals
sought hereunder.
(b)
Each of Purchaser and the Company shall use its reasonable best efforts to resolve such objections, if any,
as may be asserted by any Governmental Body with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement under the HSR Act,
the Sherman Act, as amended, the Clayton Act, as amended, the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, and any other United
States federal or state or foreign statutes, rules, regulations, orders, decrees, administrative or judicial doctrines or other laws that are
designed to prohibit, restrict or regulate actions having the purpose or effect of monopolization or restraint of trade (collectively, the
"Antitrust Laws"). In connection therewith, if any Legal Proceeding is instituted (or threatened to be instituted) challenging any
transaction contemplated by this Agreement as in violation of any Antitrust Law, each of Purchaser and the Company shall cooperate
and use its reasonable best efforts to contest and resist any such Legal Proceeding, and to have vacated, lifted, reversed, or overturned
any decree, judgment, injunction or other order whether temporary, preliminary or permanent, that is in effect and that prohibits,
prevents, or restricts consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including by pursuing all available avenues
of administrative and judicial appeal, unless by mutual agreement, Purchaser and the Company decide that litigation is not in their
respective best interests. Each of Purchaser and the Company shall use their reasonable best efforts to take such action as may be
required to cause the expiration of the notice periods under the HSR Act or other Antitrust Laws with respect to such transactions as
promptly as possible after the execution of this Agreement. In connection with and without limiting the foregoing, each of Purchaser
and the Company agree to use its reasonable best efforts to take promptly any and all steps necessary to avoid or eliminate each and
every impediment under any Antitrust Laws that may be asserted by any Federal, state and
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local and non-United States antitrust or competition authority, so as to enable the parties to close the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement as expeditiously as possible, including effecting or committing to effect, by consent decree, hold separate orders, trust or
otherwise the sale or disposition of such of its assets or businesses as are required to be divested in order to avoid the entry of, or to
effect the dissolution of, any decree, order, judgment, injunction, temporary restraining order or other order in any suit or preceding,
that would otherwise have the effect of preventing or materially delaying the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement; provided that neither Purchaser nor the Company shall be required to take any of the foregoing actions to the extent such
actions would result in a material adverse effect on the Company or Purchaser.
8.5
Further Assurances. Subject to, and not in limitation of, Section 8.4, each of Purchaser and the Company shall use
its reasonable best efforts to (i) take all actions necessary or appropriate to consummate the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement and (ii) cause the fulfillment at the earliest practicable date of all of the conditions to their respective obligations to
consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. In addition, prior to Closing, Seller shall use commercially reasonable
efforts to obtain a customary estoppel certificate from the landlord of the Real Property Lease set forth on Schedule 5.10.
Confidentiality. Purchaser acknowledges that the information provided to it in connection with this Agreement and
8.6
the transactions contemplated hereby is subject to the terms of the confidentiality agreement between Purchaser and Seller dated
July 6, 2011 (the "Confidentiality Agreement"), the terms of which are incorporated herein by reference. Effective upon, and only
upon, the Closing Date, the Confidentiality Agreement shall terminate. Otherwise, the Confidentiality Agreement shall survive any
termination of this Agreement, subject to its terms, and nothing in this Agreement shall relieve Seller or Purchaser of their obligations
under the Confidentiality Agreement.
8.7

Preservation of Records and Retrieval of Confidential Information.

(a)
Subject to any retention requirements relating to the preservation of Tax records, Parent, Seller and
Purchaser agree that each of them shall preserve and keep the records held by them or their Affiliates relating to the respective
businesses of the Company for a period equal to the greater of (i) seven (7) years from the Closing Date or (ii) such period required by
applicable Law, and shall make such records and personnel available to the other as may be reasonably required by such party in
connection with, among other things, any insurance claims by, Legal Proceedings or tax audits against or governmental investigations
of Parent, Seller, the Company or Purchaser or any of their Affiliates or in order to enable Parent, Seller or Purchaser to comply with
their respective obligations under this Agreement and each other agreement, document or instrument contemplated hereby or thereby.
In the event Parent, Seller or Purchaser wishes to destroy such records after that time, such party shall first give 90 days prior written
notice to the other and such other party shall have the right at its option and expense, upon prior written notice given to such party
within that 90 day period, to take possession of the records within 180 days after the date of such notice.
(b)
Following the Closing, Seller shall deliver to the Purchaser a list of all Persons to whom the Company or
any of its representatives furnished confidential information
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concerning the Company in connection with the proposed sale of the Company and copies of all confidentiality agreements entered
into by such Persons for the benefit of the Company in connection with the solicitation of prospective acquirers, in each case, to the
extent allowable under the terms of the applicable confidentiality agreement. Following the Closing, Seller shall provide reasonable
cooperation in connection with the Purchaser's efforts to retrieve (and shall cause its agents and direct its representatives to retrieve)
all such confidential information from such Persons to the extent such retrieval is consistent with the terms of the applicable
confidentiality agreements. Parent and the Seller hereby assign to the Purchaser their respective rights, if any, to enforce the
confidentiality agreements, to the extent the Company is not a party or beneficiary to such confidentiality agreements.
8.8
Publicity; Press Release. Each party hereto agrees that the terms of this Agreement shall not be disclosed or
otherwise made available to the public and that copies of this Agreement shall not be publicly filed or otherwise made available to the
public, except where such disclosure, availability or filing is required by applicable Law or by the rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission or New York Stock Exchange and only to the extent required thereby. Promptly following the
execution of this Agreement, each of the parties may issue a press release, in each case, in a form mutually agreed to by the parties
announcing the execution of this Agreement. Thereafter, each party, hereby agrees to (a) consult promptly with and obtain prior
approval (which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld) from the other party prior to issuing any press release or otherwise
making any public statement with respect to this Agreement or the terms hereof and (b) provide to the other party for review and
approval (which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld) a copy of any such press release or statement, and shall not issue any
such press release or make any such public statement prior to such consultation, review and approval by the other party, unless
required by applicable Law or by the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission or New York Stock Exchange
and only to the extent required thereby, in which case the party shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to allow the other party
reasonable time to comment on such release or announcement in advance of such issuance.
8.9

Employment and Employee Benefits.
(a)

Compensation and Benefits.

(i)
From and after the Closing Date, Seller Group shall retain all Company Benefit Plans other than
the Assumed Plans and all liabilities under the Company Benefit Plans other than the Assumed Plans. Employees of the
Company shall cease participation in the Company Benefit Plans other than the Assumed Plans on or after the Closing Date
other than with respect to claims incurred prior to the Closing Date or as required by Law. From and after the Closing Date,
the Company shall retain all Assumed Plans and all liabilities under the Assumed Plans. As soon as reasonably practicable
(but in no event later than three (3) business days) following the Closing Date the Seller Group shall provide Purchaser with a
schedule setting forth the vacation and paid time off benefits accrued but unused or unpaid as of the Closing Date with
respect to all Company employees.
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(ii)
For a period of twelve (12) months following the Closing Date, or such longer period of time
required by applicable Law, Purchaser shall provide to employees of the Company who were employed immediately prior to
the Effective Time ("Continuing Employees"), while employed by Purchaser or its Affiliates, (i) base compensation that is
not less than the base compensation paid to such Continuing Employee by Seller immediately prior to Closing, (ii) and other
benefits (other than equity or equity based compensation and Company sale incentives) that are substantially similar in the
aggregate to those provided to such Continuing Employees immediately prior to the Closing.
(iii)
For purposes of eligibility and vesting (but not benefit accrual) under the employee benefit plans
of Purchaser providing benefits to Continuing Employees (the "Purchaser Plans"), Purchaser shall, to the extent it is
permitted to do so under the terms of its plans and applicable Law, credit each Continuing Employee with his or her years of
service with the Company to the same extent as such Continuing Employee was entitled immediately prior to the Closing to
credit for such service under any similar Company Benefit Plan, provided, however, that Purchaser shall not be required to
credit pre-Closing service with the Company for purposes of eligibility for retiree welfare plan participation or eligibility for
401(k) match under Purchaser Plans, and further provided that Purchaser shall credit Continuing Employees with pre-Closing
service with the Company for purposes of determining severance benefits under Purchaser's severance plan. The Purchaser
Plans shall not, to the extent it is permitted to do so under the terms of its plans and applicable Law, deny Continuing
Employees coverage on the basis of pre-existing conditions, shall waive all exclusions and waiting period with respect to
participation and coverage and shall use commercially reasonable efforts to credit such Continuing Employees for any
deductibles and out-of-pocket expenses paid in the year of initial participation in the Purchaser Plans.
(iv)

For the avoidance of doubt, the provisions of Section 12.7 are intended to apply to this

Section 8.9.
8.10
Disclosure Schedules . The Company and Seller may, at their option, include in the Schedules items that are not
material in order to avoid any misunderstanding, and such inclusion, or any references to dollar amounts, shall not be deemed to be an
acknowledgement or representation that such items are material, to establish any standard of materiality or to define further the
meaning of such terms for purposes of this Agreement.
8.11
Control of Business. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Purchaser acknowledges on
behalf of itself and its Affiliates and its and their directors, officers, employees, Affiliates, agents, representatives, successors and
assigns that the operation of the Company remains in the dominion and control of the Company until the Closing and that none of the
foregoing Persons will provide, directly or indirectly, any directions, orders, advice, aid, assistance or information to any director,
officer or employee of the Company, except as specifically contemplated or permitted by Article VIII or as otherwise consented to in
advance by an officer of Seller or the Company.
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8.12

Non-Solicitation Non-Disturbance and Non-Compete.

(a)
During the period from the date hereof through the earlier of (i) the Closing and (ii) the date that is two
(2) years following the termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 4.2 hereof, Purchaser shall not directly or indirectly, through
any Affiliate, officer, director, agent or otherwise, solicit the employment of or employ or retain as a consultant any employee of the
Company who is a management or key employee of the Company as of the date hereof or at any time during such period (provided
that neither (x) the hiring or retention of such employees or consultants whose employment or consultancy have been terminated by
the Purchaser or the Company nor (y) the hiring of such employees through the use of general advertisements or hiring agents not
directed to target Company employees directly shall be deemed to violate the foregoing provisions). Furthermore, if this Agreement is
terminated pursuant to Section 4.2 hereof, Purchaser shall not oppose or seek to prevent or frustrate any transaction or agreement that
the Company may propose or enter into relating to the sale of all or any portion of the Company to any third party unless Seller is in
breach of any of its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements hereunder.
(b)
For a period of two (2) years after the Closing Date, Seller shall not directly or indirectly, and shall cause
its Affiliates not to, employ or retain as a consultant any employee of the Company who is a management or key employee of the
Company as of the date hereof or at any time during such period; provided that the foregoing shall not prohibit the hiring or retention
of such employees or consultants whose employment or consultancy have been terminated by the Purchaser or the Company.
Non-Disturbance. For a period of one (1) year after the Closing Date, Seller shall not, whether as
(c)
principal, agent, employee, stockholder, partner, member, manager, independent contractor, consultant or in any other capacity, seek
to influence, alter or interfere with any relationship of the Company with any landlord, supplier, distributor, customer, vendor or
Governmental Entity in any manner that is materially adverse to the Company.
(d)
Non-Compete. For a period of three (3) years after the Closing Date, neither Parent nor Seller shall,
directly or indirectly, operate a website substantially similar to the website currently operated by the Company in any territory in
which the Company presently conducts business; provided that the foregoing shall not preclude, prohibit or restrict Parent, Seller or
any of their Affiliates from operating websites under the Taste of Home brand in a manner consistent with past practice, subject to the
following: neither Parent, Seller or any of their Affiliates shall (i) materially alter or change, or take any action that would reasonably
be expected to materially alter or change, the manner in which Taste of Home presently conducts its business or operations so as to
more directly compete with the Company, (ii) make any material acquisitions of third-party recipe content substantially similar to the
current content of the Company, (iii) increase the level of recipes on the Taste of Home website accessible by users beyond what is set
forth on Schedule 8.12(d), or (iv) materially lower the percentage of recipes on the Taste of Home website that are submitted by
magazine subscribers. This Section 8.12(d) shall be binding on any purchaser of the assets or business of or relating to the Taste of
Home brand for a period equal to the lesser of (A) three (3) years after the Closing Date and (B) eighteen (18) months after the date
that such purchase was effective. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Section 8.12(d) shall not in any way prohibit or restrict such
purchaser from
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engaging in any business activities, including operating a website substantially similar to the website currently operated by the
Company in any territory in which the Company presently conducts business, provided such business activities are not directly related
to the Taste of Home brand.
Use of Name. From and after the Closing, except as provided in the License Agreement, Seller shall not,
(e)
directly or indirectly, use as a trademark or have any right to use as a trademark the name "AllRecipes.com" or any other trade names,
trademarks, logos or any derivatives thereof owned by the Company.
(f)
Modification. The necessity of the protections set forth above, and the nature and scope of such
protection, has been carefully considered by the parties hereto. The parties hereto agree and acknowledge that the term, scope and
geographic areas applicable to the covenants described in this Section 8.12 are fair, reasonable and necessary and that adequate
compensation has been received by the Sellers for such obligations. If, however, for any reason any court of competent jurisdiction
shall at any time deem the term of any particular covenant set forth in this Section 8.12 too lengthy, the geographic area of any
particular covenant set forth in this Section 8.12 too extensive, or any of the covenants set forth in this Section 8.12 otherwise not
enforceable, the other provisions of this Section 8.12 shall nevertheless stand, and the term of such covenants shall be deemed to be
reduced to the longest period permissible by Law under the circumstances, and such other covenants shall be enforced to the fullest
extent consistent with applicable Law under the circumstances. It is the intention and desire of the parties that the court treat any
provisions of this Agreement which are not fully enforceable as having been modified to the extent deemed necessary by the court to
render them reasonable and enforceable and that the court enforce them to such extent.
(g)
Nothing in this Section 8.12 is intended to, nor shall it be construed as, a waiver or discharge of any of the
rights and obligations under the Confidentiality Agreement of the parties thereto.
8.13
Notification of Certain Events. From the date hereof through the Closing, the Company and Seller, if applicable
shall give reasonably prompt notice to Purchaser and Purchaser shall give reasonably prompt notice to the Company and Seller of
(i) the occurrence, or failure to occur, of any event which occurrence or failure would be likely to cause any of the Purchaser's, Seller's
or the Company's respective representations or warranties contained in this Agreement to be untrue or inaccurate in any material
respect and (ii) any material failure of the Purchaser, Seller or the Company to comply with or satisfy any of its respective covenants,
conditions or agreements to be complied with or satisfied by it under this Agreement; provided, however, that such disclosure shall not
be deemed to cure any breach of a representation, warranty, covenant or agreement, or to satisfy any condition.
Seller Release. Each of Parent and Seller hereby forever fully and irrevocably releases and discharges the
8.14
Purchaser, the Company and their respective predecessors, successors, direct or indirect subsidiaries and past and present
stockholders, members (direct and indirect), managers, directors, officers, employees, agents, and representatives (collectively, the
"Released Parties") from any and all actions, suits, claims, demands, debts, promises, judgments, liabilities or obligations of any kind
whatsoever in law or equity and causes of action of every
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kind and nature, or otherwise (including claims for damages, costs, expenses, and attorneys', brokers' and accountants fees and
expenses) arising out of or related to the Company or such Parent or Seller's ownership of Shares, which Seller can, shall or may have
against the Released Parties, whether known or unknown, suspected or unanticipated as well as anticipated and that now exist or may
hereinafter accrue based on matters now known as well as unknown (collectively, the "Released Claims"), and hereby irrevocably
agrees to refrain from directly or indirectly asserting any claim or demand or commencing (or causing to be commenced) any
proceeding of any kind before any Governmental Entity, against any Released Party based upon any Released Claim.
Notwithstanding the preceding sentence of this Section 8.14, "Released Claims" does not include, and the provisions of this
Section 8.14 shall not release or otherwise diminish the obligations of the Purchaser or the Company expressly set forth in any
provisions of this Agreement.
8.15
No Solicitation of Offers. Until the earlier of the termination of this Agreement in accordance with its terms and
the Closing, Parent, Seller and the Company shall not (and Seller shall cause the Company not to), directly or indirectly, through any
Affiliate, representative or otherwise, (a) solicit, initiate or encourage the submission of proposals or offers from any Person relating to
any acquisition or purchase of the business or assets of, or any equity interest in, or any merger, consolidation or business combination
with, the Company (an "Acquisition Proposal"), or (b) continue or participate in any discussion or negotiation regarding, or furnish to
any other Person any information with respect to, or otherwise cooperate in any way with or assist, facilitate or encourage, any
Acquisition Proposal by any other Person. Parent and Seller shall notify the Purchaser promptly upon the receipt by Parent, Seller, the
Company or any of their Affiliates or representatives of any Acquisition Proposal.
Ancillary Agreements. At the Closing, (i) the Company and Seller shall execute the Transition Services Agreement
8.16
and (ii) the Company, Purchaser and Seller shall execute the License Agreement.
Release. From and after the date hereof, the parties hereto shall, at the expense of Seller, use their respective
8.17
commercially reasonable efforts to obtain, on or prior to the Closing, the termination of, and full release of Parent, Seller and their
respective Affiliates (other than the Company) from any and all obligations arising under any and all guarantees, letters of credit,
indemnity or contribution agreements, support agreements, insurance surety bonds or other similar agreements issued in connection
with the Fifth and Pine Building Lease, dated as of December 28, 2009, by and between Fifth & Pine LLC and the Company, as
amended on September 20, 2011 and made in respect of the obligations of, or for the benefit of any obligee of, the Company by
Parent, Seller and their respective Affiliates (other than the Company) (each, a "Parent Guaranty"). For the avoidance of doubt, such
efforts shall include an offer by Purchaser (or with the Parent's consent a subsidiary or other Affiliate of Purchaser) to substitute its
own obligations for those of Parent, Seller and their respective Affiliates (other than the Company) under any Parent Guaranty on no
less favorable terms.
8.18
Non-Foreign Affidavit. On the Closing Date, Seller shall deliver to Purchaser a non-foreign affidavit dated as of
the Closing Date and in form and substance meeting the requirements of Treasury Regulations Section 1.1445-2(b)(2), stating that
Seller is not a "foreign person" as described in Section 1445 of the Code.
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8.19
Release of Liens. Prior to or in conjunction with the Closing, Seller shall deliver to Purchaser copies of the
appropriate recorded documents evidencing the release and/or termination of the liens and/or security interests set forth on Schedule
5.11(a) related to the personal property and set forth on Schedule 6.4 related to the Shares, in favor of Wilmington Trust FSB and/or
Wilmington Trust National Association.
ARTICLE IX
TAX MATTERS
9.1
Tax Indemnity by Seller. Except to the extent such Taxes are reflected as a liability in the calculation of Closing
Working Capital, Seller shall pay or cause to be paid, and shall indemnify Purchaser and each of its Affiliates (including the Company
after the Closing Date) (each a "Purchaser Tax Indemnitee") and hold each Purchaser Tax Indemnitee harmless from and against
(i) any and all Income Taxes imposed on or incurred by the Company with respect to Pre-Closing Periods, (including Income Taxes
imposed on or incurred by the Company as a result of the Section 338(h)(10) Election and any and all consolidated, combined or
unitary Income Taxes reportable on a Combined Tax Return (including any liability pursuant to Treas. Reg. 1.1502-6(a) (or any
similar provision of state or local Law) by reason of the inclusion of the Company in a Consolidated Group) (ii) all Taxes based upon
or resulting from the failure of the representations and warranties contained in Section 5.9 to be true and correct in all respects as of
the date hereof and as of the Closing Date) and (iii) any and all Taxes for which Seller is responsible under Section 9.13, other than
(a) any Taxes arising from any action or transaction by Purchaser or the Company outside of the Ordinary Course of Business on the
Closing Date after the Closing that is not explicitly contemplated by this Agreement, and (b) any Taxes that result from any breach of
any covenant or agreement of Purchaser contained in this Agreement (such Taxes, excluding those described in clauses (a) and (b),
"Seller Indemnified Taxes"). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Seller Indemnified Taxes shall not include any Taxes
imposed on or incurred by the Company with respect to a taxable period (or portion thereof) ending after the Closing Date other than a
Tax liability arising by reason of a breach of the representation set forth in the last sentence of Section 5.9.
9.2
Tax Indemnity by Purchaser. Purchaser shall pay or cause to be paid, and shall indemnify Seller and each of its
Affliliates (other than the Company) (each a "Seller Tax Indemnitee") and hold each Seller Tax Indemnitee harmless from and against,
any and all Taxes (a) arising from any action or transaction by Purchaser or the Company outside of the Ordinary Course of Business
on the Closing Date after the Closing that is not explicitly contemplated by this Agreement, (b) that result from any breach of any
covenant or agreement of Purchaser contained in this Agreement, or (c) for which Purchaser is responsible under Section 9.13.
Straddle Periods. For purposes of Section 9.1, in the case of any taxable period that includes (but does not end on)
9.3
the Closing Date, the portion of such Income Tax that relates to the portion of such taxable period ending on the Closing Date will be
determined based on an interim closing of the books as of the close of business on the Closing Date.
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9.4
Taxable Year. To the extent permitted or required by Law or administrative practice, the taxable year of the
Company that includes the Closing Date shall be treated as closing on (and including) the Closing Date.
9.5

Filing Responsibility.

(a)
Seller shall timely prepare and file or cause to be timely prepared and filed (i) any Income Tax Returns of
or with respect to the Company in respect of any taxable period ending on or before the Closing Date (including any Combined Tax
Returns), and (ii) all Tax Returns that are required to be filed by or with respect to the Company that are due (including extensions) on
or before the Closing Date. Other than Income Tax Returns that are Combined Returns, Seller shall permit Purchaser to review such
Income Tax Returns prior to filing and shall make such revisions to such Income Tax Returns as are reasonably requested by
Purchaser; provided, however, that to the extent Seller prepares or causes to be prepared such Tax Returns in a manner consistent with
prior practice, Purchaser's suggested revisions will be deemed unreasonable unless required by applicable Law.
(b)
Purchaser and the Company shall, except to the extent that such Tax Returns are the responsibility of
Seller under Section 9.5(a), file all other Tax Returns with respect to the Company. To the extent Purchaser could be entitled to
indemnification under this Agreement with respect to such Tax Returns, Purchaser and Company shall permit Seller to review such
Tax Returns prior to filing and shall make such revisions to such Tax Return as are reasonably requested by Seller; provided, however,
that to the extent Purchaser and Company prepare or cause to be prepared such Tax Returns in a manner consistent with prior practice,
Seller's suggested revisions will be deemed unreasonable unless required by applicable Law
(c)
Purchaser and Seller shall attempt in good faith to resolve any disagreement regarding the Tax Returns
described in Section 9.5(a) and (b) prior to the due date for filing. In the event that Purchaser and Seller are unable to resolve any
dispute with respect to such Tax Returns at least ten (10) days prior to the due date for filing, such dispute shall be resolved by an
independent accounting firm mutually acceptable to Purchaser and Seller. The fees and expenses of such accounting firm shall be
borne equally by Purchaser and Seller. If any dispute with respect to a Tax Return is not resolved prior to the due date of such Tax
Return, such Tax Return shall be filed in the manner which the party responsible for preparing such Tax Return deems correct,
without prejudice to the rights of the parties to continue such dispute
9.6

Refunds, Credits and Carrybacks.

(a)
Except to the extent reflected as an asset in the calculation of Closing Working Capital that results in an
increase to the Purchase Price, Seller shall be entitled to any refunds of or credits against any Seller Indemnified Taxes and any
refunds or credits to which Seller is entitled under Section 9.6(c). Purchaser shall be entitled to any refunds or credits of the Company
of or against any Taxes other than refunds or credits to which Seller is entitled.
(b)
Purchaser shall cause the Company promptly to forward to Seller or to reimburse Seller for any refunds or
credits due Seller (pursuant to the terms of this Article IX) after receipt thereof, and Seller shall promptly forward to Purchaser or
reimburse Purchaser for
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any refunds or credits due Purchaser (pursuant to the terms of this Article IX) after receipt thereof.
(c)
Purchaser agrees that the Company shall not elect to carry back any item of loss, deduction or credit which
arises in any taxable period ending after the Closing Date (a "Subsequent Loss") into any taxable period ending on or before the
Closing Date if such a carryback could relate to or affect any Seller Indemnified Tax. If a Subsequent Loss is carried back into any
taxable period ending on or before the Closing Date, Seller shall be entitled to any refund of Taxes resulting therefrom.
9.7
Tax Contests. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, (a) Seller shall be entitled to control in all
respects, and neither Purchaser nor any of its Affiliates shall be entitled to participate in, any Tax Proceeding with respect to (i) any
Tax Return of Seller or a member of the Seller Group or (ii) any Tax Return of a Consolidated Group or (iii) any other Seller
Indemnified Tax; provided, however, that (x) with respect to any Tax Proceeding that relates to a Tax Return for the Company only
and not the Consolidated Group: (i) Purchaser shall have the right to participate in such Tax Proceeding at its own expense, and (ii)
Seller shall not settle or compromise such Tax Proceeding without Purchaser's prior written consent (which shall not be unreasonably
withheld, delayed or conditioned); (y) any such Tax Proceeding that relates to a taxable period that includes (but does not end on) the
Closing Date shall be controlled jointly by Purchaser and Seller; and (z) if Seller proposes to settle a Tax Proceeding and Purchaser
does not give its consent to such settlement, the amount for which Seller would otherwise be required to indemnify under this
Agreement with respect to such Tax Proceeding shall not exceed the amount for which Seller proposed to settle such Tax Proceeding),
and (b) Seller shall not be required to provide any person with any Tax Return described in Section 9.7(a)(i) or (ii) or copy thereof
(provided, however, that to the extent that such Tax Returns would be required to be delivered but for this Section 9.7, the person that
would be required to deliver such Tax Returns shall instead deliver pro forma Tax Returns relating solely to the Company).
9.8
Cooperation and Exchange of Information. Not more than sixty (60) days after the receipt of a customary package
of Tax information materials requests from Seller, Purchaser shall, and shall cause its Affiliates to, provide to Seller a package of Tax
information materials, including schedules and work papers, requested by Seller to enable Seller to prepare and file all Tax Returns
required to be prepared and filed by it with respect to the Company. Purchaser shall prepare such package completely and accurately,
in good faith and in a manner consistent with Seller's past practice. Each party to this Agreement shall, and shall cause its Affiliates
to, provide to the other party to this Agreement such cooperation, documentation and information as either of them reasonably may
request in (i) filing any Tax Return, amended Tax Return or claim for refund (including those Tax Returns required to be prepared and
filed by Seller under Section 9.5(a)), (ii) determining a liability for Taxes or an indemnity obligation under this Article IX or a right to
refund of Taxes, or (iii) conducting any Tax Proceeding. Such cooperation and information shall include providing necessary powers
of attorney, copies of all relevant portions of relevant Tax Returns, together with all relevant portions of relevant accompanying
schedules and relevant work papers, relevant documents relating to rulings or other determinations by taxing authorities and relevant
records concerning the ownership and Tax basis of property and other information, which any such party may possess. Each party
shall retain all Tax Returns, schedules and work papers, and all material records and other documents relating to Tax matters,
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of the relevant entities for their respective Tax periods ending on or prior to the Closing Date until the later of (x) the expiration of the
statute of limitations for the Tax periods to which the Tax Returns and other documents relate, or (y) eight years following the due
date (without extension) for such Tax Returns. Thereafter, the party holding such Tax Returns or other documents may dispose of
them after offering the other party reasonable notice and opportunity to take possession of such Tax Returns and other documents at
such other party's own expense. Each party shall make its employees reasonably available on a mutually convenient basis at its cost to
provide explanation of any documents or information so provided.
9.9
Tax Sharing Agreements. Anything in any other agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, all liabilities,
obligations and rights between any member of the Seller Group, on the one hand, and the Company, on the other hand, under any Tax
allocation or Tax sharing agreement in effect prior to the Closing Date (other than this Agreement) shall cease and terminate as of the
Closing Date as to all past, present and future taxable periods.
Timing Differences. Purchaser agrees that if as the result of any audit adjustment (or adjustment in any other Tax
9.10
Proceeding) made with respect to any Tax Item which relates to or affects any Seller Indemnified Tax, by any Taxing Authority or as
a result of any indemnification provided by Seller under this Agreement, Purchaser or any of its Affiliates, including the Company,
actually realizes a Tax benefit that, but for such Tax Item or indemnification, would not have been realized, then Purchaser shall pay
to Seller the amount of such Tax benefit within fifteen (15) days of filing the Tax Return in which such Tax benefit is realized.
9.11
Survival. The indemnification obligations contained in this Article IX shall survive the Closing Date until thirty
(30) days after the expiration of the applicable statutory periods of limitation.
Tax Treatment of Payments. Seller, Purchaser, the Company and their respective Affiliates shall treat any and all
9.12
payments under this Article IX as an adjustment to the Purchase Price for Tax purposes unless they are required to treat such payments
otherwise by applicable Tax laws.
Transfer Taxes. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, Purchaser and Seller shall each pay,
9.13
when due, and be responsible for one-half of any sales Tax, use Tax, transfer Tax, documentary stamp Tax, value added Tax or similar
Taxes and related fees imposed on the sale or transfer of the Shares pursuant to this Agreement (collectively, "Transfer Taxes").
Purchaser and Seller shall jointly prepare all Tax Returns with respect to such Transfer Taxes and the party legally required to file
such Tax Returns shall do so.
9.14
Section 338(h)(10) Election. Parent shall execute and deliver to Purchaser such forms as Purchaser requests for the
purposes of Parent and Purchaser making a joint election under Section 338(h)(10) of the Code (and any corresponding elections
under state or local Tax Law) with respect to the purchase and sale of the Shares hereunder (the "338(h)(10) Election"). To the extent
Purchaser timely files the Section 338(h)(10) Election with the applicable Taxing Authorities, Parent shall report on the appropriate
Combined Tax Return the gain recognized on the deemed transfer of the Company's assets as a result of making the 338(h)(10)
Election.
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9.15
Allocation of Purchase Price. In connection with the election made pursuant to Section 9.14, within one hundred
twenty (120) days following the Closing Date, Purchaser shall prepare and deliver to Seller a schedule allocating the aggregate
deemed sale price, as defined in Treasury Regulations Section 1.338-4 (or, if different, the sales price that is required to be used for
purposes of any state or local Law), among the assets of the Company (the "Section 338 Allocation Schedule"). The Section 338
Allocation Schedule shall be prepared in accordance with Section 338 and Section 1060 of the Code and the Treasury Regulations
promulgated thereunder (and, if applicable, in accordance with any other similar provision of state or local Law). Seller and Purchaser
shall seek in good faith to resolve any differences that they may have with respect to the Section 338 Allocation Schedule delivered by
Purchaser. In the event that Seller and Purchaser are unable to reach a mutual agreement on the Section 338 Allocation Schedule
within sixty (60) days of Seller receiving the Section 338 Allocation Schedule, the parties hereto shall cooperate in good faith to
appoint within ten (10) Business Days thereafter an independent certified public accounting firm or professional appraiser in the U.S.
of national recognition mutually agreeable to the parties hereto to resolve solely any issue in dispute under this Section 9.15 as
promptly as possible and the determination of such public accounting firm or professional appraiser (as the case may be) shall be
final. The parties hereto shall equally share the fees of the public accounting firm or professional appraiser (as the case may be) in
performing its obligations under this Section 9.15. Each of Seller and Purchaser agrees that promptly upon agreeing on the Section
338 Allocation Schedule (or the determination of the appraiser) it shall return an executed copy thereof to the other party hereto.
Seller and Purchaser shall, and shall cause their respective Affiliates to, file all federal, state and local Tax Returns in accordance with
the Section 338 Allocation Schedule, unless otherwise required by applicable Law. If facts arise or become known to either party
after the initial agreement or filing of the Section 338 Allocation Schedule that reasonably warrant an adjustment or revision to the
original (or subsequent) agreed schedule or filings, then the parties will work in good faith to determine and agree upon what, if any,
adjustment or amendment to make with respect to the Section 338 Allocation Schedule and related Tax Returns.
ARTICLE X
CONDITIONS TO CLOSING
Conditions Precedent to Obligations of Purchaser. The obligation of Purchaser to consummate the transactions
10.1
contemplated by this Agreement is subject to the fulfillment, on or prior to the Closing Date, of each of the following conditions (any
or all of which may be waived by Purchaser in whole or in part to the extent permitted by applicable Law):
(a)
at and as of the Closing, the representations and warranties of the Company and Seller set forth in this
Agreement shall be true and correct in all respects (without regard to "materiality", "Material Adverse Effect" or other materiality
qualifications included therein), except to the extent such representations and warranties relate to an earlier date (in which case such
representations and warranties shall be true and correct in all respects on and as of such earlier date), except where the failure of such
representations and warranties to be so true and correct individually or in the aggregate would not reasonably be expected to have a
Material Adverse Effect or prevent, materially delay or materially impede the ability of the Company or Seller to timely consummate
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement;
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(b)
the Company and Seller shall have performed and complied in all material respects with all covenants,
obligations and agreements required by this Agreement to be performed or complied with by them on or prior to the Closing Date;
provided that if a covenant or agreement is qualified by "Material Adverse Effect," "material" or "materiality" or any other materiality
standard, such qualifiers shall be disregarded for purposes of this Section 10.1(b);
(c)
the Company and Seller shall have delivered to Purchaser a certificate to the effect that each of the
conditions specified in Sections 10.1(a) and 10.1(b) have been satisfied in all respects;
(d)
no Law shall be entered, enacted, promulgated, enforced or issued by any Governmental Body that
prohibits, restrains or prevents the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement;
(e)
there shall not be in effect any Order by a Governmental Body of competent jurisdiction restraining,
enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby;
(f)
the waiting period applicable to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement under the HSR Act shall
have expired or early termination shall have been granted;
(g)
there shall not have been made by any Person any claim asserting that such Person is the holder or the
beneficial owner of, or has the right to acquire or to obtain beneficial ownership of, any stock of, or any other voting, equity or
ownership interest in, the Company;
(h)
Seller shall have delivered, or caused to be delivered, to Purchaser stock certificates representing the
Shares, duly endorsed in blank or accompanied by stock transfer powers;
(i)
except for the Liens and encumbrances set forth on Schedule 6.4 which shall be released on the Closing
Date, the Company shall not have any Indebtedness or Liens on any of its assets at Closing;
(j)
Seller and the Company shall have (A) delivered letters evidencing the resignation of all directors of the
Company effective as of Closing; (B) transferred any and all bank accounts used by the Company or to which Company customers
remit payments to the Company; (C) terminated any power of attorney or authorization with respect to the business set forth in
Schedule 5.23 held by any Person who is not a Continuing Employee;
(k)
Seller and the Company shall have delivered, or cause to be delivered, to Purchaser a duly executed
Transition Services Agreement and License Agreement.
10.2
Conditions Precedent to Obligations of Seller. The obligations of Seller to consummate the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement are subject to the fulfillment, prior to or on the Closing Date, of each of the following conditions (any
or all of which may be waived by Seller in whole or in part to the extent permitted by applicable Law):
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(a)
at and as of the Closing, the representations and warranties of the Purchaser set forth in this Agreement
shall be true and correct in all respects (without regard to "materiality", "Material Adverse Effect" or other materiality qualifications
included therein), except to the extent such representations and warranties relate to an earlier date (in which case such representations
and warranties shall be true and correct in all respects on and as of such earlier date), except where the failure of such representations
and warranties to be so true and correct individually or in the aggregate would not reasonably be expected to have a material adverse
effect on Purchaser or prevent, materially delay or materially impede the ability of the Purchaser to timely consummate the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement;
(b)
Purchaser shall have performed and complied in all material respects with all covenants, obligations and
agreements required by this Agreement to be performed or complied with by Purchaser on or prior to the Closing Date;
(c)
the Purchaser shall have delivered to Company and Seller a certificate to the effect that each of the
conditions specified in Sections 10.2(a) and (b) have been satisfied in all respects.
(d)
there shall not be in effect any Order by a Governmental Body of competent jurisdiction restraining,
enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby;
(e)
the waiting period applicable to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement under the HSR Act shall
have expired or early termination shall have been granted;
(f)
Purchaser shall have delivered, or caused to be delivered, to Seller evidence of the wire transfers referred
to in Section 3.2 hereof; and
(g)

Purchaser shall have delivered, or cause to be delivered, to Seller a duly executed License Agreement.

10.3
Frustration of Closing Conditions. None of the Company, Purchaser or Seller may rely on the failure of any
condition set forth in Sections 10.1 or 10.2 as the case may be, if such failure was caused by such party's failure to comply with any
provision of this Agreement.
ARTICLE XI
INDEMNIFICATION
11.1

Survival of Representations and Warranties.

(a)
Except as provided in Section 9.11 or in Section 11.1(b), the representations and warranties of the parties
contained in this Agreement shall survive the Closing until the fifteen (15) month anniversary of Closing, and claims may be asserted
with respect thereto to the extent permitted by this Article XI.
(b)
The representations and warranties of the Company contained in Section 5.9 (Taxes), Section 5.14
(Employee Benefit Plans) and Section 5.17 (Environmental)
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shall survive until the thirty-six (36) month anniversary of Closing. The representations and warranties of the Company contained in
Section 5.1 (Organization and Good Standing), Section 5.2 (Authorization of Agreement), Section 5.4 (Capitalization) and
Section 5.17 (Financial Advisors) (collectively, the "Critical Representations") shall survive indefinitely.
(c)
All of the covenants or other agreements of the parties contained in this Agreement shall survive until fully
performed or fulfilled, unless and to the extent only that the non-compliance with such covenants or agreements is waived in writing
by the party entitled to such performance; provided however, no claim for a breach of a covenant or other agreement set forth in this
Agreement that its nature is required to be performed after Closing may be made or brought by any party hereto after the twelve (12)
month anniversary of the last date on which such covenant or agreement was required to be performed or fulfilled.
11.2

Indemnification by Seller.

(a)
Subject to Section 11.5 hereof, from and after the Closing Date, Seller hereby agrees to indemnify and
hold Purchaser, the Company, and their respective directors, officers, employees, Affiliates, stockholders, agents, attorneys,
representatives, successors and permitted assigns (collectively, the "Purchaser Indemnified Parties") harmless from and against any
and all losses, liabilities, claims, demands, judgments, damages (excluding incidental and consequential damages, other than those
payable to third parties), fines, suits, actions, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees) (individually, a "Loss" and,
collectively, "Losses") based upon or resulting from:
(i)
the failure of any of the representations or warranties made by Seller or the Company in this
Agreement to be true and correct in all respects at and as of the date hereof and at and as of the Closing Date; and
(ii)
the breach of any covenant or agreement required to be performed by Seller or Parent under this
Agreement after the date hereof.
(b)
Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that Seller shall not have any liability under any provision of this
Agreement for any Loss that is the result of an action taken by Purchaser or its Affiliates after the Closing Date. Purchaser shall take
and shall cause its Affiliates to take all reasonable steps to mitigate any Loss upon becoming aware of any event which would
reasonably be expected to, or does, give rise thereto.
11.3

Indemnification by Purchaser.

(a)
Subject to Section 11.5, from and after the Closing Date Purchaser hereby agrees to indemnify and hold
Seller and their respective directors, officers, employees, Affiliates, stockholders, agents, attorneys, representatives, successors and
permitted assigns (collectively, the "Seller Indemnified Parties") harmless from and against, and pay to the applicable Seller
Indemnified Parties the amount of, any and all Losses based upon or resulting from:
(i)
the failure of any of the representations or warranties made by Purchaser in this Agreement to be
true and correct in all respects at the date hereof and as of the Closing Date; and
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(ii)

any breach of any covenant or agreement required to be performed by Purchaser after the date

hereof.
11.4

Indemnification Procedures.

(a)
No party shall be liable for any claim for indemnification under this Agreement unless written notice of
such claim is delivered by the party seeking indemnification to the party from whom indemnification is sought setting forth the
specific claim and the basis thereof in reasonable detail, prior to the expiration of the applicable survival period set forth in
Section 11.1.
(b)
In the event that any Legal Proceedings shall be instituted, or that any claim shall be asserted, by any third
party in respect of which payment may be sought under Section 11.2 or Section 11.3 (regardless of the limitations set forth in
Section 11.5) (an "Indemnification Claim"), the party entitled to indemnification hereunder (the "Indemnified Party") shall promptly
cause written notice of the assertion of any Indemnification Claim of which it has knowledge to be forwarded to (i) Purchaser, in the
case of a claim made by a Seller Indemnified Party and (ii) Seller, in the case of a claim made by a Purchaser Indemnified Party. The
failure of the Indemnified Party to give prompt notice of any Indemnification Claim shall not release, waive or otherwise affect the
obligations of the party from whom indemnification is sought (the "Indemnifying Party") with respect thereto, except to the extent that
the Indemnifying Party is prejudiced as a result of such failure.
(c)
The Indemnifying Party shall have the right, at its sole option and expense, to be represented by counsel of
its choice, which must be reasonably satisfactory to the Indemnified Party, and, to the extent permitted by applicable law, to control,
defend against and negotiate with respect to any Indemnification Claim which relates to any Losses indemnified by it hereunder. If
the Indemnifying Party elects to control, defend against and negotiate with respect to any Indemnification Claim which relates to any
Losses indemnified against by it hereunder, it shall within 30 days (or sooner, if the nature of the Indemnification Claim so requires)
notify the Indemnified Party of its intent to do so and the costs and expenses incurred by the Indemnifying Party in connection
therewith shall be paid by the Indemnifying Party. If the Indemnifying Party elects not to control, defend against or negotiate with
respect to any Indemnification Claim which relates to any Losses indemnified against by it hereunder, the Indemnified Party may
control, defend against or negotiate with respect to such Indemnification Claim. If the Indemnifying Party shall assume the defense of
any Indemnification Claim, the Indemnified Party may participate (but not control), at its own expense, in the defense of such
Indemnification Claim; provided, however, that such Indemnified Party shall be entitled to participate in any such defense with
separate counsel at the expense of the Indemnifying Party if, (i) so requested by the Indemnifying Party to participate, (ii) the
Indemnifying Party fails to conduct the defense of such Indemnification Claim with reasonable diligence, or (iii) in the reasonable
opinion of counsel to the Indemnified Party, a conflict or potential conflict exists between the Indemnified Party and the Indemnifying
Party that would make such separate representation advisable; and provided, further, that the Indemnifying Party shall not be required
to pay for more than one such counsel (plus any appropriate local counsel) for all Indemnified Parties in connection with any
Indemnification Claim. Purchaser and Seller agree to cooperate
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fully with each other in connection with the defense, negotiation or settlement of any such Indemnification Claim.
(d)
Notwithstanding anything in this Section 11.4 to the contrary, neither the Indemnifying Party nor the
Indemnified Party shall, without the written consent of the other party (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned
or delayed), settle or compromise any Indemnification Claim or permit a default or consent to entry of any judgment unless the
claimant and such party provide to such other party an unqualified release from all liability in respect of the Indemnification Claim.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a settlement offer solely for money damages is made by the applicable third party claimant, and the
Indemnifying Party notifies the Indemnified Party in writing of its willingness to accept the settlement offer and, subject to the
applicable limitations of Section 11.5 and Section 11.6, pay the amount called for by such offer, and the Indemnified Party declines to
accept such offer, the Indemnified Party may continue to contest such Indemnification Claim, free of any participation by the
Indemnifying Party, and the amount of any ultimate liability with respect to such Indemnification Claim that the Indemnifying Party
has an obligation to pay hereunder shall be limited to the lesser of (i) the amount of the settlement offer that the Indemnified Party
declined to accept or (ii) the aggregate Losses of the Indemnified Party with respect to such Indemnification Claim. If the
Indemnifying Party makes any payment on any Indemnification Claim, such Indemnifying Party shall be subrogated, to the extent of
such payment, to all rights and remedies of the Indemnified Party to any insurance benefits or other claims of the Indemnified Party
with respect to such Indemnification Claim.
(e)
After any final decision, judgment or award shall have been rendered by a Governmental Body of
competent jurisdiction and the expiration of the time in which to appeal therefrom, or a settlement shall have been consummated, or
the Indemnified Party and the Indemnifying Party shall have arrived at a mutually binding agreement with respect to an
Indemnification Claim hereunder, the Indemnified Party shall forward to the Indemnifying Party notice of any sums due and owing by
the Indemnifying Party pursuant to this Agreement with respect to such matter.
(f)
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, if an Indemnified Party delivers to an
Indemnifying Party, before expiration of a representation or warranty, either a Claim notice based upon a breach of such
representation or warranty, or a notice that, as a result of a Legal Proceeding instituted by or claim made by a third party, the
Indemnified Party reasonably expects to incur Losses, then the applicable representation or warranty shall survive until, but only for
purposes of, the resolution of the matter covered by such notice.
11.5

Certain Limitations on Indemnification.

(a)
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, neither Seller nor Purchaser shall have any
indemnification obligations for Losses under Section 11.2(a)(i) (other than for Losses related to breaches of the Critical
Representations or the representations contained in Section 5.9 (Taxes)) or Section 11.3(a)(i), (i) for any individual item, or group of
items arising out of the same event, where the Loss Relating thereto is less than $20,000 (the "De Minimis Amount") and (ii) in
respect of each individual item, or group of items arising out of the
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same event, where the Loss relating thereto is equal to or greater than the De Minimus Amount, unless and until the aggregate amount
of all such Losses exceeds $1,000,000 (the "Deductible"), and then only to the extent of such excess. The aggregate indemnification
that is payable by Seller pursuant to this Article XI (other than indemnification for Losses related to breaches of any of the Critical
Representations), shall not exceed $17,500,000 of the Purchase Price and any accrued investment income thereon (the "Cap"), and,
notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the sole recourse of the Purchaser Indemnified Parties with respect to Seller's
obligations under Section 11.2 (other than for Losses related to breaches of any of the Critical Representations), shall be limited, in the
aggregate, to the Cap.
(b)
Seller shall not be required to indemnify any Purchaser Indemnified Party and Purchaser shall not be
required to indemnify the Seller Indemnified Party to the extent of any Losses that a court of competent jurisdiction shall have
determined by final judgment to have resulted from the bad faith, gross negligence or willful misconduct of the party seeking
indemnification.
(c)
Purchaser shall not be entitled to indemnification under this Article XI in respect of any matter that is
expressly taken into account in the calculation of any adjustment to the Purchase Price pursuant to Section 3.3 to the extent of any
such adjustment.
11.6

Calculation of Losses.

(a)
The amount of any Losses for which indemnification is provided under this Article XI shall be net of any
Tax benefit realized by an Indemnified Party and any amounts actually recovered or recoverable by the Indemnified Party under
insurance policies or otherwise with respect to such Losses less all out-of-pocket costs and expenses incurred by such Indemnified
Party in connection with obtaining such insurance proceeds or otherwise (including attorneys' fees). Purchaser shall use its
commercially reasonable efforts to recover under insurance policies for any Losses prior to seeking indemnification hereunder. For
purposes of this Section 11.6(a), any "Tax benefit" realized by an Indemnified Party shall be calculated net of any Tax cost attributable
to the receipt of any indemnity payment by the Indemnified Party hereunder, including, but not limited to, the Tax cost, calculated on
a present value basis, of any reduction in the Indemnified Party's future depreciation or amortization deductions.
(b)
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary elsewhere in this Agreement, no party shall, in any event, be
liable to any other Person for any consequential, incidental, indirect, special or punitive damages of such other Person, including loss
of future revenue, income or profits, diminution of value or loss of business reputation or opportunity relating to the breach or alleged
breach hereof except to the extent any such incidental, consequential or special damages are the direct result of any breach under this
Agreement or are in connection with a third party claim against an Indemnified Party.
11.7
Exclusive Remedy. In absence of fraud or willful misconduct, from and after the Closing, the sole and exclusive
remedy for any breach or failure to be true and correct, or alleged breach or failure to be true and correct, of any representation or
warranty, shall be indemnification in accordance with this Article XI and, to the extent relating to Taxes, Article IX. In furtherance of
the foregoing, the parties hereby waive, to the fullest extent permitted by
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applicable Law, any and all other rights, claims and causes of action (including rights of contribution, if any) known or unknown,
foreseen or unforeseen, which exist or may arise in the future, that it may have against the Purchaser, Seller or the Company, as the
case may be, arising under or based upon any federal, state or local Law (including any such Law relating to environmental matters or
arising under or based upon any securities Law, common Law or otherwise). Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Section 11.7 shall
not operate to interfere with or impede the operation of the provisions of Article III providing for the (i) resolution of certain disputes
relating to the Purchase Price between the parties and/or by an Independent Accountant and (ii) limit the rights of the parties to seek
equitable remedies (including specific performance or injunctive relief) in accordance with Section 12.9. Notwithstanding anything to
the contrary in this Article XI, the above provisions of this Article XI shall not apply to tax indemnification matters, which shall
instead be governed by Article IX.
11.8
Parent Guarantee. Parent hereby irrevocably guarantees the obligations, including the indemnification obligations,
of Seller under this Agreement.
ARTICLE XII
MISCELLANEOUS
Expenses. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, each of the Purchaser, Parent, Seller and the Company
12.1
shall bear its own expenses incurred in connection with the negotiation and execution of this Agreement and each other agreement,
document and instrument contemplated by this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and
thereby. For the avoidance of doubt, Seller shall be responsible for the Company's expenses incurred in connection with the
negotiation and execution of this Agreement and each other agreement, document and instrument contemplated by this Agreement and
the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby.
12.2

Submission to Jurisdiction; Consent to Service of Process; Waiver of Jury Trial;.

(a)
The parties hereto hereby irrevocably submit to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of any federal or state court
located within the borough of Manhattan of the City, County and State of New York over any dispute arising out of or relating to this
Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated hereby and each party hereby irrevocably agrees that all claims in respect of such
dispute or any suit, action or proceeding related thereto may be heard and determined in such courts. The parties hereby irrevocably
waive, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, any objection which they may now or hereafter have to the laying of venue of
any such dispute brought in such court or any defense of inconvenient forum for the maintenance of such dispute. Each of the parties
hereto agrees that a judgment in any such dispute may be enforced in other jurisdictions by suit on the judgment or in any other
manner provided by law.
(b)
Each of the parties hereto hereby consents to process being served by any party to this Agreement in any
suit, action or proceeding by delivery of a copy thereof in accordance with the notice provisions of Section 12.5.
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(c)
THE PARTIES TO THIS AGREEMENT EACH HEREBY WAIVE, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT
PERMITTED BY LAW, ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY OF ANY CLAIM, DEMAND, ACTION, OR CAUSE OF ACTION
(i) ARISING UNDER THIS AGREEMENT OR (ii) IN ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH OR RELATED OR INCIDENTAL TO
THE DEALINGS OF THE PARTIES HERETO IN RESPECT OF THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY OF THE TRANSACTIONS
RELATED HERETO, IN EACH CASE WHETHER NOW EXISTING OR HEREAFTER ARISING, AND WHETHER IN
CONTRACT, TORT, EQUITY, OR OTHERWISE. THE PARTIES TO THIS AGREEMENT EACH HEREBY AGREE AND
CONSENT THAT ANY SUCH CLAIM, DEMAND, ACTION, OR CAUSE OF ACTION SHALL BE DECIDED BY COURT
TRIAL WITHOUT A JURY AND THAT THE PARTIES TO THIS AGREEMENT MAY FILE AN ORIGINAL
COUNTERPART OF A COPY OF THIS AGREEMENT WITH ANY COURT AS WRITTEN EVIDENCE OF THE CONSENT OF
THE PARTIES HERETO TO THE WAIVER OF THEIR RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY.
12.3
Entire Agreement; Amendments and Waivers. This Agreement (including the schedules and exhibits hereto), the
Confidentiality Agreement, the Purchaser Documents, the Seller Documents and the Company Documents represent the entire
understanding and agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and thereof. This Agreement can be
amended, supplemented or changed, and any provision hereof can be waived, only by written instrument making specific reference to
this Agreement signed by the party against whom enforcement of any such amendment, supplement, modification or waiver is sought.
No action taken pursuant to this Agreement, including any investigation by or on behalf of any party, shall be deemed to constitute a
waiver by the party taking such action of compliance with any representation, warranty, covenant or agreement contained herein. The
waiver by any party hereto of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not operate or be construed as a further or continuing
waiver of such breach or as a waiver of any other or subsequent breach. No failure on the part of any party to exercise, and no delay
in exercising, any right, power or remedy hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of such
right, power or remedy by such party preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or
remedy.
12.4
Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
New York applicable to contracts made and performed in such State without giving effect to the choice of law principles of such state
that would require or permit the application of the laws of another jurisdiction.
12.5
Notices. All notices and other communications under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed given
(i) when delivered personally by hand (with written confirmation of receipt), (ii) when sent by facsimile (with written confirmation of
transmission) or (iii) one business day following the day sent by overnight courier (with written confirmation of receipt), in each case
at the following addresses and facsimile numbers (or to such other address or facsimile number as a party may have specified by
notice given to the other party pursuant to this provision):
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If to Seller, to:
The Reader's Digest Association, Inc.
44 South Broadway
White Plains, New York 10601
Facsimile: (914) 244-5644
Attention: General Counsel
With a copy (which shall not constitute notice) to:
Weil, Gotshal & Manges LLP
767 Fifth Avenue
New York, New York 10153
Facsimile: (212) 310-8007
Attention: Michael J. Aiello, Esq.
If to Purchaser, to:
Meredith Corporation
1716 Locust Street
Des Moines, Iowa 50309-3023
Facsimile: (515) 284-3933
Attention: John Zieser, General Counsel
With a copy to:
McDermott Will & Emery LLP
227 W. Monroe Street
Chicago, Illinois 60606
Attention: Thomas J. Murphy
Facsimile: (312) 372-2000
Severability. If any term or other provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal, or incapable of being enforced by
12.6
any law or public policy, all other terms or provisions of this Agreement shall nevertheless remain in full force and effect so long as
the economic or legal substance of the transactions contemplated hereby is not affected in any manner materially adverse to any party.
Upon such determination that any term or other provision is invalid, illegal, or incapable of being enforced, the parties hereto shall
negotiate in good faith to modify this Agreement so as to effect the original intent of the parties as closely as possible in an acceptable
manner in order that the transactions contemplated hereby are consummated as originally contemplated to the greatest extent possible.
12.7
Binding Effect; No Third Party Beneficiaries; Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns. Nothing in this Agreement shall create or be deemed to
create any third party beneficiary rights in any person or entity not a party to this Agreement except as provided below and as
provided to (i) the Purchaser Indemnified Parties pursuant to Section 11.2(a) and (ii) the Seller Indemnified Parties pursuant to
Section 11.3(a). No assignment of this Agreement or of
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any rights or obligations hereunder may be made by Purchaser, Seller or the Company, directly or indirectly (by operation of law or
otherwise), without the prior written consent of the other parties hereto and any attempted assignment without the required consents
shall be void; provided however, that Purchaser may assign its rights to purchase the Shares to a wholly-owned subsidiary, whether
directly or indirectly owned. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, no assignment of any obligations hereunder shall
relieve the parties hereto of any such obligations. Upon any such permitted assignment, the references in this Agreement to Purchaser
shall also apply to any such assignee unless the context otherwise requires.
12.8
No Third Party Liability. This Agreement may only be enforced against the named parties hereto. All claims or
causes of action (whether in contract or tort) that may be based upon, arise out of or relate to this Agreement, or the negotiation,
execution or performance of this Agreement (including any representation or warranty made in or in connection with this Agreement
or as an inducement to enter into this Agreement), may be made only against the entities that are expressly identified as parties hereto;
and no past, present or future director, officer, employee, incorporator, member, partner, stockholder, Affiliate, agent, attorney or
representative of any party hereto (including any person negotiating or executing this Agreement on behalf of a party hereto) shall
have any liability or obligation with respect to this Agreement or with respect to any claim or cause of action (whether in contract or
tort) that may arise out of or relate to this Agreement, or the negotiation, execution or performance of this Agreement (including a
representation or warranty made in or in connection with this Agreement or as an inducement to enter into this Agreement)
Specific Performance. Each of the parties acknowledges and agrees that the other parties would be damaged
12.9
irreparably in the event any of the provisions of this Agreement are not performed in accordance with their specific terms or otherwise
are breached or violated. Accordingly, each of the parties agrees that, without posting bond or other undertaking, the other parties will
be entitled to an injunction or injunctions to prevent breaches or violations of the provisions of this Agreement and to enforce
specifically this Agreement and the terms and provisions hereof in any action instituted in any court of the United States or any state
thereof having jurisdiction over the parties and the matter in addition to any other remedy to which it may be entitled, at law or in
equity. Each party further agrees that, in the event of any action for specific performance in respect of such breach or violation, it will
not assert that the defense that a remedy at law would be adequate.
12.10
Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed to be
an original copy of this Agreement and all of which, when taken together, will be deemed to constitute one and the same agreement.
** REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK **
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their respective
authorized officers, as of the date first written above.
MEREDITH CORPORATION
By: /s/ John S. Zieser
Name: John S. Zieser
Title: Chief Development Officer
ALLRECIPES.COM, INC.
By: /s/ Monica Williams
Name: Monica Williams
Title: Vice President
THE READERS DIGEST ASSOCIATION, INC.
By: /s/ Robert Guth
Name: Robert Guth
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer
Acknowledged and Agreed
as to those provisions to which it is bound,
including Section 11.8
RDA HOLDING CO.
By: /s/ Robert Guth
Name: Robert Guth
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer
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Schedule I
Knowledge of the Company
Lisa Sharples
Monica Williams
Bryan Berndt
Kevin Graveline
Mike Fichera
Rich Lee
Michael Sena
William Magill
Amber Dunn
Barbara Antonio
Bill Reller
Bob O'Keefe
Esmee Williams
Gail Love
Kelly Kolb
Patricia Lee Smith
Rita Spangler
Scott Scazafavo

Exhibit A
License Agreement Summary of Terms
See attached.

Exhibit B
Reference Statement
See attached.

Exhibit C
Transition Services Agreement
See attached.

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULES 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a)
I, Robert E. Guth certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of RDA Holding Co.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented
in this report;

4.

The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b.

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c.

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation;

d.

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions):
a.

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b.

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: May 8, 2012

By: /s/ Robert E. Guth
Robert E. Guth
President and Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULES 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a)
I, Paul R. Tomkins, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of RDA Holding Co.;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented
in this report;

4.

The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

5.

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b.

Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c.

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on
such evaluation;

d.

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions):
a.

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b.

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: May 8, 2012

By: /s/ Paul R. Tomkins
Paul R. Tomkins
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of RDA Holding Co. (the "Company") for the quarter ended March 31, 2012
(the "Report"), Robert E. Guth, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of his knowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.
Dated: May 8, 2012

By: /s/ Robert E. Guth
Robert E. Guth
President and Chief Executive Officer

Exhibit 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of RDA Holding Co. (the "Company") for the quarter ended March 31, 2012
(the "Report"), Paul R. Tomkins, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of his knowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended; and
(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.
Dated: May 8, 2012

By: /s/ Paul R. Tomkins
Paul R. Tomkins
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

